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V1 VI 2012 represented significant step the

growth of Strategic Storage Trust SSTI the industrys

only publ non-traded self storage REIT The most

notable event was the repricing of our shares based on

an independent valuation of our real estate assets as of

December 31 2011 On June 2012 shares of Strategic

Storage Trust Inc were revalued to $10.79 from $10.00

per share This price increase reflects the early success

of our strategy of building blended portfolio of primarily

stabilized facilities with tactical allocation of lease-up

properties It also speaks to the value self storage as

an asset class can create because it is an operating

business vs static real estate portfolio We grew our

revenues through acquisitions and increases in same-

store performance We increased annual same-store

revenues by 6.0% which translated into operating income

expansion in excess 11.5% We increased cash flows

from operatons for the year ended December 31 2012

compared to the same period in 2011 by over 236c

This has made us one of the fastest growing self storage

HElls in the country

SSTI externally managed by our affiliate Strategic

Storage Advisor LLC who works in concert wth our

affiliated property manager Strategic Storage Property

Management LLC to brand our facilities as SmartStop

Self Storage throughout the U.S and in Canada As of

December 31 2012 our portfolio included 110 properties

17 states and Toronto Canada with approximately

70000 self storage units and approximately 9.2 million

rentable square feet of storage space

In reflecting upon our year we thought it would be

helpful to summarize our activities and achievements into

four parts our acquisitions our property performance

our financial strength and our next phase

Stror Assets Key Strategi Locat is

During 2012 we purchased 19 properties for total

purchase price of approximately $93 million While most

of our properties were stabilized upon acquistion our

lease-up properties provide value added opportunities

for growth The year started wth the onboarding of

properties from large acquisition completed in

December 2011 of 12 lease-up properties in Georga

and Florida Homeland Portfolio totaling approximately

8000 units and one million square feet with total

aggregate purchase price of $80 million This acquisit on

was valdated by our ability to quickly grow its occupancy

from approximately 46% at the date of purchase to over

69% by the end of 2012
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Our strategic business model ctates that our

portfol should be combination of growth arid income

The ability of our management team to maximize both

stabilized and leaseup properties is key to our long term

success Whi the rnajonty of our assets are stabi ized

upon purchase the Homeland Portfolo discussed

earlier represents an example of successful lease up

buying properties with lower occupancy at or below

replacement cost prime retail beat ons with strong

demographcs and implementing our anagemerrt and

marketing systems to increase occupancy and rcturns

As an operating company we contnue to dentfy

and impleme it additonal revenue creation strateqies

For example tenant insura ice monthly revenue

ncreased from approximately $20000 January 201

to app oxirnatey $120000 in December20 Much of

tf is revenue drops right to tie boSom ire We have seer

similar opportunities in anci lary sales of packing ard

moving supplies truck rentals cell towers and billboards

Again we are the first ron-traded PElT to utilize

brand ng strategy in connection with the ownership and

operation of properbes We now have tf rnajori

of cur orooerties branded and have iipemeato

technology to make the storage experie ice simpler fe

our customersThe SmartStop web site wth its mob

fr end online services and features is real ir SS

properties industry leaders In 2012 we \vent through

major ovolutio by leveraging soda riieda outreach to

engage our customers utilidng Facebook TwiCe and oui

on inc presence

Our grow ng multimedia marketing ograms ant

campaigns are creating extraomdnary brand awa ices

wtr our espeutive regiurra ano ieee iiarsets

building ma et share customer loya and reven es

sign ficant part of the Home and Portfolios success
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crit cal part of our growth strategy is sound financial

management On the capital front we carefully

deleveraged our credit facilities After completing ful

pay-down of our $28 million bridge loan we amended our

KeyBank loan such that we were able to refinance $31

million thereof into new CMBS Loan.This refinancing

wth term of 10 years significantly reduced our short-

term debt maturities and provided favorable fixed

interest rate of 4.65% Ultimately we reduced debt

leverage from 60% as of December 31 2011 to 56% as

of December 31 2012 all while acquiring 19 properties

durng 2012 for total purchase price of $93 milton

Our revenue for last year was $66.6 million 35%

increase over our 2011 revenue of $49.4 million The

increase in revenues is primarily from the acquisition

of 19 properties during 2012 and full year of revenues

for the 46 properties acquired in 2011 Our general and

administrative expenses were 3.5% of revenue in 2012

compared to 4.9% of revenue in 2011 reflection of

reduced costs and economies of scale We continue to

maintain strong balance sheet with total assets of $631

mi lion which is 15% higher than 2011 with sufficient

cash on hand

We increased lEA Modified Funds From Operations

MFFO by 172% for the three months ended

September 30 2012 as compared to the three months

ended June 30 2012 from $1.0 million to $2.7 million

We continued the positive improvement for the quarter

ended December 31 2012 by increasing MFFO an

additional 59% to $4.2 million

Our encouraging performance in 2012 has positioned

us to move to the next phase We will continue to work

with our affiliated external advisor and property manager

and their talented teams of seasoned professionals

While the REIT itself has no direct employees these

entities provide us with the expertise and infrastructure

we need for success Integral in our focus are the

marketing basics of people price and product This is

what makes our company more than high-quality real

estate portfo io it is our people management team of

industry veterans with extensive institutional experience

in the acquisition and property management of self

storage properties the best in the business It is price

our ability to leverage technology to provde competiuve

value to our customers and it is our product our ability

to consistently provide the highest quality self storage

facilities in the market

We are excited to be moving on to the next phase

and intend to close our current offering to new investors

in the third quarter of 2013 We will continue to focus

on our business strategy of acquiring and maximizing

operations of stabilized and lease-up properties to provide

current income and to build value for our shareholders

While you may know that our growth has been

extraordinary it is satisfyng to have the industry take

notice Inside Se/f Storage Magazine recently ranked our

sponsor as the no self storage operator in America

We thank you for your confidence in SSTl and wi

continue to work hard to earn your trust daily

Continued successes

Sd ad Schwa ft

Chairman and CEO

Strategic Storage Trust Inc
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wit Fcc onboarding of the

prooo es Georgia and Florida

ocr 201 This acquisition doubled

Atla market whi continuing

in Icrida The portfo io matched

or on rnaio fronts Ugh qua ty

di huH between 2006 and 2009 in

nanaged by first time developer

acon rn es of scale By focusing on

these properties with our proven manage acon tcchr iques

we were able to increase occupancy from 16% 69V

the first 12 months Looking forvvard to 2013 we believe

these properties wil continue to provide ncroased cash

flows to the foho as they approach stabilzatiun

Th was followed by the purchase of the 1%property

Stockade Poitfolio which inc udea facilities in key retail

locations within strong demographic areas inc ud ng

Charleston South Carolina and Savanrah Georgia These

oroperties represent high quality properies affluer

markets with hgh barriers to entry The piopertios while

we managed benefited from the techno opica benefits

we could provide including ir natiocal cal center our

online reservation and lead tracking system cd optimized

internet presence

In additicin to increasng revenues troc gh acqu sitions

and same store growth SSTI continues to dentify and

implement other revenue opportunities For examp we

have also introduced the abilty for customers to purchase

packing and moving supplies online Not only does th

bring revenue it also incieases the like hood that

the potential customer will rent from us Cther revenue

sources inclLide truck rentals cell towers and billboards

Much of this revenue drops right to the bottom ne as

incremental operatiorra expense is minimal

Again the purpose of our growth strategy is to

ultimately provide stockholder va ue We wi continue to

look for opportunii cc that provide growth to our stabilized

portfolio Given our success to date we oelieve we are on

the right tract
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iccess il ineludng Revenue

ROth national cal center sales

mnrams and our onl ne capibilites
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and manage our available unit

sophis fcated system of algorithms

rigger prici ig adjustments

Throughout the month simiiar to
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Branding is essential in the new rnarketolaoe From

curb appeal to the service desk customers expect

cohesive experience and now more than ever Oranding

is an imperative We use technology to mare the storage

experience srnplerand more satisfying forourcusto niers

focusing on developing an integrated market ng strutegy

for online phone and wale-in customers.The SmartStop

web site with its mobile friendy integratior and features

are making SSTI an industry leader Cur vveb marketing

tools pay per click campaign to gerrerate loads and

improve brand recognition Search Engine Cpkmizaton

process to obtain dominant position browser stings

and aggressve social media campaign provide is with

technologcal edge in the marketplace

We are attracting customers with mobile friendly

smart phone app with nventory control along \vth

print and internet yellow page campaigns This all flows

through national call center with exparrded business

hours and high-quality agents Fnally we do not forget

the core tradit onal walk-in traffic vvith strategical

positioned branding on bui ding exteriors interioi and

available signage Not east is the brightly branded eet

of SmartStop trucks available for our cus omers aid act

as rolling billboards

In 2012 we saw our strategies begin to pay off We

believe that in Lipcoming quarters these efforts

continue to pay off as we benefit from our growth aid

increasing economies of scale Property ocerations is

more management intensive for self sto age fac lities

than static net lease real estate but with the people

management and marketing systems vve now have lr

place and the ootentia for growth coupled with tie

stablity of the asset class we believe we are we

posit oned for future success
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The esutart grovvia has been confnuor om
SSTIs start in 2008 only years ago year later whilo

many firms stopped expanson efforts our sponsor

became the largest purchaser of self storage real estato

in the United States and broke into the list of top 25 self

storage operators as reported in the leadirg industry

publ catiorl Inside Self Storage

Another year later in 2010 our sponsor laLl lched

the brand SmartStop Self Storage and ranked rio

in acquisitions that year second only to RubI Storage
In 2011 oc sponsor brore into tke top 10 of ftc self

storage propertieslop Operators Lst comng nat ro.8
In 2012 our sponsor moved up to no in the

Top Operators st and made the cocer the Inside

Se/f Storage 2012 lop Operators issje The flagship

property Ladera Ranch just block from our wrporate

offices was the full front cover of the magazine It

clear that the self storage industry certain knows our

name by now

Gong forward as we close the offering to new
investors the third ouarter nf 2013 we cner nto

the next phase of ou growth Acquisition and lcverage

strategies world class marketing and hianding industry

leading custor icr care operatonal excel erce arid

strong balance sheet will position Strategic oragelusl
for future growth and success
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARDLO0KING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Form 10-K of Strategic Storage Trust Inc other than historical facts

may be considered forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933

as amended the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the

Exchange Act We intend for all such forward-looking statements to be covered by the applicable safe harbor

provisions
for forward-looking statements contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the

Exchange Act as applicable Such statements include in particular statements about our plans strategies and

prospects
and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties including known and unknown risks which could

cause actual results to differ materially from those projected or anticipated Therefore such statements are not

intended to be guarantee
of our performance in future periods

Such forward-looking statements can generally

be identified by our use of forward-looking terminology
such as may will expect intend anticipate

estimate believe continue or other similar words Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on

these forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date this report
is filed with the Securities and

Exchange Conmiission We cannot guarantee
the accuracy

of any such forward-looking statements contained in

this Form 10-K and we do not intend to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as

result of new information future events or otherwise

Any such forward-looking statements are subject to risks uncertainties and other factors and are based on

number of assumptions involving judgments with respect to among other things future economic competitive

and market conditions all of which are difficult or impossible
to predict accurately To the extent that our

assumptions differ from actual results our ability to meet such forward-looking statements including our ability

to generate positive
cash flow from operations and provide

distributions to stockholders and our ability to find

suitable investment properties may be significantly
hindered

All forward-looking statements should be read in light of the risks identified in Part Item 1A of this Form

10-K



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Overview

Strategic Storage Trust Inc Maryland corporation the Company was formed on August 14 2007 forthe
purpose of engaging in the business of investing in self storage facilities The Company made an election tobe taxed as real estate investment trust REIT beginning with the taxable year ended December 31 2008 Asused in this report we us and our refer to Strategic Storage Trust Inc

Strategic Capital Holdings LLC our Sponsor is the
sponsor of our Offering as defined below OurSponsor was formed on July 21 2004 to engage in private structured offerings of limited

partnerships and otherentities with respect to the acquisition management and disposition of commercial real estate assets OurSponsor owns majority of Strategic Storage Holdings LLC which is the sole member of our advisor StrategicStorage Advisor LLC our Advisor and our property manager Strategic Storage Property Management LLCour Property Manager We have no paid employees Our Advisor is responsible for managing our affairs onday-to-day basis and
identifying and making acquisitions and investments on our behalf under the terms of anadvisory agreement with our Advisor Our Advisor was formed on August 13 2007 See Note of the Notes tothe Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this

report for further details about our affiliates

On March 17 2008 we began our initial public offering of conimon stock our Initial Offering OnMay 22 2008 we satisfied the minimum
offering requirements of the Initial

Offering and conimenced formaloperations On September 16 2011 we terminated the Initial
Offering having sold

approximately 29 millionshares for
gross proceeds of

approximately $289 million On September 22 2011 we commenced our follow-onpublic offering of stock for maximum of 110000000 shares of conimon stock consisting of 100000000shares for sale to the public our Primary Offering and 10000000 shares for sale
pursuant to our distributionreinvestment plan collectively our Offering We intend to invest substantial amount of the net proceedsfrom our Offering in self

storage facilities and related self storage real estate investments Based on the currentexpiration date of our Offering on September 22 2013 and our current sales pace which our board of directorsbelieves should allow us to raise sufficient capital to move to the next phase of our life cycle our board ofdirectors approved closing our Offering within the original two year offering period We
currently expect to closeour Offering on or around September 22 2013 although the board of directors has reserved its right to close theOffering prior to that date if the board of directors deems it

appropriate Our board may also extend our Offeringfor an additional year or in certain circumstances longer We currently plan to continue to offer shares under ourdistribution reinvestment
plan beyond the above date however we may terminate the distribution reinvestmentplan offering at any time As of December 31 2012 we had issued

approximately 42.7 million shares ofcommon stock for
approximately $426 million in our Initial Offering and our Offering and also issued6.2 million shares in private offering As of December 31 2012 we had

approximately 46.2 million sharesissued and
outstanding

Effective June 2012 the offering price of our shares of common stock increased from $10.00
per share to$10.79 per share This increase was primarily based on the April 2012 estimated

per share value of ourcommon stock of $10.79 which was calculated based on the estimated value of our assets less the estimated valueof our liabilities or net asset value divided by the number of shares
outstanding on an adjusted fully dilutedbasis calculated as of December 31 2011 In light of the above-described net asset value calculation our boardof directors determined that it was appropriate to increase the per share offering price for new purchases of ourshares

commencing on June 2012 This determination by our board of directors was subjective and wasprimarily based on the estimated net asset value per share which was predominantly based on an independentthird
party appraisers valuation of our properties as of December 31 2011 ii the commissions and dealermanager fees

payable in connection with the
offering of our shares iii our historical and anticipated results ofoperations and financial condition iv our current and

anticipated distribution payments our current andanticipated capital and debt
structure and vi our Advisors recommendations and assessment of our prospectsand continued execution of our investment and operating strategies



As of December 31 2012 we wholly-owned 110 self storage facilities located in 17 states Alabama

Arizona California Florida Georgia Illinois Kentucky Mississippi Nevada New Jersey New York North

Carolina Pennsylvania South Carolina Tennessee Texas and Virginia and Canada comprising approximately

70190 units and approximately 9.2 million rentable square
feet As of December 31 2012 we also had minority

interests in eight additional self storage facilities Of those interests one has been deemed to be controlling

interest and is therefore consolidated in our consolidated financial statements as discussed in Note

Additionally we have an interest in net leased industrial property in California with 356000 rentable square

feet leased to single tenant While our properties are branded under the SmartStop Self Storage brand we

do not own or control this brand Strategic Storage Holdings LLC the parent company of our Advisor and

Property Manager owns and controls the intellectual property rights to the SmartStop Self Storage brand the

website www.smartstopselfstorage.com and other intellectual property currently being used by us in connection

with our self storage properties We are currently authorized to use this brand and other intellectual property

pursuant to license In the event that we ever cease to operate
under this brand which has garnered substantial

value due to its goodwill and reputation associated therewith we may lose market share and customers and we

could incur significant costs to change the signage and otherwise change our brand

Industry Summary

Self storage refers to properties that offer do-it-yourself month-to-month storage space rental for personal

or business use Self storage offers cost-effective and flexible storage alternative Tenants rent fully-enclosed

spaces or parking spaces that can vary in size according to their specific needs and to which they have unlimited

exclusive access Tenants have responsibility for moving their items into and out of their units Self storage unit

sizes typically range from five feet by five feet to 10 feet by 30 feet

Self storage provides convenient way for individuals and businesses to store their possessions whether

due to life change or simply because of need for additional storage space According to the 2012 Self Storage

Almanac self storage facilities generally have tenant mix of approximately 75% residential 19% commercial

3% military and 3% students The mix of residential tenants using self storage property is determined by

propertys local demographics and often includes people who are looking to downsize their living space or who

are not yet settled in large home The items residential tenants place in self storage properties range from cars

boats and recreational vehicles to furniture household items and appliances Commercial tenants tend to include

small business owners who require easy and frequent access to their goods records or extra inventory or storage

for seasonal goods Self storage properties provide an accessible storage alternative at relatively low cost

Properties generally have on-site managers who supervise and run the day-to-day operations providing tenants

with assistance as needed The six key demand drivers of self storage are population growth percentage

of renter-occupied housing units average household size average household income supply

constraints and economic growth Tenants choose self storage property based largely on the convenience of

the site to their home or business Therefore high-density high-traffic population centers are ideal locations for

self storage property propertys perceived security and the general professionalism of the site managers and

staff are also contributing factors to sites ability to secure rentals Although most self storage properties are

leased to tenants on month-to-month basis tenants tend to continue their leases for extended periods of time

However there are seasonal fluctuations in occupancy rates for self storage properties Generally there is

increased leasing activity at self storage properties during the summer months due to the higher number of people

who relocate during this period

As population densities have increased in the U.S there has been an increase in self storage awareness and

development According to the Self Storage Associations Self Storage Industry Fact Sheet June 2012

at year-end 1984 there were 6601 facilities with 289.7 million square feet of rentable self storage in

the U.S At year-end 2011 there were approximately 49940 primary self storage facilities in the U.S

representing approximately 2.3 billion square feet

at year end 2011 there were approximately 58500 self storage facilities worldwide including more than

3000 self storage facilities in Canada



the top five self storage companies own and operate just 9.8% of all primary facilities

75% of all self storage companies own and operate just one primary self storage facility and

it took the self storage industry more than 25
years to build its first billion square feet of space it added

the second billion
square

feet in just eight years 1998-2005

The growth in the industry has created more competition in various geographic regions This has led to an

increased emphasis on site location property design innovation and functionality to accommodate local planning

and zoning boards and to distinguish facility from other offerings in the market This is especially true for new

sites slated for high-density population centers

Recently self storage operators have placed increased emphasis on offering ancillary products which

provide incremental revenues Moving and packing supplies such as locks and boxes and the offering of other

services such as tenant insurance truck rentals help to increase revenues As more sophisticated self storage

operators continue to develop innovative products and services such as online rentals 24-hour accessibility

automated kiosk rentals climate-controlled storage wine storage tenant-service call center access and after-

hours storage local operators may be increasingly unable to meet higher tenant expectations which could

encourage
consolidation in the industry

We expect the baby boomer generation to have major impact on the future of the self storage industry

During the 19-year period from 1946 to 1964 approximately 77 million babies or baby boomers were born in

the U.S According to the U.S Census Bureau baby boomers make up nearly 27% of the U.S population

These baby boomers are heading towards retirement age and have accumulated possessions which they wish to

retain As the baby boomers move into retirement age and begin to downsize their households we believe there

will be great need for self storage facilities to assist them in protecting and housing these possessions for

prolonged periods of time

We also believe that the self storage industry possesses attractive characteristics not found in other

commercial real estate sectors including the following

no reliance on single large tenant whose vacating can have devastating impact on rental revenue

no leasing commissions and/or tenant improvements

relatively low capital expenditures

brand names can be developed at local regional and even national levels

opportunity for great deal of geographic diversification which could enhance the stability and

predictability of cash flows and

the lowest loan default rate of any commercial property type

Business Overview

Unlike many other REITs and real estate companies we are an operating business We acquire develop

redevelop own operate and manage self storage facilities Our self storage facilities offer inexpensive easily

accessible enclosed storage space or parking space to residential and commercial users on month-to-month

basis Most of our facilities are fenced with computerized gates and are well lighted Many of our properties are

single-story thereby providing customers with the convenience of direct vehicle access to their storage spaces

At certain facilities we offer climate-controlled units that generally offer heating in the winter and cooling in the

summer Many of our facilities also offer outside vehicle boat and recreational vehicle storage areas Our

facilities generally are constructed of masonry or steel walls resting on concrete slabs and have standing seam

metal shingle or tar and gravel roofs Customers have access to their storage units from 600AM 1000PM



365 days per year and some of our facilities provide 24-hour access Individual storage spaces are secured by

lock furnished by the customer to provide the customer with control of access to the space Our facilities range in

size from approximately 21700 to approximately 311800 net rentable square feet with an average of

approximately 84000 net rentable square feet

As an operating business self storage requires much greater focus on strategic and operational

management Below are some of the strategies and tactics we are utilizing to grow diversified portfolio of self

storage facilities that we believe will maximize cash available for distributions and potential for appreciation in

the value of our properties over the long term

Initial Growth and Branding Stage

Since our inception we have been focused on building diversified portfolio of self storage facilities As of

December 31 2012 we had acquired 110 facilities in 17 states and Canada We have been branding our facilities

under the SmartStop Self Storage brand We utilize call center which focuses on generating reservations

and assisting customers with their cunent storage accounts such as taking payments or answering general

questions Additionally we developed customer-friendly and mobile phone-friendly self storage website

www.smartstopselfstorage.com which allows potential self storage customers to locate available units at any of

our properties and our SmartTracker Inventory LjstSM App which allows customers to organize and track the

contents of their self storage units via their iPhone or Android device We believe that the implementation of

these and other branding and marketing initiatives will enhance brand awareness and drive revenue growth in the

future

Focus on Increasing Revenue and Creating Greater Efficiencies

We continue to place significant amount of focus on revenue generation opportunities at our self storage

facilities and capitalizing on economies of scale from our growing portfolio Below are few of the specific

measures we have taken to improve our operating performance at our existing facilities

Standardized Sales Processes We have put forth standardized sales approach so that the rental

experience is consistent at each of our facilities All employees are trained in our sales approach and

techniques that facilitate the generation of business

Integrated Marketing Strategy We have developed an integrated marketing strategy for our online

phone and walk-in customers which includes our customer-friendly and mobile-friendly self storage

website allowing potential customers to locate available units at any of our properties Also our web

marketing tools pay-per-click campaign to generate leads and improve brand recognition search

engine optimization process to obtain dominant position in browser listings and our social media

campaigns provide us with technological edge over competitors

Facility Monitoring Activities We are seeking to increase revenue and net operating income at each of

our facilities by closely monitoring call volume reservation activity and occupancy in relation to

our marketing activities ii analyzing market supply and demand factors as well as occupancy trends

in setting rental rates promotional discounts and target marketing initiatives iiicontinuous

refinement of our algorithms that manage our rental rate increases to existing customers at our self

storage facilities Revenue Optimization System and iv closely managing our controllable

operating costs

Revenue Optimization System We utilize Revenue Optimization System ROS which allows us

to analyze every unit at every property individually and manage our available unit inventory through

sophisticated system of algorithms which automatically triggers pricing adjustments This system

allows us to instantly respond to market demand and maximize revenues

Creating Operational Efficiencies As we continue to grow our portfolio of self storage facilities we

will be able to consolidate and streamline number of aspects of our operations through economies of



scale For example as result of our size and geographic diversification as well as our institution of

blanket property and casualty insurance program over all of our properties nationwide we have

reduced our total insurance costs per property We are also negotiating national contracts and rates with

other key vendors and service providers Additionally we have implemented labor scheduling model

that takes standardized approach to staffing our facilities This allows us to better manage our labor

hours and better predict our labor costs To the extent we can continue to acquire facilities in clusters

within geographic regions we believe efficiencies will continue to improve

Increasing Focus on Anciiwy Revenue We are increasing our focus on certain ancillary revenue

opportunities We have increased the emphasis on selling our customers tenant insurance to protect

their belongings against loss or damage We offer wide assortment of packing and moving supplies

that customer would need to properly protect their items while in storage We have implemented

standardized approach on how to sell these items to our customers as well Additionally we have

national truck rental contracts with Penske and Budget to assist customers with their move

Furthermore we have added the capability for customers to purchase boxes locks and packing supplies

online through our website Users of this service pick up the supplies at their nearest SmartStop

facility which increases revenue and increases the likelihood of such customers becoming self storage

customers at one of our facilities

Growth Opportunities

While our primary focus is on acquiring stabilized self storage facilities that contribute to net cash flow we

have acquired number of facilities that are either in the lease-up or development stage By purchasing facilities

that are still in the lease-up stage we believe we can enhance stockholder value through the leasing efforts of our

Property Manager and efficiencies created by our brand website and other marketing efforts Due to lack of

new supply in certain markets we believe we can also create long-term stockholder value by developing or

redeveloping certain self storage facilities

Investment Objectives

Overview

We will invest substantial amount of the net proceeds of the Offering in self storage facilities and related

self storage real estate investments In the event we raise the maximum offering from our Primary Offering we

anticipate that approximately 88.25% of our gross offering proceeds will be used to primarily make investments

in self storage facilities and related self storage real estate investments and pay real estate-related acquisition fees

and acquisition expenses while the remaining 11.75% will be used to pay sales commissions dealer manager

fees and other offering expenses We may also use net offering proceeds to pay down debt or make distributions

if our cash flows from operations are insufficient Our investment objectives strategy and policies may be

amended or changed at any time by our board of directors Although we have no plans at this time to change any

of our investment objectives our board of directors may change any and all such investment objectives

including our focus on self storage facilities if our board believes such changes are in the best interests of our

stockholders In addition we may invest in real estate properties other than self storage facilities if our board

deems such investments to be in the best interests of our stockholders We cannot assure our stockholders that

our policies or investment objectives will be attained or that the value of our common stock will not decrease

Primary Investment Objectives

Our primary investment objectives are to

invest in income-producing real property in manner that allows us to qualify as REIT for federal

income tax purposes

provide regular cash distributions to our stockholders



preserve and protect our stockholders invested capital and

achieve appreciation in the value of our properties over the long term

We cannot assure our stockholders that we will attain these primary investment objectives

Exchange Listing and Other Liquidity Events

Our board will determine when and if to apply to have our shares of common stock listed for trading on

national securities exchange subject to satisfying then-existing applicable listing requirements Subject to then-

existing market conditions and the sole discretion of our board of directors we intend to seek one or more of the

following liquidity events within three to five years after completion of the Offering

list our shares on national securities exchange

merge reorganize or otherwise transfer our company or its assets to another entity with listed

securities

commence the sale of all of our properties and liquidate our company or

otherwise create liquidity event for our stockholders

However we cannot assure our stockholders that we will achieve one or more of the above-described

liquidity events within the time frame contemplated or at all This time frame represents our best faith estimate of

the time necessary to build portfolio sufficient enough to effectuate one of the liquidity events listed above Our

board of directors has the sole discretion to continue operations beyond five years after completion of the

Offering if it deems such continuation to be in the best interests of our stockholders Even if we do accomplish

one or more of these liquidity events we cannot guarantee that public market will develop for the securities

listed or that such securities will trade at price higher than what our stockholders paid for their shares in our

Offering At the time it becomes necessary
for our board of directors to determine which liquidity event if any is

in the best interests of us and our stockholders we expect that the board will take all relevant factors at that time

into consideration when making liquidity event decision We expect that the board will consider various factors

including but not limited to costs and expenses related to each possible liquidity event and the potential

subordinated fees or other consideration that would be paid to our Advisor

Our Self Storage Acquisition Strategy

We will focus on the acquisition ownership operation and development of self storage facilities and

activities relating to this type of property Self storage refers to properties that offer do-it-yourself month-to-

month storage space rental for personal or business use According to the Self Storage Associations Self Storage

Industry Fact Sheet the self storage industry in the United States consists of approximately 2.3 billion rentable

square feet at approximately 49940 facilities where self storage is the primary source of revenue The industry

is highly fragmented comprised mainly of local operators and few national owners and operators including

we believe only four publicly traded self storage REITs We believe the following factors will allow us to

achieve market penetration name recognition and national brand awareness and loyalty in the self storage

industry which will result in greater economies of scale

the size and diversification of our self storage portfolio which as of December 31 2012 consisted of

110 properties in 17 states and Canada with approximately 70190 units and approximately 9.2 million

square feet

the management team of our Advisor and Property Manager which in addition to our executive

officers includes regional and district property management professionals and on-site property

management personnel

our self storage branding strategy whereby we intend to re-brand every self storage facility we acquire

under the SmartStop Self Storage brand and our call center which provides access to information

regarding our self storage facilities and



our integrated marketing strategy for our online phone and walk-in customers which includes our

customer-friendly and mobile-friendly self storage website allowing potential customers to locate

available units at any of our properties Also our web marketing tools pay-per-click campaign to

generate leads and improve brand recognition search engine optimization process to obtain

dominant position in browser listings and our social media campaigns provide us with technological

edge over competitors

We intend to focus on pursuing acquisitions of self storage facilities in markets with varying economic and

demographic characteristics including large urban cities densely populated suburban cities and smaller rural

cities as long as the property meets our acquisition criteria We also intend to expand and develop certain

facilities we purchase in order to capitalize on underutilization and excess demand The development of certain

facilities we purchase may include an expansion of the self storage units or the services and ancillary products

offered as well as making units available for office space However future investments will not be limited to any

geographic area to type of facility or to specified percentage of our total assets We may invest portion of

the net proceeds we raise in self storage facilities outside the United States We will strategically invest in

specific domestic or foreign markets when opportunities that meet our investment criteria are available In

general when evaluating potential acquisitions of self storage facilities the primary factor we will consider is the

propertys current and projected cash flow

General Acquisiaon and Investment Policies

While we intend to focus our investment strategy on self storage facilities and related self storage real estate

investments we may invest in other storage-related investments such as storage facilities for automobiles

recreation vehicles and boats We may additionally invest in other types of commercial real estate properties if

our board of directors deems appropriate however we have no current intention of investing more than 20% of

the net proceeds of the Offering in such other commercial real estate properties We will seek to make

investments that will satisfy the primary investment objective of providing regular cash distributions to our

stockholders However because significant factor in the valuation of income-producing real property is its

potential for future appreciation we anticipate that some properties we acquire may have the potential for both

growth in value and for providing regular cash distributions to our stockholders As secondary focus in an

effort to maximize stockholder value we have also acquired and may continue to acquire value-added

properties in lease-up stage as well as development properties We believe that this strategy will benefit the

overall composition of our portfolio in the future

Our Advisor will have substantial discretion with respect to the selection of specific properties However

each acquisition will be approved by our board of directors The consideration paid for property will ordinarily

be based on the fair market value of the property as determined by majority of our board of directors In

selecting potential property for acquisition we and our Advisor will consider number of factors including

but not limited to the following

projected demand for self storage facilities in the area

propertys geographic location and type

propertys physical location in relation to population density traffic counts and access

construction quality and condition

potential for capital appreciation

proposed purchase price terms and conditions

historical financial performance

rental rates and occupancy levels for the property and competing properties in the area

potential for rent increases



demographics of the area

operating expenses being incurred and expected to be incurred including but not limited to property

taxes and insurance costs

potential capital improvements and reserves required to maintain the property

prospects for liquidity through sale financing or refinancing of the property

potential competitors for expanding the physical layout of the property

the potential for the construction of new properties in the area

treatment under applicable federal state and local tax and other laws and regulations

evaluation of title and obtaining of satisfactory title insurance and

evaluation of any reasonably ascertainable risks such as environmental contamination

There is no limitation on the number size or type of properties that we may acquire or on the percentage of

net offering proceeds that may be invested in any particular property type or single property The number and

mix of properties will depend upon real estate market conditions and other circumstances existing at the time of

acquisition and the amount of proceeds raised in the Offering In determining whether to purchase particular

property we may obtain an option on such property The amount paid for an option if any is nonnally

surrendered if the property is not purchased and may or may not be credited against the purchase price if the

property is ultimately purchased

Our Borrowing Strategy and Policies

Although we intend to use low leverage 50% or less to make our investments during the Offering at

certain times during the Offering including the present our debt leverage levels may be temporarily higher as we

acquire properties in advance of funds being raised in the Offering At the current time the debt markets are

attractive and our board believes that higher debt leverage in these markets is beneficial to our long-term

interests Our board of directors will regularly monitor our investment pipeline in relation to our projected

fundraising efforts and otherwise evaluate market conditions related to our debt leverage ratios throughout the

Offering As of December 31 2012 our book value based debt leverage was approximately 56% leverage as of

December 31 2012 calculated based on gross asset value was approximately 51%

We may incur our indebtedness in the form of bank borrowings purchase money obligations to the sellers

of properties and publiclyor privately-placed debt instruments or financing from institutional investors or other

lenders We may obtain credit facility or separate loans for each acquisition Our indebtedness may be

unsecured or may be secured by mortgages or other interests in our properties We may use borrowing proceeds

to finance acquisitions of new properties to pay for capital improvements repairs or buildouts to refinance

existing indebtedness to pay distributions to fund redemptions of our shares or to provide working capital

There is no limitation on the amount we can borrow for the purchase of any property Our aggregate

borrowings secured and unsecured must be reasonable in relation to our net assets and must be reviewed by our

board of directors at least quarterly Our charter limits our borrowing to 300% of our net assets as defined

approximately 75% of the cost basis of our assets unless any excess borrowing is approved by majority of

our independent directors and is disclosed to our stockholders in our next quarterly report with justification for

such excess

We may borrow amounts from our Advisor or its affiliates only if such loan is approved by majority of our

directors including majority of our independent directors not otherwise interested in the transaction as fair

competitive commercially reasonable and no less favorable to us than comparable loans between unaffihiated

parties under the circumstances



Except as set forth in our charter regarding debt limits we may re-evaluate and change our debt strategy and

policies in the future without stockholder vote Factors that we could consider when re-evaluating or changing

our debt strategy and policies include then-current economic and market conditions the relative cost of debt and

equity capital any acquisition opportunities the ability of our properties to generate sufficient cash flow to cover

debt service requirements and other similar factors Further we may increase or decrease our ratio of debt to

equity in connection with any change of our borrowing policies

Acquisition Structure

Although we are not limited as to the form our investments may take our investments in real estate will

generally constitute acquiring fee title or interests in joint ventures or similarentities that own and operate real

estate We may also enter into the following types of leases relating to real property

ground lease in which we enter into long-term lease generally greater than 30 years with the

owner for use of the property during the term whereby the owner retains title to the land or

master lease in which we enter into long-term lease typically ten years with multiple renewal

options with the owner in which we agree to pay rent to the owner and pay all costs of operating and

maintaining the property net lease and typically have an option to purchase the property in the

future

We will make acquisitions of our real estate investments directly or indirectly through our Operating

Partnership We will acquire interests in real estate either directly through our Operating Partnership or indirectly

through limited liability companies or limited partnerships or through investments in joint ventures

partnerships co-tenancies or other co-ownership arrangements with other owners of properties affiliates of our

Advisor or other persons

Conditions to Closing Acquisitions

We will not purchase any property unless and until we obtain at least Phase environmental assessment

and history for the property and we are sufficiently satisfied with the propertys environmental status In addition

we will generally condition our obligation to close the purchase of any property on the delivery and verification

of certain documents from the seller or other independent professionals including but not limited to where

appropriate

property surveys and site audits

building plans and specifications if available

soil reports seismic studies flood zone studies if available

licenses permits maps and governmental approvals

historical financial statements and tax statement summaries of the properties

proof of marketable title subject to such liens and encumbrances as are acceptable to us and

liability and title insurance policies

Joint Venture Investments

As of December 31 2012 we had entered into several joint venture arrangements see Note of the Notes

to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this report In the future we may acquire some of our

properties in joint ventures some of which may be entered into with affiliates of our Advisor We may also enter

into joint ventures general partnerships co-tenancies and other participations with real estate developers owners

and others for the purpose of owning and leasing real properties Among other reasons we may want to acquire

properties through joint venture with third parties or affiliates in order to diversify our portfolio of properties in
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terms of geographic region or property type or to co-invest with one of our property management partners Joint

ventures may also allow us to acquire an interest in property without requiring that we fund the entire purchase

price In addition certain properties may be available to us only through joint ventures In determining whether

to recommend particular joint venture our Advisor will evaluate the real property which such joint venture

owns or is being formed to own under the same criteria described elsewhere in this annual report

We may enter into joint ventures with affiliates of our Sponsor Advisor or any affiliate thereof for the

acquisition of properties but only provided that

majority of our directors including majority of our independent directors not otherwise interested in

the transaction approve the transaction as being fair and reasonable to us and

the investment by us and the joint venture partner are on substantially the same terms and conditions

To the extent possible and if approved by our board of directors including majority of our independent

directors we will attempt to obtain right of first refusal or option to buy if such venture partner elects to sell its

interest in the joint venture or the property held by the joint venture In the event that the venture partner were to

elect to sell such interest however we may not have sufficient funds to exercise our right of first refusal to buy

the venture partners interest Entering into joint ventures with affiliates of our Advisor will result in certain

conflicts of interest

Co-Investment with Tenant-In-Common Programs and Delaware Statutory Trusts

Persons selling real estate held for investment often seek to reinvest the proceeds of that sale in another real

estate investment in an effort to obtain favorable tax treatment under Section 1031 of the Intemal Revenue Code

the Code Our Sponsor has been and may continue to be sponsor of tenant-in-common programs and

Delaware Statutory Trusts DSTs such transactions referred to as like-kind exchanges

For each tenant-in-common program our Sponsor or one of its affiliates will create single member limited

liability company each of which we refer to as Strategic Capital Exchange Entity Strategic Capital

Exchange Entity will acquire all or part of real estate property to be owned in co-tenancy arrangements with

persons wishing to engage in like-kind exchanges tenant-in-common participants Generally Strategic Capital

Exchange Entity will acquire the subject property and through registered broker-dealer market private

placement memorandum for the sale of co-tenancy interests in that property In many instances affiliates of our

Advisor will sell or contribute property to Strategic Capital Exchange Entity for the purpose of selling off the

property Properties acquired in connection with the tenant-in-common program if any initially may be partially

or entirely financed with debt When tenant-in-common participant wishes to acquire co-tenancy interest the

Strategic Capital Exchange Entity will deed an undivided co-tenancy interest in the subject property to newly-

formed single-member limited liability company that is owned by the tenant-in-common participant

DST is separate legal entity created as trust under Delaware law that allows persons wishing to engage

in like-kind exchanges to reinvest their proceeds in commercial real estate In such transaction the DST

acquires title to the property or properties and borrows money which is secured by such properties from the

lender and the exchange participant owns beneficial interest in the DST

In 2010 we increased our ownership in Self Storage DST one of the DSTs acquired in previous merger

from 3.05% to 19.75% We subsequently acquired the remaining interests in Self Storage DST such that we

owned 100% of the interests as of February 2011 During 2012 we also acquired all of the interests in Madison

County Self Storage DST DST sponsored by our Sponsor such that we owned 100% of the interests as of

December 28 2012 We may in the future make additional investments in the other DSTs sponsored by our

Sponsor or invest in other similarprograms but will only do so if our board of directors including majority of

our independent directors determines that our participation is in the best interest of our stockholders
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We may co-invest in property or DST only if majority of our directors including majority of our

independent directors not otherwise interested in the transaction approves of the transaction as being fair

competitive and commercially reasonable to us We anticipate that in the event we purchase tenant-in-common

or DST interest from Strategic Capital Exchange Entity generally we will purchase the interest at the Strategic

Capital Exchange Entitys cost before offering expenses and fees However if the price to us is in excess of the

cost of the asset paid by our affiliate majority of our directors including majority of our independent

directors not otherwise interested in the transaction must determine that substantial justification for such excess

exists and that such excess is reasonable In no event shall the cost to us of such asset exceed the greater of the

Strategic Capital Exchange Entitys cost or the current appraised value for the property or DST interest as

determined by an independent appraiser Although the Strategic Capital Exchange Entity will charge fees and

expenses to tenant-in-common participants and/or will sell the tenant-in-common or DST interests at price

above the price it paid for the property we will not pay any fees or expenses to the Strategic Capital Exchange

Entity We intend to pay our Advisor the acquisition fees and reimburse our Advisor for its
expenses to the same

extent as with other types of property acquisitions

All purchasers of co-tenancy interests including our Operating Partnership if it purchases co-tenancy

interests will be required to execute tenant-in-common agreement with the other purchasers of co-tenancy

interests in that particular property For DST investment each investor is required to execute trust agreement

If we purchase these co-ownership interests we will be subject to various risks associated with co-ownership

arrangements which are not otherwise present in real estate investments such as the risk that the interests of the

non-affiliated investors will become adverse to our interests

In any co-ownership arrangement our Sponsor the Strategic Capital Exchange Entity or the other investors

may have economic or business interests or goals that are or may become inconsistent with our business interests

or goals For instance our Sponsor will receive substantial fees in connection with its sponsoring of co

ownership arrangement although we will not be required to pay such fees and our participation in such

transaction likely would facilitate its consummation of the transactions For these reasons our Advisor may face

conflict in structuring the terms of the relationship between our interests and the interest of our Sponsor or the

Strategic Capital Exchange Entity As result agreements and transactions between the parties with respect to

the property will not have the benefit of arm s-length negotiation of the type normally conducted between

unrelated parties

Construction and Development Activities

From time to time we may construct and develop real estate assets or render services in connection with

these activities We may be able to reduce overall purchase costs by constructing and developing property

versus purchasing completed property Developing and constructing properties would however expose us to

risks such as cost overruns carrying costs of projects under construction or development availability and costs of

materials and labor weather conditions and government regulation To comply with the applicable requirements

under federal income tax law we intend to limit our construction and development activities to performing

oversight and review functions including reviewing the construction design proposals negotiating and

contracting for feasibility studies and supervising compliance with local state or federal laws and regulations

negotiating contracts overseeing construction and obtaining financing In addition we may use taxable REIT

subsidiaries or certain independent contractors to carry out these oversights and review functions We will retain

independent contractors to perform the actual construction work As of December 31 2012 we had one property

that was under construction in Canada

Government Regulations

Our business will be subject to many laws and governmental regulations Changes in these laws and

regulations or their interpretation by agencies and courts occur frequently
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Americans with Disabilities Act

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 or ADA all public accommodations and commercial

facilities are required to meet certain federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons These

requirements became effective in 1992 Complying with the ADA requirements could require us to remove

access barriers Failing to comply could result in the imposition of fines by the federal government or an award

of damages to private litigants Although we intend to acquire properties that substantially comply with these

requirements we may incur additional costs to comply with the ADA In addition number of additional

federal state and local laws may require us to modify any properties we purchase or may restrict further

renovations thereof with respect to access by disabled persons Additional legislation could impose financial

obligations or restrictions with respect to access by disabled persons Although we believe that these costs will

not have material adverse effect on us if required changes involve greater amount of expenditures than we

currently anticipate our ability to make expected distributions could be adversely affected

Environmental Matters

Under various federal state and local laws ordinances and regulations current or previous owner or

operator of real property may be held liable for the costs of removing or remediating hazardous or toxic

substances These laws often impose clean-up responsibility and liability without regard to whether the owner or

operator was responsible for or even knew of the presence of the hazardous or toxic substances The costs of

investigating removing or remediating these substances may be substantial and the presence of these substances

may adversely affect our ability to rent units or sell the property or to borrow using the property as collateral

and may expose us to liability resulting from any release of or exposure to these substances If we arrange for the

disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances at another location we may be liable for the costs of

removing or remediating these substances at the disposal or treatment facility whether or not the facility is

owned or operated by us We may be subject to common law claims by third parties based on damages and costs

resulting from environmental contamination emanating from site that we own or operate Certain

environmental laws also impose liability in connection with the handling of or exposure to asbestos-containing

materials pursuant to which third parties may seek recovery
from owners or operators of real properties for

personal injury associated with asbestos-containing materials and other hazardous or toxic substances

Other Regulations

The properties we acquire likely will be subject to various federal state and local regulatory requirements

such as zoning and state and local fire and life safety requirements Failure to comply with these requirements

could result in the imposition of fines by governmental authorities or awards of damages to private litigants We
intend to acquire properties that are in material compliance with all such regulatory requirements However we

cannot assure our stockholders that these requirements will not be changed or that new requirements will not be

imposed which would require significant unanticipated expenditures by us and could have an adverse effect on

our financial condition and results of operations

Disposition Policies

As of December 31 2012 we had not disposed of any of our self storage
facilities We generally intend to

hold each property we acquire for an extended period However we may sell property at any time if in our

judgment the sale of the property is in the best interests of our stockholders

The determination of whether particular property should be sold or otherwise disposed of will generally be

made after consideration of relevant factors including prevailing economic conditions other investment

opportunities and considerations specific to the condition value and financial performance of the property In

connection with our sales of properties we may lend the purchaser all or portion of the purchase price In these

instances our taxable income may exceed the cash received in the sale
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We may sell assets to third parties or to affiliates of our Advisor Our nominating and corporate governance

committee of our board of directors which is comprised solely of independent directors must review and

approve all transactions between us and our Advisor and its affiliates

Investment Limitations in Our Charter

Our charter places numerous limitations on us with respect to the manner in which we may invest our funds

most of which are required by various provisions of the Statement of Policy Regarding Real Estate Investment

Trusts published by the North American Securities Administrators Association NASAA REIT Guidelines So

long as our shares are not listed on national securities exchange the NASAA REIT Guidelines apply to us and

we will not

Invest in equity securities unless majority of our directors including majority of our independent

directors not otherwise interested in the transaction approve such investment as being fair competitive

and commercially reasonable

Invest in commodities or commodity futures contracts except for futures contracts when used solely

for the purpose of hedging in connection with our ordinary business of investing in real estate assets

and mortgages

Invest in real estate contracts of sale otherwise known as land sale contracts unless the contract is in

recordable form and is appropriately recorded in the chain of title

Make or invest in mortgage loans unless an appraisal is obtained concerning the underlying property

except for those mortgage loans insured or guaranteed by government or government agency In

cases where our independent directors determine and in all cases in which the transaction is with any

of our directors or our Advisor and its affiliates we will obtain an appraisal from an independent

appraiser We will maintain such appraisal in our records for at least five years and it will be available

to our stockholders for inspection and duplication We will also obtain mortgagees or owners title

insurance policy as to the priority of the mortgage or condition of the title

Make or invest in mortgage loans including construction loans on any one property if the aggregate

amount of all mortgage loans on such property would exceed an amount equal to 85% of the appraised

value of such property as determined by an appraisal unless substantial justification exists for

exceeding such limit because of the presence of other loan underwriting criteria

Make or invest in mortgage loans that are subordinate to any mortgage or equity interest of any of our

directors our Advisor or their respective affiliates

Make investments in unimproved property or indebtedness secured by deed of trust or mortgage loans

on unimproved property in excess of 10% of our total assets

Issue equity securities on deferred payment basis or other similararrangement

Issue debt securities in the absence of adequate cash flow to cover debt service

Issue equity securities that are assessable after we have received the consideration for which our board

of directors authorized their issuance

Issue redeemable securities redeemable solely at the option of the holder which restriction has no

effect on our ability to implement our share redemption program

When applicable grant warrants or options to purchase shares to our Advisor or its affiliates or to

officers or directors affiliated with our Advisor except on the same terms as options or warrants that are

sold to the general public Further the amount of the options or warrants cannot exceed an amount

equal to 10% of outstanding shares on the date of grant of the warrants and options

Lend money to our directors or to our Advisor or its affiliates except for certain mortgage loans

described above
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Changes in Investment Policies and Limitations

Our charter requires that our independent directors review our investment policies at least annually to

determine that the policies we are following are in the best interests of our stockholders Each determination and

the basis therefor is required to be set forth in the applicable meeting minutes The methods of implementing our

investment policies may also vary as new investment techniques are developed The methods of implementing

our investment objectives and policies except as otherwise provided in our charter may be altered by majority

of our directors including majority of our independent directors without the approval of our stockholders The

determination by our board of directors that it is no longer in our best interests to continue to be qualified as

REIT shall require the concurrence of two-thirds of the board of directors Investment policies and limitations

specifically set forth in our charter however may only be amended by vote of the stockholders holding

majority of our outstanding shares

Investments in Mortgages

As of December 31 2012 we had not invested in any mortgages While we intend to emphasize equity real

estate investments and hence operate as what is generally referred to as an equity REIT as opposed to

mortgage REIT we may invest in first or second mortgage loans mezzanine loans secured by an interest in the

entity owning the real estate or other similar real estate loans consistent with our REIT status We may make

such loans to developers in connection with construction and redevelopment of self storage facilities Such

mortgages may or may not be insured or guaranteed by the Federal Housing Administration the Veterans

Benefits Administration or another third party We may also invest in participating or convertible mortgages if

our directors conclude that we and our stockholders may benefit from the cash flow or any appreciation in the

value of the subject property Such mortgages are similar to equity participation

Affiliate Transaction Policy

During 2010 we increased our ownership in Self Storage DST DST sponsored by our Sponsor from

3.05% to 19.75% We subsequently acquired the remaining interests such that we owned 100% of the interests

as of February 2011 In 2011 and 2012 we increased our preferred equity investment in USA Hawthorne LLC

the entity which has direct interest in net leased industrial property Hawthorne property in California with

356000 rentable square feet leased to single tenant by approximately $0.7 million to approximately $6.9

million During 2012 we acquired all of the interests in Madison County Self Storage DST DST sponsored by

our Sponsor such that we owned 100% of the interests as of December 28 2012 See Note of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this report We may purchase additional properties from one or

more affiliates of our Advisor in the future Our board of directors has established nominating and corporate

governance committee which will review and approve all matters the board believes may involve conflict of

interest This committee is composed solely of independent directors This committee of our board of directors

will approve all transactions between us and our Advisor and its affiliates

Investment Company Act of 1940 and Certain Other Policies

We intend to operate in such manner that we will not be subject to regulation under the Investment

Company Act of 1940 or the 1940 Act Our Advisor will continually review our investment activity to attempt to

ensure that we do not come within the application of the 1940 Act Among other things our Advisor will attempt

to monitor the proportion of our portfolio that is placed in various investments so that we do not come within the

definition of an investment company under the 1940 Act If at any time the character of our investments could

cause us to be deemed as an investment company for purposes of the 1940 Act we will take all necessary actions

to attempt to ensure that we are not deemed to be an investment company In addition we do not intend to

underwrite securities of other issuers or actively trade in loans or other investments

Subject to the restrictions we must follow in order to qualify to be taxed as REIT we may make

investments other than as previously described although we do not currently intend to do so We have authority

to purchase or otherwise reacquire our common shares or any of our other securities We have no present
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intention of repurchasing any of our common shares except pursuant to our share redemption program and we

would only take such action in conformity with applicable federal and state laws and the requirements for

qualifying as REIT under the Code

Employees

We have no paid employees The employees of our Advisor provide management acquisition advisory and

certain administrative services for us

Competition

The extent of competition in the market area depends significantly on local market conditions The primary

factors upon which competition in the self storage industry is based are location rental rates suitability of the

propertys design and the manner in which the property is operated and marketed We believe we compete

successfully on these bases

Many of our competitors are larger and have substantially greater resources than we do Such competitors

may among other possible advantages be capable of paying higher prices for acquisitions and obtaining

financing on better terms than us

Industry Segments

We internally evaluate all of our properties and interests therein as one industry segment and accordingly

we do not report segment information

Geographic Information

Our Canadian real estate assets represent approximately $34.2 million or approximately 6.0% of our net

carrying value of real estate assets as of December 31 2012 For the year ended December 31 2012

approximately $1.7 million or approximately 2.6% of our revenues were generated by our Canadian real estate

assets As of December 31 2012 one of our Canadian real estate assets is in the construction stage and is not yet

generating revenue

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Below are risks and uncertainties that could adversely affect our operations that we believe are material to

stockholders Other risks and uncertainties may exist that we do not consider material based on the information

currently available to us at this time

Risks Related to this Offering and an Investment in Strategic Storage Trust Inc

We have limited established financing sources and we cannot assure our stockholders that we will be

successful in the marketplace

We were incorporated in August 2007 and commenced active business operations on May 22 2008 As of

December 31 2012 we owned 110 properties in 17 states and Canada Our stockholders should consider our

prospects in light of the risks uncertainties and difficulties frequently encountered by companies that are in

similar stage of development

To be successful in this market we must among other things

identify and acquire investments that further our investment objectives

increase awareness of the Strategic Storage Trust Inc name within the investment products market
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expand and maintain our network of participating broker-dealers

attract integrate motivate and retain qualified personnel to manage our day-to-day operations

respond to competition for our targeted real estate properties and other investments as well as for

potential investors and

continue to build and expand our operational structure to support our business

We cannot guarantee that we will succeed in achieving these goals and our failure to do so could cause

stockholders to lose portion of their investment

We have incurred losses to date have an accumulated deficit and we will not be profitable in 2013

We incurred net losses of approximately $19.0 million $21.4 million and $12.8 million for the fiscal years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Our accumulated deficits were approximately $61.9

million $43.0 million and $21.6 million as of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Given that we

are still in our fundraising and acquisition stage of development we will not be profitable in 2013

To date we have paid majority of our distributions from sources other than cash flow from operations

therefore we will have fewer funds available for the acquisition of properties and our stockholders overall

return may be reduced

In the event we do not have enough cash from operations to fund our distributions we may borrow issue

additional securities or sell assets in order to fund the distributions or make the disthbutions out of net proceeds

from the Offering We are not prohibited from undertaking such activities by our charter bylaws or investment

policies and we may use an unlimited amount from any source to pay our distributions Through December 31

2012 we had received aggregate gross offering proceeds of approximately $137 million from the sale of

approximately 13.7 million shares in our Offering and aggregate gross offering proceeds of approximately $426

million from the sale of approximately 42.7 million shares in our Initial Offering and Offering For the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2009 we funded 100% of our distributions using proceeds from our Initial

Offering For the year ended December 31 2010 we funded 6.5% of our distributions using cash flow from

operations and 93.5% using proceeds from our Initial Offering For the year
ended December 31 2011 we

funded 13.3% of our distributions using cash flow from operations and 86.7% using proceeds from our Initial

Offering and Offering For the year ended December 31 2012 we funded 33.9% of our distributions using cash

flow from operations and 66.1% using proceeds from our Initial Offering and Offering If we continue to pay

distributions from sources other than cash flow from operations we will have fewer funds available for acquiring

properties which may reduce our stockholders overall returns

We may be unable to pay or maintain cash distributions or increase distributions over time

There are many factors that can affect the availability and timing of cash distributions to stockholders

During the term of the Offering distributions will be based principally on distribution expectations of our

potential investors and cash available from our operations The amount of cash available for distribution will be

affected by many factors such as our ability to buy properties as offering proceeds become available the yields

on securities of other real estate programs that we invest in and our operating expense levels as well as many

other variables Actual cash available for distribution may vary substantially from estimates We cannot assure

our stockholders that we will be able to pay or maintain distributions or that distributions will increase over time

nor can we give any assurance that rents from the properties will increase that the securities we buy will increase

in value or provide constant or increased distributions over time or that future acquisitions of real properties will

increase our cash available for distribution to stockholders Our actual results may differ significantly from the

assumptions used by our board of directors in establishing the distribution rate to stockholders
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In determining our estimated net asset value per share we primarily relied upon valuation of our

portfolio of properties as of December 31 2011 Valuations and appraisals of our properties are estimates of

fair value and may not necessarily correspond to realizable value upon the sale of such properties therefore

our estimated net asset value per share may not reflect the amount that would be realized upon sale of each

of our properties

For the purposes of calculating the estimated net asset value per share an independent third party appraiser

valued our properties as of December 31 2011 The valuation methodologies used to value our properties

involved certain subjective judgments Ultimate realization of the value of an asset depends to great extent on

economic and other conditions beyond our control and the control of our advisor and independent appraiser

Further valuations do not necessarily represent the price at which an asset would sell since market prices of

assets can only be determined by negotiation between willing buyer and seller Therefore the valuations of our

properties and our investments in real estate related assets may not correspond to the timely realizable value upon

sale of those assets Because the price our stockholders will pay for shares in this offering is primarily based on

the estimated net asset value per share our stockholders may pay more than realizable value when they purchase

shares or receive less than realizable value for their investment when they sell shares

Our share price is primarily based on the estimated per share value of our shares but also based upon

subjective judgments assumptions and opinions by management which may or may not turn out to be correct

Therefore our share price may not reflect the precise amount that might be paid to stockholder for their

shares in market transaction

Our current share price is primarily based on our net asset value
per share which was based on an estimate

of the value of our propertiesconsisting principally of illiquid commercial real estateas of December 31

2011 The valuation methodologies used by the independent appraiser retained by our board of directors to

estimate the value of our wholly-owned self storage facilities as of December 31 2011 involved subjective

judgments assumptions and opinions which may or may not turn out to be correct In addition our board of

directors based our share price primarily on the estimated net asset value per share which although heavily

reliant upon the independent appraisal involved certain subjective judgments assumptions and opinions of

management As result our share price may not reflect the precise amount that might be paid to for our

stockholders shares in market transaction

If we through our Advisori are unable to find suitable investments then we may not be able to achieve

our investment objectives or pay distributions

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives and to pay distributions is dependent upon the performance

of our Advisor in selecting our investments and arranging financing As of December 31 2012 we owned 110

properties in 17 states and Canada Our stockholders will essentially have no opportunity to evaluate the terms of

transactions or other economic or financial data concerning our investments prior to the time we make them Our

stockholders must rely entirely on the management ability of our Advisor and the oversight of our board of

directors We cannot be sure that our Advisor will be successful in obtaining suitable investments on financially

attractive terms or that if it makes investments on our behalf our objectives will be achieved If we are unable to

find suitable investments we will hold the proceeds of the Offering in an interest-bearing account or invest the

proceeds in short-term investment-grade investments In such an event our ability to pay distributions to our

stockholders would be adversely affected

We may suffer from delays in locating suitable investments which could adversely affect our ability to

make distributions and the value of our stockholders investments

We could suffer from delays in locating suitable investments particularly as result of our reliance on our

Advisor at times when management of our Advisor is simultaneously seeking to locate suitable investments for

other affiliated programs Delays we encounter in the selection acquisition and development of income

producing properties are likely to adversely affect our ability to make distributions and may also adversely affect
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the value of our stockholders investments In such event we may pay all or substantial portion of our

distributions from the proceeds of the Offering or from borrowings in anticipation of future cash flow which

may constitute return of our stockholders capital We are not prohibited from undertaking such activities by

our charter bylaws or investment policies We have established no maximum of distributions to be paid from

such funds Distributions from the proceeds of the Offering or from borrowings also could reduce the amount of

capital we ultimately invest in properties This in turn would reduce the value of our stockholders investments

In particular if we acquire properties prior to the start of construction or during the early stages of construction

it will typically take several months to complete construction and rent available storage space Therefore our

stockholders could suffer delays in the receipt of cash distributions attributable to those particular properties

If our Advisor or Property Manager loses or is unable to obtain key personnel our ability to implement

our investment objectives could be delayed or hindered which could adversely affect our ability to make

distributions and the value of our stockholders investments

Our success depends to significant degree upon the contributions of certain of our executive officers and

other key personnel of our Advisor and Property Manager including Michael Schwartz Paula Mathews

Michael McClure Ken Morrison and Wayne Johnson each of whom would be difficult to replace Our

Advisor does not have an employment agreement with any of these key personnel and we cannot guarantee that

all or any particular one will remain affiliated with us and/or our Advisor If any of our key personnel were to

cease their affiliation with our Advisor our operating results could suffer Further we do not intend to separately

maintain key person life insurance on any of these individuals We believe that our future success depends in

large part upon our Advisors ability to hire and retain highly skilled managerial operational and marketing

personnel Competition for such personnel is intense and we cannot assure our stockholders that our Advisor

will be successful in attracting and retaining such skilled personnel If our Advisor loses or is unable to obtain the

services of key personnel or does not establish or maintain appropriate strategic relationships our ability to

implement our investment strategies could be delayed or hindered and the value of our stockholders

investments may decline

Our ability to operate profitably will depend upon the ability of our Advisor to efficiently manage our day-

to-day operations and the ability of our Property Manager to effectively manage our properties

We will rely on our Advisor to manage our business and assets Our Advisor will make all decisions with

respect to our day-to-day operations In addition we will rely on our Property Manager to effectively manage our

properties Thus the success of our business will depend in large part on the ability of our Advisor and Property

Manager to manage our operations Any adversity experienced by our Advisor or our Property Manager or

problems in our relationship with our Advisor or Property Manager could adversely impact our operations and

consequently our cash flow and ability to make distributions to our stockholders

We do not own or control the intellectual property rights to the SmartStop Self Storage brand and

other trademarks and intellectual property used by us in connection with our self storage facilities therefore

we could potentially lose revenues and incur significant costs if we cease to operate under this brand

Strategic Storage Holdings LLC the parent company of our Advisor and Property Manager owns and

controls the intellectual property rights to the SmartStop Self Storage brand the website

www.smartstopselfstorage.com and other intellectual property currently being used by us in connection with our

self storage properties We are currently authorized to use this brand and other intellectual property pursuant to

license In the event that we ever cease to operate under this brand which has garnered substantial value due to

its goodwill and reputation associated therewith we may lose market share and customers which could result in

lost revenues In addition we could incur significant costs to change the signage and otherwise change our brand
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We may loan portion of the proceeds of the Offering to fund the development or purchase of self

storage facilities and we may invest in mortgage or other loans but if these loans are not fully repaid the

resulting losses could reduce the expected cash available for distribution to our stockholders and the value of

our stockholders investments

We will use the net proceeds of the Offering primarily to purchase self storage facilities to repay
debt

financing that we may incur when acquiring properties and to pay real estate commissions acquisition fees and

acquisition expenses relating to the selection and acquisition of properties including amounts paid to our Advisor

and its affiliates In addition we may loan portion of the net offering proceeds to entities developing or

acquiring self storage facilities including affiliates of our Advisor subject to the limitations in our charter We

may also invest in first or second mortgage loans mezzanine loans secured by an interest in the entity owning the

real estate or other similar real estate loans consistent with our REIT status We may also invest in participating

or convertible mortgages if our directors conclude that we and our stockholders may benefit from the cash flow

or any appreciation in the value of the subject property There can be no assurance that these loans will be repaid

to us in part or in full in accordance with the terms of the loan or that we will receive interest payments on the

outstanding balance of the loan We anticipate that these loans will be secured by mortgages on the underlying

properties but in the event of foreclosure there can be no assurances that we will recover the outstanding

balance of the loan If there are defaults under these loans we may not be able to repossess and sell the

underlying properties quickly The resulting time delay and associated costs could reduce the value of our

investment in the defaulted loans An action to foreclose on property securing mortgage loan is regulated by

state statutes and regulations and is subject to many of the delays and expenses of other lawsuits if the defendant

raises defenses or counterclaims In the event of default by mortgagor these restrictions among other things

may impede our ability to foreclose on or sell the mortgaged property or to obtain proceeds sufficient to repay all

amounts due to us on the mortgage loan

Certain of our stockholders in the State of Washington may be entitled to rescission of their respective

investments in our shares

In the third quarter of 2012 we discovered that due to clerical error we exceeded our registration amount

in the State of Washington during three month period in 2012 Upon this discovery we immediately took

action to increase our registration amount however stockholders who purchased shares in excess of the amount

then-registered in the State of Washington may be entitled to rescission of their respective investment in our

shares If any of these Washington stockholders seek rescission we will be required to redeem their shares

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest

Our Advisor Property Manager and their officers and certain of our key personnel will face competing

demands relating to their time and this may cause our operating results to suffer

Our Advisor Property Manager and their officers and certain of our key personnel and their respective

affiliates are key personnel advisors managers and sponsors of other real estate programs having investment

objectives and legal and financial obligations similar to ours and may have other business interests as well

Because these
persons have competing demands on their time and resources they may have conflicts of interest

in allocating their time between our business and these other activities During times of intense activity in other

programs and ventures they may devote less time and fewer resources to our business than is necessary or

appropriate If this occurs the returns on our stockholders investments may suffer

Our officers and one of our directors face conflicts of interest related to the positions they hold with

affiliated entities which could hinder our ability to successfully implement our investment objectives and to

generate returns to our stockholders

Our executive officers and one of our directors are also officers of our Advisor our Property Manager and

other affiliated entities As result these individuals owe fiduciary duties to these other entities and their owners

which fiduciary duties may conflict with the duties that they owe to our stockholders and us Their loyalties to
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these other entities could result in actions or inactions that are detrimental to our business which could harm the

implementation of our investment objectives Conflicts with our business and interests are most likely to arise

from involvement in activities related to allocation of new investments and management time and services

between us and the other entities our purchase of properties from or sale of properties to affiliated entities

the timing and terms of the investment in or sale of an asset development of our properties by affiliates

investments with affiliates of our Advisor compensation to our Advisor and our relationship with our

dealer manager and Property Manager If we do not successfully implement our investment objectives we may

be unable to generate cash needed to make distributions to our stockholders and to maintain or increase the value

of our assets

Our Advisor wiliface conflicts of interest relating to the purchase of properties and such conflicts may

not be resolved in our favor which could adversely affect our investment opportunities

We may be buying properties at the same time as one or more of the other programs managed by officers

and key personnel of our Advisor Our Advisor and its affiliates are actively involved in 11 other real estate

programs three of which invest in or own self storage properties that may compete with us or otherwise have

similarbusiness interests Our Advisor and our Property Manager will have conflicts of interest in allocating

potential properties acquisition expenses management time services and other functions between various

existing enterprises or future enterprises with which they may be or become involved There is risk that our

Advisor will choose property that provides lower returns to us than property purchased by another program

sponsored by our Sponsor We cannot be sure that officers and key personnel acting on behalf of our Advisor and

on behalf of these other programs will act in our best interests when deciding whether to allocate any particular

property to us Such conflicts that are not resolved in our favor could result in reduced level of distributions we

may be able to pay to our stockholders and reduction in the value of our stockholders investments If our

Advisor or its affiliates breach their legal or other obligations or duties to us or do not resolve conflicts of

interest in the appropriate manner we may not meet our investment objectives which could reduce the expected

cash available for distribution to our stockholders and the value of our stockholders investments

We may face conflict of interest if we purchase properties from affiliates of our Advisor

In the past we completed two mergers with private real estate investment trusts sponsored by our Sponsor

During 2010 we increased our ownership from 3.05% to 19.75% in Self Storage DST DST sponsored by our

Sponsor We subsequently acquired the remaining interests in Self Storage DST such that we owned 100% of

the interests as of February 2011 In 2012 we also acquired all of the interests in Madison County Self Storage

DST DST sponsored by our Sponsor such that we owned 100% of the interests as of December 28 2012 We

may purchase properties from one or more affiliates of our Advisor in the future conflict of interest may exist

if such acquisition occurs The business interests of our Advisor and its affiliates may be adverse to or to the

detriment of our interests Additionally the prices we pay to affiliates of our Advisor for our properties may be

equal to or in excess of the prices paid by them plus the costs incurred by them relating to the acquisition and

financing of the properties These prices will not be the subject of arms-length negotiations which could mean

that the acquisitions may be on terms less favorable to us than those negotiated in an arm s-length transaction

Even though we will use an independent third-party appraiser to determine fair market value when acquiring

properties from our Advisor and its affiliates we may pay more for particular properties than we would have in

an arm s-length transaction which would reduce our cash available for investment in other properties or

distribution to our stockholders

Furthermore because any agreement that we enter into with affiliates of our Advisor will not be negotiated

in an arm s-length transaction and as result of the affiliation between our Advisor and its affiliates our Advisor

may be reluctant to enforce the agreements against such entities Our nominating and corporate governance

committee of our board of directors approved all of the transactions discussed above and will approve all future

transactions between us and our Advisor and its affiliates

21



Our Advisor will face conflicts of interest relating to the incentive fee structure under our advisory

agreement which could result in actions that are not necessarily in the long-term best interests of our

stockholders

Pursuant to our advisory agreement our Advisor and its affiliates will perform services for us in connection

with the offer and sale of our shares and the selection acquisition and management of our properties Our

Advisor will be entitled to fees that are structured in manner intended to provide incentives to our Advisor to

perform in our best interests and in the best interests of our stockholders The amount of such compensation has

not been determined as result of arm s-length negotiations and such amounts may be greater than otherwise

would be payable to independent third parties However because our Advisor does not maintain significant

equity interest in us and is entitled to receive substantial minimum compensation regardless of performance our

Advisors interests will not be wholly aligned with those of our stockholders In that regard our Advisor could be

motivated to recommend riskier or more speculative investments in order for us to generate the specified levels

of performance or sales proceeds that would entitle our Advisor to fees In addition our Advisors entitlement to

receive fees upon the sale of our assets and to participate in sale proceeds could result in our Advisor

recommending sales of our investments at the earliest possible time at which such sales would produce the level

of return that would entitle our Advisor to compensation from the sales even if continued ownership of those

investments might be in our best long-term interest

Our advisory agreement will require us to pay performance-based fee to our Advisor in the event that we

terminate our Advisor prior to the listing of our shares for trading on an exchange or absent such listing in

respect of its participation in net sale proceeds To avoid paying this fee our independent directors may decide

against terminating the advisory agreement prior to our listing of our shares or disposition of our investments

even if but for the performance fee termination of the advisory agreement would be in our best interest In

addition the requirement to pay the fee to our Advisor at termination could cause us to make different

investment or disposition decisions than we would otherwise make in order to satisfy our obligation to pay the

fee to the terminated Advisor

At the time it becomes
necessary

for our board of directors to determine which liquidity event if any is in

the best interests of us and our stockholders our Advisor may not agree with the decision of our board as to

which liquidity event if any we should pursue If there is substantial difference in the amount of subordinated

fees our Advisor may receive for each liquidity event our Advisor may prefer liquidity event with higher

subordinated fees If our board of directors decides to list our shares for trading on an exchange our board may
also decide to merge with our Advisor in anticipation of the listing process Such merger may result in substantial

compensation to our Advisor which may create certain conflicts of interest

Our Advisor will face conflicts of interest relating to joint ventures that we may form with affiliates of our

Advisor which conflicts could result in disproportionate benefit to other joint venture partners at our

expense

We may enter into joint ventures with other programs sponsored by our Sponsor for the acquisition

development or improvement of properties Our Advisor may have conflicts of interest in determining which

program should enter into any particular joint venture agreement The co-venturer may have economic or

business interests or goals that are or may become inconsistent with our business interests or goals In addition

our Advisor may face conflict in structuring the terms of the relationship between our interests and the interest

of the affiliated co-venturer and in managing the joint venture Since our Advisor and its affiliates will control

both the affiliated co-venturer and to certain extent us agreements and transactions between the co-venturers

with respect to any such joint venture will not have the benefit of arms-length negotiation of the type normally

conducted between unrelated co-venturers which may result in the co-venturer receiving benefits greater than

the benefits that we receive In addition we may assume liabilities related to the joint venture that exceed the

percentage of our investment in the joint venture and this could reduce the returns on our stockholders

investments
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There is no separate counselfor us and our affiliates which could result in conflicts of interest

Baker Donelson Bearman Caidwell Berkowitz PC Baker Donelson acts as legal counsel to us and

also represents our Sponsor Advisor and some of their affiliates There is possibility in the future that the

interests of the various parties may become adverse and under the code of professional responsibility of the legal

profession Baker Donelson may be precluded from representing any one or all of such parties If any situation

arises in which our interests appear to be in conflict with those of our Advisor or its affiliates additional counsel

may be retained by one or more of the parties to assure that their interests are adequately protected Moreover

should conflict of interest not be readily apparent Baker Donelson may inadvertently act in derogation of the

interest of the parties which could affect our ability to meet our investment objectives

Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure

The limit on the number of shares person may own may discourage takeover that could otherwise

result in premiumprice to our stockholders

In order for us to qualify as REIT no more than 50% of our outstanding stock may be beneficially owned

directly or indirectly by five or fewer individuals including certain types of entities at any time during the last

half of each taxable year To ensure that we do not fail to qualify as REIT under this test our charter restricts

ownership by one person or entity to no more than 9.8% in value or number whichever is more restrictive of any

class of our outstanding stock This restriction may have the effect of delaying deferring or preventing change

in control of our company including an extraordinary transaction such as merger tender offer or sale of all or

substantially all of our assets that might provide premium price for holders of our common stock

Our charter permits our board of directors to issue stock with terms that may subordinate the rights of

common stockholders or discourage third party from acquiring us in manner that might result in

premiumprice to our stockholders

Our charter permits our board of directors to issue up to 900000000 shares of capital stock In addition our

board of directors without any action by our stockholders may amend our charter from time to time to increase

or decrease the aggregate number of shares or the number of shares of any class or series of stock that we have

authority to issue Our board of directors may classify or reclassify any unissued common stock or preferred

stock and establish the preferences conversion or other rights voting powers restrictions limitations as to

distributions qualifications and terms or conditions of redemption of any such stock Thus our board of directors

could authorize the issuance of preferred stock with terms and conditions that could have priority as to

distributions and amounts payable upon liquidation over the rights of the holders of our common stock Preferred

stock could also have the effect of delaying deferring or preventing change in control of our company

including an extraordinary transaction such as merger tender offer or sale of all or substantially all of our

assets that might provide premium price for holders of our common stock

We will not be afforded the protection of Maryland law relating to business combinations

Under Maryland law business combinations between Maryland corporation and an interested

stockholder or an affiliate of an interested stockholder are prohibited for five years after the most recent date on

which the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder These business combinations include

merger consolidation share exchange or in circumstances specified in the statute an asset transfer or issuance

or reclassification of equity securities An interested stockholder is defined as

any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of the corporations shares or

an affiliate or associate of the corporation who at any time within the two-year period prior to the date

in question was the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting power of the then outstanding

voting stock of the corporation
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These prohibitions are intended to prevent change of control by interested stockholders who do not have the

support of our board of directors Since our articles of incorporation as amended contain limitations on

ownership of 9.8% or more of our common stock we opted out of the business combinations statute in our

charter Therefore we will not be afforded the protections of this statute and accordingly there is no guarantee

that the ownership limitations in our articles of incorporation would provide the same measure of protection as

the business combinations statute and prevent an undesired change of control by an interested stockholder

Our stockholders investment returns may be reduced if we are required to register as an investment

company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 If we become an unregistered investment company we

will not be able to continue our business

We do not intend to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 1940

Act Currently our investments in real estate will represent the substantial majority of our total asset mix which

would not subject us to the 1940 Act In order to maintain an exemption from regulation under the 1940 Act we

must engage primarily in the business of buying real estate and these investments must be made within year

after the Offering ends If we are unable to invest significant portion of the proceeds of the Offering in

properties within one year of the termination of the Offering we may avoid being required to register as an

investment company by temporarily investing any unused proceeds in government securities with low returns

which would reduce the cash available for distribution to investors and possibly lower our stockholders returns

To maintain compliance with our 1940 Act exemption we may be unable to sell assets we would otherwise

want to sell and may need to sell assets we would otherwise wish to retain In addition we may be required to

acquire additional incomeor loss-generating assets that we might not otherwise acquire or forego opportunities

to acquire interests in companies that we would otherwise want to acquire If we are required to register as an

investment company but fail to do so we would be prohibited from engaging in our business and criminal and

civil actions could be brought against us In addition our contracts would be unenforceable unless court

required enforcement and court could appoint receiver to take control of us and liquidate our business

Our stockholders are bound by the majority vote on matters on which our stockholders are entitled to vote

and therefore each stockholders vote on particular matter may be superseded by the vote of other

stockholders

Our stockholders may vote on certain matters at any annual or special meeting of stockholders including the

election of directors However each stockholder will be bound by the majority vote on matters requiring approval

of majority of the stockholders even if the stockholder does not vote with the majority on any such matter

If one of our stockholders does not agree with the decisions of our board of directors the stockholder

only has limited control over changes in our policies and operations and may not be able to change such

policies and operations except as provided for in our charter and under applicable law

Our board of directors determines our major policies including our policies regarding investments

financing growth REIT qualification and distributions Our board of directors may amend or revise these and

other policies without vote of our stockholders Under the Maryland General Corporation Law and our charter

our stockholders have right to vote only on the following

the election or removal of directors

any amendment of our charter including change in our primary investment objectives except that

our board of directors may amend our charter without stockholder approval to increase or decrease the

aggregate number of our shares to increase or decrease the number of our shares of any class or series

that we have the authority to issue or to classify or reclassify any unissued shares by setting or

changing the preferences conversion or other rights restrictions limitations as to distributions

qualifications or terms and conditions of redemption of such shares provided however that any such

amendment does not adversely affect the rights preferences and privileges of our stockholders
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our liquidation or dissolution and

any merger consolidation or sale or other disposition of substantially all of our assets

All other matters are subject to the discretion of our board of directors Therefore our stockholders are limited in

their ability to change our policies and operations

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to recover claims against our off kers directors and our Advisor

are limited which could reduce our stockholders and our recovery against them they cause us to incur losses

Maryland law provides that director has no liability in that capacity if he or she performs his or her duties

in good faith in manner he or she reasonably believes to be in the corporations best interests and with the care

that an ordinarily prudent person
in like position would use under similar circumstances Our charter in the

case of our directors officers employees and agents and our advisory agreement in the case of our Advisor

requires us to indemnify our directors officers employees and agents and our Advisor and its affiliates for

actions taken by them in good faith and without negligence or misconduct Additionally our charter limits the

liability of our directors and officers for monetary damages to the maximum extent permitted under Maryland

law As result we and our stockholders may have more limited rights against our directors officers employees

and agents and our Advisor and its affiliates than might otherwise exist under common law which could reduce

our stockholders and our recovery against them In addition we may be obligated to fund the defense costs

incurred by our directors officers employees and agents or our Advisor in some cases which would decrease the

cash otherwise available for distribution to our stockholders

Our board of directors may change any of our investment objectives including our focus on self storage

facilities

Our board of directors may change any of our investment objectives including our focus on self storage

facilities If our stockholders do not agree
with decision of our board to change any of our investment

objectives our stockholders only have limited control over such changes Additionally we cannot assure our

stockholders that we would be successful in attaining any of these investment objectives which may adversely

impact our financial performance and ability to make distributions to our stockholders

Our stockholders interests in us will be diluted as we issue additional shares and upon purchasing

shares our stockholders investments may immediately be diluted based on the net book value per share of our

common stock

Our stockholders will not have preemptive rights to any shares issued by us in the future Subject to any

limitations set forth under Maryland law our board of directors may increase the number of authorized shares of

stock currently 900000000 shares increase or decrease the number of shares of any class or series of stock

designated or reclassify any unissued shares without the necessity of obtaining stockholder approval All such

shares may be issued in the discretion of our board of directors Therefore as we sell shares in the Offering or

sell additional shares in the future including those issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan sell

securities that are convertible into shares of our common stock issue shares of our common stock in private

offering of securities to institutional investors issue shares of our common stock upon the exercise of the

options granted to our independent directors issue shares to our Advisor its successors or assigns in

payment of an outstanding fee obligation as set forth under our advisory agreement or issue shares of our

common stock in merger or to sellers of properties acquired by us in connection with an exchange of limited

partnership interests of our Operating Partnership existing stockholders and investors purchasing shares in the

Offering will experience dilution of their equity investment in us Because the limited partnership interests of our

Operating Partnership may in the discretion of our board of directors be exchanged for shares of our common

stock any merger exchange or conversion between our Operating Partnership and another entity ultimately

could result in the issuance of substantial number of shares of our common stock thereby diluting the

percentage ownership interest of other stockholders Because of these and other reasons described in this Risk

Factors section our stockholders should not expect to be able to own significant percentage of our shares
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In addition the net book value per share of our common stock was approximately $5.48 as of December 31

2012 as compared to our offering price per share of $10.79 as of December 31 2012 Therefore upon purchase

of our shares our stockholders will be immediately diluted based on the net book value Net book value takes

into account deduction of selling commissions the dealer manager fee and estimated offering expenses paid by

us and is calculated to include depreciated tangible assets deferred financing costs and amortized identified

intangible assets which include in-place market leases Net book value is not an estimate of net asset value or of

the market value or other value of our common stock

If we merge with our Advisorj the percentage of our outstanding common stock owned by our other

stockholders could be reduced and we could incur additional costs associated with being self-administered

In the future our board of directors may consider internalizing the functions performed for us by our

Advisor One method by which we could internalize these functions would be to merge with our Advisor and

issue shares to our Advisor as merger consideration merger with our Advisor could result in dilution of our

stockholders interests and could reduce earnings per share and funds from operations per share Internalization

transactions have also in some cases been the subject of litigation Even if these claims are without merit we

could be forced to spend significant amounts of money defending claims which would reduce the amount of

funds available for us to invest in properties or other investments and to pay distributions These factors could

have material adverse effect on our results of operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions

Payment offees to our Advisor and its affiliates will reduce cash available for investment and

distribution

Our Advisor and its affiliates will perform services for us in connection with the offer and sale of our shares

the selection and acquisition of our investments and the management of our properties They will be paid

substantial fees for these services which will reduce the amount of cash available for investment in properties or

distribution to stockholders

We are uncertain of our sources of debt or equity forfunding our future capital needs If we cannot

obtain funding on acceptable terms our ability to make necessary capital improvements to our properties pay

other expenses or expand our business may be impaired or delayed

The gross proceeds of the Offering will be used to purchase real estate investments and to pay various

commissions fees and expenses In addition in order to continue to qualify as REIT we generally must

distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our taxable income each year excluding capital gains Because of

this distribution requirement it is not likely that we will be able to fund significant portion of our future capital

needs from retained earnings We have not identified any sources of debt or equity for future funding and such

sources of funding may not be available to us on favorable terms or at all If we do not have access to sufficient

funding in the future we may not be able to make
necessary capital improvements to our properties pay other

expenses or expand our business

Risks Related to the Self Storage Industry

Because we are focused on the self storage industry our rental revenues will be significantly influenced

by demand for self storage space generally and decrease in such demand would likely have greater

adverse effect on our rental revenues than if we owned more diversified real estate portfolio

Because our portfolio of properties will consist primarily of self storage facilities we are subject to risks

inherent in investments in single industry decrease in the demand for self storage space would likely have

greater adverse effect on our rental revenues than if we owned more diversified real estate portfolio Demand

for self storage space has been and could be adversely affected by weakness in the national regional and local

economies and changes in supply of or demand for similar or competing self storage facilities in an area To the

extent that any of these conditions occur they are likely to affect market rents for self storage space which could
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cause decrease in our rental revenue Any such decrease could impair our ability to make distributions to our

stockholders We do not expect to invest in other real estate or businesses to hedge against the risk that industry

trends might decrease the profitability of our self storage-related investments

We will face sign ficant competition in the self storage industry which may increase the cost of

acquisitions or developments or impede our ability to retain customers or re-let space when existing customers

vacate

We will face intense competition in
every

market in which we purchase self storage facilities We will

compete with numerous national regional and local developers owners and operators in the self storage

industry including other REITs some of which own or may in the future own facilities similar to or in the same

markets as the self storage properties we acquire and some of which will have greater capital resources greater

cash reserves less demanding rules governing distributions to stockholders and greater ability to borrow funds

to acquire facilities In addition due to the low cost of each individual self storage facility other developers

owners and operators have the capability to build additional facilities that may compete with our facilities This

competition for investments may reduce the number of suitable investment opportunities available to us may

increase acquisition costs and may reduce demand for self storage space in certain areas where our facilities are

located all of which may adversely affect our operating results Additionally an economic slowdown in

particular market could have negative effect on our self storage revenues

If competitors build new facilities that compete with our facilities or offer space at rental rates below the

rental rates we charge our customers we may lose potential or existing customers and we may be pressured to

discount our rental rates to retain customers As result our rental revenues may become insufficient to make

distributions to our stockholders In addition increased competition for customers may require us to make capital

improvements to facilities that we would not otherwise make which could reduce cash available for distribution

to our stockholders

The acquisition of new properties may give rise to dfflculties in predicting revenue potential

New acquisitions could fail to perform in accordance with our expectations If we fail to accurately estimate

occupancy levels rental rates operating costs or costs of improvements to bring an acquired facility up to our

standards the performance of the facility may be below expectations Properties we acquire may have

characteristics or deficiencies affecting their valuation or revenue potential that we have not yet
discovered We

cannot assure our stockholders that the performance of properties we acquire will increase or be maintained

under our management

We may be unable to promptly re-let units within our facilities at satisfactory rental rates

Generally our unit leases will be on month-to-month basis Delays in re-letting units as vacancies arise

would reduce our revenues and could adversely affect our operating performance In addition lower-than-

expected rental rates and rental concessions upon re-letting could adversely affect our rental revenues and

impede our growth

We will depend on our on-site personnel to maximize customer satisfaction at each of our facilities and

any difficulties we encounter in hiring training and retaining skilled field personnel may adversely affect our

rental revenues

The customer service marketing skills knowledge of local market demand and competitive dynamics of our

facility managers will be contributing factors to our ability to maximize our rental income and to achieve the

highest sustainable rent levels at each of our facilities If we are unable to successfully recruit train and retain

qualified field personnel our rental revenues may be adversely affected which could impair our ability to make

distributions to our stockholders
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Legal claims related to moisture infiltration and mold could arise in one or more of our properties which

could adversely affect our revenues

There has been an increasing number of claims and litigation against owners and managers of rental and self

storage properties relating to moisture infiltration which can result in mold or other property damage We cannot

guarantee that moisture infiltration will not occur at one or more of our properties When we receive complaint

concerning moisture infiltration condensation or mold problems and/or become aware that an air quality concern

exists we will implement corrective measures in accordance with guidelines and protocols we have developed

with the assistance of outside experts We cannot assure our stockholders that material legal claims relating to

moisture infiltration and the
presence of or exposure to mold will not arise in the future These legal claims

could require significant expenditures for legal defense representation which could adversely affect our revenues

Delays in development and lease-up of our properties would reduce our profitability

With certain properties we plan to acquire our business plan contemplates repositioning or redeveloping

that property with the goal of increasing its cash flow value or both Construction delays to new or existing self

storage properties due to weather unforeseen site conditions personnel problems and other factors could delay

our anticipated tenant occupancy plan which could adversely affect our profitability Furthermore our estimate

of the costs of repositioning or redeveloping an acquired property may prove to be inaccurate which may result

in our failure to meet our profitability goals Additionally we may acquire new properties not fully leased and

the cash flow from existing operations may be insufficient to pay the operating expenses associated with that

property until the property is fully leased If one or more of these properties does not perform as expected or we

are unable to successfully integrate new properties into our existing operations our financial performance and

our ability to make distributions may be adversely affected

Our inability to increase revenue in our current development and lease-up properties could negatively

affect our ability to cover distributions

As of December 31 2012 we owned several development and lease-up properties including the Homeland

Portfolio properties Such properties are currently negatively impacting our results of operations and will

continue to do so until the occupancy stabilizes If several of these properties do not continue to perform as

expected our results of operations and our ability to cover distributions may be adversely affected

The risks associated with storage contents may increase our operating costs or expose us to potential

liability that may not be covered by insurance which may have adverse effects on our results of operations

and returns to our stockholders

The self storage facilities we own and operate are leased directly to tenants who store their belongings

without any immediate inspections or oversight from us We may unintentionally lease space to groups engaged

in illegal and dangerous activities Damage to storage contents may occur due to among other occurrences the

following war acts of terrorism earthquakes fire floods hurricanes pollution environmental matters or events

caused by fault of tenant fault of third party or fault of our own Such damage may or may not be covered by

insurance maintained by us if any Our customers are required to acquire their own insurance coverage on

storage contents or assume all of the risk Our Advisor will determine the amounts and types of insurance

coverage
that we will maintain including any coverage over the contents of any properties in which we may

invest Such determinations will be made on case-by-case basis by our Advisor based on the type value

location and risks associated with each investment as well as any lender requirements and any other factors our

Advisor may consider relevant Historically our Sponsor has maintained coverage that includes comprehensive

property and general liability coverage including customer goods legal liability coverage which covers damage

to customer goods due to liability on our part However there is no guarantee that such insurance will be

obtained for any investments that we may make and there is no guarantee that any particular damage to storage

contents would be covered by such insurance even if obtained The costs associated with maintaining such

insurance as well as any liability imposed upon us due to damage to storage contents may have an adverse effect

on our results of operations and returns to our stockholders
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Additionally although we will require our tenants to sign an agreement stating that they will not store

flammable hazardous illegal or dangerous contents in the self storage units we cannot ensure that our tenants

will abide by such agreement The storage of such materials might cause destruction to facility or impose

liability on us for the costs of removal or remediation if these various contents or substances are released on

from or in facility which may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and returns to our

stockholders

Our operating results may be affected by regulatory changes that have an adverse impact on our specific

facilities which may adversely affect our results of operations and returns to our stockholders

Certain regulatory changes may have direct impact on our self storage facilities including but not limited

to land use zoning and permitting requirements by governmental authorities at the local level which can restrict

the availability of land for development and special zoning codes which omit certain uses of property from

zoning category These special uses i.e hospitals schools and self storage facilities are allowed in that

particular zoning classification only by obtaining special use permit and the permission of local zoning

authority If we are delayed in obtaining or unable to obtain special use permit where one is required new

developments or expansion of existing developments could be delayed or reduced Additionally certain

municipalities require holders of special use permit to have higher levels of liability coverage
than is normally

required The acquisition of or the inability to obtain special use permit and the possibility of higher levels of

insurance coverage associated therewith may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and returns to

our stockholders

If we enter into non-compete agreements with the sellers of the self storage properties that we acquire

and the terms of those agreements expire the sellers may compete with us within the general location of one

of our self storage facilities which could have an adverse effect on our operating results and returns to our

stockholders

We may enter into non-compete agreements with the sellers of the self storage properties that we acquire in

order to prohibit the seller from owning operating or being employed by competing self storage property for

predetermined time frame and within geographic radius of self storage facility we acquire When these non-

compete agreements expire we may face the risk that the seller will develop own operate or become employed

by competing self storage facility within the general location of one of our properties which could have an

adverse effect on our operating results and returns to our stockholders

General Risks Related to Investments in Real Estate

Our operating results will be affected by economic and regulatory changes that have an adverse impact

on the real estate market in general and we cannot assure our stockholders that we will be profitable or that

we will realize growth in the value of our real estate properties

Our operating results will be subject to risks generally incident to the ownership of real estate including

changes in general economic or local conditions

changes in supply of or demand for similaror competing properties in an area

changes in interest rates and availability of permanent mortgage funds that may render the sale of

property difficult or unattractive

changes in tax real estate environmental and zoning laws

changes in property tax assessments and insurance costs and

increases in interest rates and tight money supply
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These and other reasons may prevent us from being profitable or from realizing growth or maintaining the

value of our real estate properties

We may suffer reduced or delayed revenues for or have difficulty selling properties with vacancies

We anticipate that the majority of the properties we acquire will have stabilized occupancy levels generally

at or above 80% However certain of the real properties we acquire may have higher level of vacancy at the

time of closing either because the property is in the process of being developed and constructed is newly

constructed and in the process of obtaining tenants or because of economic or competitive or other factors

Shortly after new property is opened during time of development and construction or because of economic

or competitive or other factors we may suffer reduced revenues potentially resulting in lower cash distributions

to our stockholders due to lack of an optimum level of tenants In addition the resale value of the real property

could be diminished because the market value may depend principally upon the value of the leases of such real

property Also because propertys market value depends principally upon its occupancy rate the resale value

of properties with prolonged low occupancy rates could suffer which could further reduce our stockholders

returns

We may obtain only limited warranties when we purchase property

The seller of property will often sell such property in its as is condition on where is basis and with

all faults without any warranties of merchantability or fitness for particular use or purpose In addition

purchase agreements may contain only limited warranties representations and indemnifications that will only

survive for limited period after the closing Also many sellers of real estate are single purpose
entities without

significant other assets The purchase of properties with limited warranties or from undercapitalized sellers

increases the risk that we may lose some or all of our invested capital in the property as well as rental income

from that property

Our inability to sell property when we desire to do so could adversely impact our ability to pay cash

distributions to our stockholders

The real estate market is affected by many factors such as general economic conditions availability of

financing interest rates and other factors including supply and demand that are beyond our control We cannot

predict whether we will be able to sell any property for the price or on the terms set by us or whether any price

or other terms offered by prospective purchaser would be acceptable to us We cannot predict the length of time

needed to find willing purchaser and to close the sale of property Real estate generally cannot be sold

quickly Also the tax laws applicable to REITs require that we hold our facilities for investment rather than for

sale in the ordinary course of business which may cause us to forego or defer sales of facilities that otherwise

would be in our best interest Therefore we may not be able to dispose of facilities promptly or on favorable

terms in response to economic or other market conditions and this may adversely impact our ability to make

disthbutions to our stockholders

In addition we may be required to expend funds to correct defects or to make improvements before

property can be sold We cannot assure our stockholders that we will have funds available to correct such defects

or to make such improvements

In acquiring property we may agree to restrictions that prohibit the sale of that property for period of

time or impose other restrictions such as limitation on the amount of debt that can be placed or repaid on that

property These provisions would also restrict our ability to sell property

We may not be able to sell our properties at price equal to or greater than the price for which we

purchased such properties which may lead to decrease in the value of our assets

We may be purchasing our properties at time when capitalization rates are at historically low levels and

purchase prices are high Therefore the value of our properties may not increase over time which may restrict
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our ability to sell our properties or in the event we are able to sell such property may lead to sale price less

than the price that we paid to purchase the properties

We may acquire or finance properties with lock-out provisions which may prohibit us from selling

property or may require us to maintain specified debt levels for period of years on some properties

Lock-out provisions are provisions that generally prohibit repayment of loan balance for certain number

of years following the origination date of loan Such provisions are typically provided for by the Code or the

terms of the agreement underlying loan Lock-out provisions could materially restrict us from selling or

otherwise disposing of or refinancing properties These provisions would affect our ability to turn our

investments into cash and thus affect cash available for distribution to our stockholders Lock-out provisions may

prohibit us from reducing the outstanding indebtedness with respect to any properties refinancing such

indebtedness on non-recourse basis at maturity or increasing the amount of indebtedness with respect to such

properties

Lock-out provisions could impair our ability to take actions during the lock-out period that would otherwise

be in our stockholders best interests and therefore may have an adverse impact on the value of the shares

relative to the value that would result if the lock-out provisions did not exist In particular lock-out provisions

could preclude us from participating in major transactions that could result in disposition of our assets or

change in control even though that disposition or change in control might be in our stockholders best interests

Rising expenses could reduce cash available for distribution

Any properties that we buy in the future will be subject to operating risks common to real estate in general

any or all of which may negatively affect us If any property is not fully occupied or if rents are being paid in an

amount that is insufficient to cover operating expenses we could be required to expend funds for that propertys

operating expenses Our properties will be subject to increases in tax rates utility costs operating expenses

insurance costs repairs and maintenance and administrative expenses

If we are unable to offset such cost increases through rent increases we could be required to fund those

increases in operating costs which could adversely affect cash available for distribution

Adverse economic conditions will negatively affect our returns and profitability

Recent geopolitical events have exacerbated the general economic slowdown that has affected the nation as

whole and the local economies where our properties may be located Economic weakness and higher

unemployment combined with higher costs especially for energy food and commodities has put considerable

pressure on consumer spending which along with reduced availability of debt financing has resulted in many
U.S companies experiencing poorer financial and operating performance over the past few years

than in prior

periods The following market and economic challenges may adversely affect our operating results

poor economic times may result in tenant defaults under leases or bankruptcy

re-leasing may require reduced rental rates under the new leases and

increased insurance premiumsresulting in part from the increased risk of terrorism and natural

disasters may reduce funds available for distribution

continuing environment of declining prices could further weaken real estate markets We do not know

how long the slowdown will last or when or even if real estate markets will return to more normal conditions

Since we cannot predict when real estate markets may recover the value of our properties may decline if market

conditions persist or worsen Further the results of operations for property in any one period may not be

indicative of results in future periods and the long-term performance of such property generally may not be

comparable to and cash flows may not be as predictable as other properties owned by third parties in the same
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or similar industry The already weak conditions in the real estate markets could be further exacerbated by

deterioration of national or regional economic conditions Our property values and operations could be

negatively affected to the extent that the current economic downturn is prolonged or becomes more severe

If we suffer losses that are not covered by insurance or that are in excess of insurance coverage we could

lose invested capital and anticipated profits

Material losses may occur in excess of insurance proceeds with respect to any property as insurance may

not be sufficient to fund the losses However there are types of losses generally of catastrophic nature such as

losses due to wars acts of terrorism earthquakes floods hurricanes pollution or environmental matters which

are either uninsurable or not economically insurable or may be insured subject to limitations such as large

deductibles or co-payments Insurance risks associated with potential terrorist acts could sharply increase the

premiums we pay for coverage against property and casualty claims Additionally mortgage lenders in some

cases have begun to insist that commercial property owners purchase specific coverage against terrorism as

condition for providing mortgage loans It is uncertain whether such insurance policies will be available or

available at reasonable cost which could inhibit our ability to finance or refinance our potential properties In

these instances we may be required to provide other financial support either through financial assurances or

self-insurance to cover potential losses We cannot assure our stockholders that we will have adequate coverage

for such losses The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 is designed for sharing of terrorism losses between

insurance companies and the federal government We cannot be certain how this act will impact us or what

additional cost to us if any could result If such an event damaged or destroyed one or more of our properties

we could lose both our invested capital and anticipated profits from such property

Delays in the acquisition development and construction ofproperties may have adverse effects on our

results of operations and returns to our stockholders

Delays we encounter in the selection acquisition and development of real properties could adversely affect

our stockholders returns Although we expect that we will invest primarily in properties that have operating

histories or in which construction is complete from time to time we may acquire unimproved real property

properties that are in need of redevelopment or properties that are under development or construction

Investments in such properties will be subject to the uncertainties associated with the development and

construction of real property including those related to re-zoning land for development environmental concerns

of governmental entities and/or community groups
and our builders ability to build in conformity with plans

specifications budgets and timetables If builder fails to perform we may resort to legal action to rescind the

purchase or the construction contract or to compel performance builders performance may also be affected or

delayed by conditions beyond the builders control

Where properties are acquired prior to the start of construction or during the early stages of construction it

will typically take several months to complete construction and lease available space Therefore our stockholders

could suffer delays in the receipt of cash distributions attributable to those particular real properties We may

incur additional risks when we make periodic progress payments or other advances to builders before they

complete construction These and other factors can result in increased costs of project or loss of our investment

We also must rely on rental income and expense projections and estimates of the fair market value of property

upon completion of construction when agreeing upon purchase price at the time we acquire the property If our

projections are inaccurate we may pay too much for property and the return on our investment could suffer

Costs of complying with governmental laws and regulations including those relating to environmental

matters may adversely affect our income and the cash available for distribution

All real property including any self storage properties we acquire and the operations conducted on real

property are subject to federal state and local laws and regulations relating to environmental protection and

human health and safety These laws and regulations generally govern wastewater discharges air emissions the

operation and removal of underground and above-ground storage tanks the use storage treatment transportation

32



and disposal of solid and hazardous materials and the remediation of contamination associated with disposals

Some of these laws and regulations may impose joint and several liabilities on tenants owners or operators for

the costs to investigate or remediate contaminated properties regardless of fault or whether the acts causing the

contamination were legal This liability could be substantial In addition the presence of hazardous substances

or the failure to properly remediate these substances may adversely affect our ability to sell or rent property or

to pledge such property as collateral for future borrowings

Some of these laws and regulations have been amended so as to require compliance with new or more

stringent standards as of future dates Compliance with new or more stringent laws or regulations or stricter

interpretation of existing laws may require us to incur material expenditures Future laws ordinances or

regulations may impose material environmental liability Additionally our tenants operations the existing

condition of land when we buy it operations in the vicinity of our properties such as the presence of

underground storage tanks or activities of unrelated third parties may affect our properties In addition there are

various local state and federal fire health life-safety and similar regulations with which we may be required to

comply and that may subject us to liability in the form of fines or damages for noncompliance Any material

expenditures fines or damages we must pay will reduce our ability to make distributions to our stockholders and

may reduce the value of our stockholders investments

We cannot assure our stockholders that any environmental assessment that we obtain will reveal all

environmental liabilities or that prior owner of property did not create material environmental condition not

known to us We cannot predict what other environmental legislation or regulations will be enacted in the future

how existing or future laws or regulations will be administered or interpreted or what environmental conditions

may be found to exist in the future We cannot assure our stockholders that our business assets results of

operations liquidity or financial condition will not be adversely affected by these laws which may adversely

affect cash available for distribution and the amount of distributions to our stockholders

Our costs associated with complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act may affect cash available

for distribution

Our properties will be subject to the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 or ADA Under the ADA all

places of public accommodation are required to comply with federal requirements related to access and use by

disabled persons The ADA has separate compliance requirements for public accommodations and

commercial facilities that generally require that buildings and services including restaurants and retail stores

be made accessible and available to people with disabilities The ADAs requirements could require removal of

access barriers and could result in the imposition of injunctive relief monetary penalties or in some cases an

award of damages We will attempt to acquire properties that comply with the ADA or place the burden on the

seller or other third party to ensure compliance with the ADA However we cannot assure our stockholders that

we will be able to acquire properties or allocate responsibilities in this manner If we cannot our funds used for

ADA compliance may affect cash available for distribution and the amount of distributions to our stockholders

If we sell properties by pro viding financing to purchasers defaults by the purchasers would adversely

affect our cash flows

In some instances we may sell our properties by providing financing to purchasers When we provide

financing to purchasers we will bear the risk that the purchaser may default which could negatively impact our

cash distributions to stockholders Additionally the distribution of the proceeds of sales to our stockholders or

their reinvestment in other assets will be delayed until the promissory notes or other property we may accept

upon the sale are actually paid sold refinanced or otherwise disposed of In some cases we may receive initial

down payments in cash and other property in the year of sale in an amount less than the selling price and

subsequent payments will be spread over number of years If any purchaser defaults under financing

arrangement with us it could negatively impact our ability to make distributions to our stockholders
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Increases in interest rates may adversely affect the demand for our shares

One of the factors that influences the demand for purchase of our shares is the annual rate of distributions

that we pay on our shares as compared with interest rates An increase in interest rates may lead potential

purchasers of our shares to demand higher annual distribution rates which could adversely affect our ability to

sell our shares and raise proceeds in the Offering This could also result in us owning less diversified portfolio

of real estate

Property taxes may increase which will adversely affect our net operating income and cash available for

distributions

Each of our properties is subject to real property taxes Some local real property tax assessors may seek to

reassess some of our properties as result of our acquisition of the property From time to time our property

taxes may increase as property values or assessment rates change or for other reasons deemed relevant by the

assessors Recent local government shortfalls in tax revenue may cause pressure to increase tax rates or

assessment levels Increases in real property taxes will adversely affect our net operating income and cash

available for distributions

Risks Associated with Debt Financing

If we breach covenants under our loan with KeyBank National Association we could be held in default

under such loan which could accelerate our repayment date and materially adversely affect the value of our

stockholders investments in us On December 27 2011 we entered into secured credit facility with KeyBank

National Association KeyBank and as of December 31 2012 there was approximately $51.7 million

outstanding on this loan The KeyBank loan is secured by cross-collateralized first mortgage liens or first lien

deeds of trust on all properties in the Homeland Portfolio and is cross-defaulted to other recourse debt of $25

million or greater in the aggregate or non-recourse debt of $75 million or greater in the aggregate The loan

imposes number of financial covenant requirements on us If we should breach certain of those financial

covenant requirements or otherwise default on the KeyBank loan Key Bank could accelerate our repayment

date If we do not have sufficient cash to repay this loan at that time KeyBank could foreclose on the properties

securing the loan Such foreclosure could result in material loss for us and would adversely affect the value of

our stockholders investments in us

If we breach certain covenants or restrictions under certain of our debt agreements we could be held in

default thereunder which could allow the lender to accelerate our repayment date or take other action that

could materially adversely affect distributions to our stockholders and the value of our stockholders

investments in us

Certain of our loans contain various customary covenant requirements and restrictions If we should breach

those requirements or restrictions or otherwise default on the loans the respective lenders could accelerate our

repayment date or take other action that could be detrimental to us and negatively affect our cash flow Such

actions could adversely affect the distributions we pay to our stockholders and the value of our stockholders

investments in us

We have broad authority to incur debt and high debt levels could hinder our ability to make distributions

and could decrease the value of our stockholders investments

Although technically our board may approve unlimited levels of debt our charter generally limits us to

incurring debt no greater than 300% of our net assets before deducting depreciation or other non-cash reserves

approximately 75% leverage unless any excess borrowing is approved by majority of our independent

directors and disclosed to our stockholders in our next quarterly report along with justification for such excess

borrowing High debt levels would cause us to incur higher interest charges would result in higher debt service

payments and could be accompanied by restrictive covenants These factors could limit the amount of cash we

have available to distribute and could result in decline in the value of our stockholders investments
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We have incurred and intend to continue to incur mortgage indebtedness and other borrowings which

may increase our business risks

We have placed and intend to continue to place permanent financing on our properties or obtain credit

facility or other similar financing arrangement in order to acquire properties as funds are being raised in the

Offering We may also decide to later further leverage our properties We may incur mortgage debt and pledge

all or some of our real properties as security for that debt to obtain funds to acquire real properties We may

borrow if we need funds to pay desired distribution rate to our stockholders We may also borrow if we deem it

necessary or advisable to assure that we maintain our qualification as REIT for federal income tax purposes If

there is shortfall between the cash flow from our properties and the cash flow needed to service mortgage debt

then the amount available for distribution to our stockholders may be reduced

We have incurred and intend to continue to incur indebtedness secured by our properties which may

result in foreclosure

Most of our borrowings to acquire properties have been and will be secured by mortgages on our properties

If we default on our secured indebtedness the lender may foreclose and we could lose our entire investment in

the properties securing such loan which could adversely affect distributions to our stockholders To the extent

lenders require us to cross-collateralize our properties or our loan agreements contain cross-default provisions

default under single loan agreement could subject multiple properties to foreclosure

High interest rates may make it difficult for us to refinance properties which could reduce the number of

properties we can acquire and the amount of cash distributions we can make

For mortgage debt we have placed on our properties we run the risk of being unable to refinance the

properties when the loans come due or of being unable to refinance on favorable terms If interest rates are

higher when the properties are refinanced we may not be able to finance the properties and our income could be

reduced If any of these events occur our cash flow would be reduced This in turn would reduce cash available

for distribution to our stockholders and may hinder our ability to raise more capital by issuing more stock or by

borrowing more money

Lenders have required and will likely continue to require us to enter into restrictive covenants relating to

our operations which could limit our ability to make distributions to our stockholders

When providing financing lenders often impose restrictions on us that affect our distribution and operating

policies and our ability to incur additional debt Loan documents we enter into typically contain covenants that

limit our ability to further mortgage the property discontinue insurance coverage or replace our Advisor or our

Property Manager These or other limitations may adversely affect our flexibility and limit our ability to make

distributions to our stockholders

Increases in interest rates could increase the amount of our debt payments and adversely affect our

ability to make distributions to our stockholders

We have incurred indebtedness and expect that we will incur further indebtedness in the future Interest we

pay will reduce cash available for distribution Additionally if we incur variable rate debt increases in interest

rates would increase our interest costs which could reduce our cash flows and our ability to make distributions to

our stockholders In addition if we need to repay existing debt during periods of rising interest rates we could be

required to liquidate one or more of our investments in properties at times that may not permit realization of the

maximum return on such investments

Continued disruptions in the credit markets could have material adverse effect on our results of

operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders

Domestic and international financial markets have experienced significant disruptions which have been

brought about in large part by failures in the U.S banking system These disruptions have severely impacted the
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availability of credit and have contributed to rising costs associated with obtaining credit If debt financing is not

available on terms and conditions we find acceptable we may not be able to obtain financing for investments If

these disruptions in the credit markets persist our ability to borrow monies to finance the purchase of or other

activities related to real estate assets will be negatively impacted If we are unable to borrow monies on terms

and conditions that we find acceptable we likely will have to reduce the number of properties we can purchase

and the return on the properties we do purchase may be lower In addition if we pay fees to lock in favorable

interest rate failing interest rates or other factors could require us to forfeit these fees All of these events would

have material adverse effect on our results of operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions

Risks Associated with Co-Ownership of Real Estate

We may have increased exposure to liabilities from litigation as result of our participation in tenant-

in-common program

Strategic Capital Holdings LLC our Sponsor and an affiliate of our Advisor has developed tenant-in-

common programs to facilitate the acquisition of real estate properties to be owned in co-tenancy arrangements

with persons who are looking to invest proceeds from sale of real estate to qualify for like-kind exchange

treatment under Section 1031 of the Code We may participate in tenant-in-common program by either co

investing in the property with the exchange investors or purchasing tenant-in common interest from an affiliate

of our Advisor generally at the cost of the property paid by such affiliate Changes in tax laws may result in

tenant-in-common programs no longer being available which may adversely affect such programs or cause them

not to achieve their intended value Even though we will not sponsor these tenant-in-common programs we may
be named in or otherwise required to defend against any lawsuits brought by tenant-in-common participants

because of our affiliation with sponsors of such transactions Furthermore in the event that the Internal Revenue

Service IRS conducts an audit of the purchasers of co-tenancy interests and successfully challenges the

qualification of the transaction as like-kind exchange purchasers of co-tenancy interests may file lawsuit

against the entity offering the co-tenancy interests its sponsors and/or us In such event we may be involved in

one or more such offerings and could therefore be named in or otherwise required to defend against lawsuits

brought by other tenant-in-common participants Any amounts we are required to expend defending any such

claims will reduce the amount of funds available for investment by us in properties or other investments and may
reduce the amount of funds available for distribution to our stockholders In addition disclosure of any such

litigation may adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital in the future through the sale of stock

We may be subject to risks associated with tenant-in-common programs inherent in ownership of co

tenancy interests with non-affiliated third parties

In connection with some of our property acquisitions we currently or subsequently may become tenant-in-

common owners of properties in which an affiliate of our Advisor sells tenant-in-common interests to tenant-in-

common participants As an owner of tenant-in-common interests in properties we will be subject to the risks

inherent to the ownership of co-tenancy interests with unrelated third parties In substantial majority of these

transactions the underlying property serves as collateral for the mortgage loan to finance the purchase of the

property To the extent the loan is not repaid in full as part of the tenant-in-common program the loan remains

outstanding after the sale of the co-tenancy interests to the tenant-in-common participants Each co-tenant is

borrower under the loan agreements These loans generally are non-recourse against the tenant-in-common

participants interests and are secured by the real property However the tenant-in-common participants are

required to indemnify and become liable to the lender for customary carve-outs under the applicable financing

documents including but not limited to fraud or intentional misrepresentation by co-tenant or guarantor of

the loan physical waste of the property misapplication or misappropriation of insurance proceeds and failure to

pay taxes
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We will be subject to risks associated with the co-tenants in our co-ownership arrangements that

otherwise may not be present in other real estate investments

We may enter into tenant-in-common Delaware Statutory Trust DST or other co-ownership arrangements

with respect to portion of the properties we acquire In connection with the two mergers
with private real estate

investment trusts we completed on September 24 2009 we acquired minority interests in several DSTs affiliated

with our Sponsor We also acquired additional interests in some of those DSTs subsequent to the mergers

Ownership of co-ownership interests involves risks generally not otherwise present with an investment in real

estate particularly in respect to tenant-in-common programs such as the following

the risk that co-owner may at any time have economic or business interests or goals that are or

become inconsistent with our business interests or goals

the risk that co-owner may be in position to take action contrary to our instructions or requests or

contrary to our policies or objectives

the possibility that an individual co-owner might become insolvent or bankrupt or otherwise default

under the applicable mortgage loan financing documents which may constitute an event of default

under all of the applicable mortgage loan financing documents or allow the bankruptcy court to reject

the tenants-in-common agreement or management agreement entered into by the co-owner owning

interests in the property

the possibility that co-owner might not have adequate liquid assets to make cash advances that may

be required in order to fund operations maintenance and other expenses related to the property which

could result in the loss of current or prospective tenants and may otherwise adversely affect the

operation and maintenance of the property and could cause default under the mortgage loan

financing documents applicable to the property and may result in late charges penalties and interest

and may lead to the exercise of foreclosure and other remedies by the lender

the risk that co-owner could breach agreements related to the property which may cause default

under or result in personal liability for the applicable mortgage loan financing documents violate

applicable securities law and otherwise adversely affect the property and the co-ownership

arrangement or

the risk that default by any co-owner would constitute default under the applicable mortgage loan

financing documents that could result in foreclosure and the loss of all or substantial portion of the

investment made by the co-owner

Any of the above might subject property to liabilities in excess of those contemplated and thus reduce the

amount available for distribution to our stockholders

In the event that our interests become adverse to those of the other co-owners we will not have the

contractual right to purchase the co-ownership interests from the other co-owners Even if we are given the

opportunity to purchase such co-ownership interests in the future we cannot guarantee that we will have

sufficient funds available at the time to purchase co-ownership interests from the co-owners

We might want to sell our co-ownership interests in given property at time when the other co-owners in such

property do not desire to sell their interests Therefore we may not be able to sell our interest in property at the time

we would like to sell In addition we anticipate that it will be much more difficult to find willing buyer for our co

ownership interests in property than it would be to find buyer for property we owned outright

Federal Income Tax Risks

Failure to qualify as REIT would adversely affect our operations and our ability to make distributions

as we would incur additional tax liabilities

Baker Donelson our legal counsel has rendered its opinion that we have been organized in conformity with

the requirements for qualification and taxation as REIT pursuant to Sections 856 through 860 of the Code

37



beginning with our taxable year ended December 31 2008 and that our organization and method of operation

will enable us to meet the qualifications and requirements for taxation as REIT under the Code based upon our

representations as to the manner in which we are and will be owned and our investment in assets and manner of

operation among other things However our qualification as REIT will depend upon our ability to meet

through investments actual operating results distributions and satisfaction of specific stockholder rules the

various tests imposed by the Code Baker Donelson will not review these operating results or compliance with

the qualification standards on an ongoing basis This means that we may fail to satisfy the REIT requirements in

the future Also this opinion represents Baker Donelsons legal judgment based on the law in effect as of the date

of the opinion Baker Donelsons opinion is not binding on the IRS or the courts and we will not apply for

ruling from the IRS regarding our status as REIT Future legislative judicial or administrative changes to the

federal income tax laws could be applied retroactively which could result in our disqualification as REIT

If we fail to qualify as REIT for any taxable year we will be subject to federal income tax and any

applicable alternative minimum tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates In addition we would

generally be disqualified from treatment as REIT for the four taxable years following the year of losing our

REIT status Losing our REIT status would reduce our net earnings available for investment or distribution to

stockholders because of the additional tax liability In addition distributions to stockholders would no longer

qualify for the distributions paid deduction and we would no longer be required to make distributions If this

occurs we might be required to borrow funds or liquidate some investments in order to pay the applicable tax

To qualify as REIT and to avoid the payment offederal income and excise taxes and maintain our

REIT status we may be forced to borrow funds use proceeds from the issuance of securities including the

Offering or sell assets to pay distributions which may result in our distributing amounts that may otherwise

be used for our operations

To obtain the favorable tax treatment accorded to REITs we normally will be required each year to

distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our real estate investment trust taxable income determined without

regard to the deduction for distributions paid and excluding net capital gains We will be subject to federal

income tax on our undistributed taxable income and net capital gain and subject to 4% nondeductible excise tax

on any amount by which distributions we pay with respect to any calendar year are less than the sum of 85%

of our ordinary income 95% of our capital gain net income and 100% of our undistributed income from

prior years These requirements could cause us to distribute amounts that otherwise would be spent on

acquisitions of properties and it is possible that we might be required to borrow funds use proceeds from the

issuance of securities including the Offering or sell assets in order to distribute enough of our taxable income to

maintain our REIT status and to avoid the payment of federal income and excise taxes These methods of

obtaining funding could affect future distributions by increasing operating costs and decreasing available cash In

addition such distributions may constitute return of investors capital

If any of our partnerships fails to maintain its status as partnership forfederal income tax purposes its

income would be subject to taxation and our REIT status would be terminated

We intend to maintain the status of our partnerships including our Operating Partnership as partnerships

for federal income tax purposes However if the IRS were to successfully challenge the status of any of our

partnerships as partnership it would be taxable as corporation Such an event would reduce the amount of

distributions that such partnership could make to us This would also result in our losing REIT status and

becoming subject to corporate level tax on our own income This would substantially reduce our cash available

to pay distributions and the return on our stockholders investments In addition if any of the entities through

which any of our partnerships owns its properties in whole or in part loses its characterization as partnership

for federal income tax purposes it would be subject to taxation as corporation thereby reducing distributions to

such partnership Such recharacterization of any of our partnerships or an underlying property owner could also

threaten our ability to maintain REIT status
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Our stockholders may have tax liability on distributions they elect to reinvest in our common stock

If our stockholders participate in our distribution reinvestment plan they will be deemed to have received

and for income tax purposes will be taxed on the amount reinvested in common stock to the extent the amount

reinvested was not tax-free return of investors capital As result unless our stockholders are tax-exempt

entity our stockholders may have to use funds from other sources to pay their tax liability on the value of the

common stock received

In certain circumstances we may be subject to federal and state income taxes as REIT which would

reduce our cash available for distribution to our stockholders

Even if we qualify and maintain our status as REIT we may be subject to federal income taxes or state

taxes For example net income from prohibited transaction will be subject to 100% tax We may not be

able to make sufficient distributions to avoid excise taxes applicable to REITs We may also decide to retain

income we earn from the sale or other disposition of our property and pay income tax directly on such income In

that event our stockholders would be treated as if they earned that income and paid the tax on it directly

However stockholders that are tax-exempt such as charities or qualified pension plans would have no benefit

from their deemed payment of such tax liability We may also be subject to state and local taxes on our income or

property either directly at the level of the operating partnership or at the level of the other companies through

which we indirectly own our assets Any federal or state taxes we pay will reduce our cash available for

distribution to our stockholders

We may be required to pay some taxes due to actions of our taxable REIT subsidiaries which would

reduce our cash available for distribution to our stockholders

Any net taxable income earned directly by our taxable REIT subsidiaries or through entities that are

disregarded for federal income tax purposes as entities separate from our taxable REIT subsidiaries will be

subject to federal and possibly state corporate income tax We have elected to treat Strategic Storage TRS Inc

along with our Canadian taxable REIT subsidiary as taxable REIT subsidiaries and we may elect to treat other

subsidiaries as taxable REIT subsidiaries in the future In this regard several provisions of the laws applicable to

REITs and their subsidiaries ensure that taxable REIT subsidiary will be subject to an appropriate level of

federal income taxation For example taxable REIT subsidiary is limited in its ability to deduct certain interest

payments made to an affiliated REIT In addition the REIT has to pay 100% penalty tax on some payments

that it receives or on some deductions taken by taxable REIT subsidiary if the economic arrangements between

the REIT the REIT customers and the taxable REIT subsidiary are not comparable to similar arrangements

between unrelated parties Finally some state and local jurisdictions may tax some of our income even though as

REIT we are not subject to federal income tax on that income because not all states and localities follow the

federal income tax treatment of REITs To the extent that we and our affiliates are required to pay federal state

and local taxes we will have less cash available for distributions to our stockholders

Distributions to tax-exempt investors may be classified as unrelated business taxable income

Neither ordinary nor capital gain distributions with respect to our common stock nor gain from the sale of

common stock should generally constitute unrelated business taxable income UBTI to tax-exempt investor

However there are certain exceptions to this rule In particular

part of the income and gain recognized by certain qualified employee pension trusts with respect to our

common stock may be treated as UBTI if shares of our common stock are predominately held by

qualified employee pension trusts we are required to rely on special look-through rule for purposes

of meeting one of the REIT share ownership tests and we are not operated in manner to avoid

treatment of such income or gain as UBTI

part of the income and gain recognized by tax exempt investor with respect to our common stock

would constitute UBTI if the investor incurs debt in order to acquire the common stock and
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part or all of the income or gain recognized with respect to our common stock by social clubs

voluntary employee benefit associations supplemental unemployment benefit trusts and qualified

group legal services plans which are exempt from federal income taxation under Sections 501c7
17 or 20 of the Code may be treated as UBTI

Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us to forego otherwise attractive opportunities

To qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we must continually satisfy tests concerning among
other things the sources of our income the nature and diversification of our assets the amounts we distribute to

our stockholders and the ownership of shares of our common stock We may be required to make distributions to

stockholders at disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available for distribution or we may
be required to liquidate otherwise attractive investments in order to comply with the REIT tests Thus

compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to operate solely on the basis of maximizing

profits

Legislative or regulatoiy action could adversely affect investors

On January 2013 President Obama signed into law the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 extending

the existing 15% qualified dividend rate for 2013 and subsequent taxable
years

for those individuals with

incomes below certain thresholds For those with income above such thresholds the qualified dividend rate is

20% These tax rates are generally not applicable to distributions paid by REIT unless such distributions

represent earnings on which the REIT itself has been taxed As result distributions other than capital gain

distributions we pay to individual investors generally will be subject to the tax rates that are otherwise

applicable to ordinary income for federal income tax purposes which currently are as high as 39.6% This

disparity in tax treatment may make an investment in our shares comparatively less attractive to individual

investors than an investment in the shares of non-REIT corporations and could have an adverse effect on the

value of our common stock Our stockholders are urged to consult with their own tax advisors with
respect to the

impact of recent legislation on our stockholders investments in our common stock and the status of legislative

regulatory or administrative developments and proposals and their potential effect on an investment in our

common stock

Foreign purchasers of our common stock may be subject to FIRPTA tax upon the sale of their shares

foreign person disposing of U.S real property interest including shares of U.S corporation whose

assets consist principally of U.S real property interests is generally subject to tax known as FIRPTA tax on

the gain recognized on the disposition Such FIRPTA tax does not apply however to the disposition of stock in

REIT if the REIT is domestically controlled REIT is domestically controlled if less than 50% of the

REIT stock by value has been owned directly or indirectly by persons who are not qualifying U.S persons

during continuous five-year period ending on the date of disposition or if shorter during the entire period of

the REITs existence

We cannot assure our stockholders that we will qualify as domestically controlled REIT If we were to

fail to so qualify gain realized by foreign investors on sale of our shares would be subject to FIRPTA tax

unless our shares were traded on an established securities market and the foreign investor did not at any time

during specified testing period directly or indirectly own more than 5% of the value of our outstanding common
stock
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ERISA Risks

There are special considerations that apply to pension or profit-sharing trusts or IRAs investing in our

shares which could cause an investment in our company to be prohibited transaction and could result in

additional tax consequences

If our stockholders are investing the assets of pension profit-sharing 401k Keogh or other qualified

retirement plan or the assets of an IRA in our common stock stockholders should satisfy themselves that among

other things

their investment is consistent with their fiduciary obligations under ERISA and the Code

their investment is made in accordance with the documents and instruments governing their plan or

IRA including their plans investment policy

their investment satisfies the prudence and diversification requirements of ERISA

their investment will not impair the liquidity of the plan or IRA

their investment will not produce UBTI for the plan or IRA

they will be able to value the assets of the plan annually in accordance with ERISA requirements and

their investment will not constitute prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or

Section 4975 of the Code

Persons investing the assets of employee benefit plans should consider ERISA risks of investing in our

shares

ERISA and Code Section 4975 prohibit certain transactions that involve certain pension profit-sharing

employee benefit or retirement plans or individual retirement accounts and Keogh plans and any person who

is party-in-interest or disqualified person with respect to such plan Consequently the fiduciary of plan

contemplating an investment in the shares should consider whether we any other person
associated with the

issuance of the shares or any of their affiliates is or might become party-in-interest or disqualified person

with respect to the plan and if so whether an exception from such prohibited transaction rules is applicable In

addition the Department of Labor plan asset regulations provide that subject to certain exceptions the assets of

an entity in which plan holds an equity interest may be treated as assets of an investing plan in which event the

underlying assets of such entity and transactions involving such assets would be subject to the prohibited

transaction provisions We intend to take such steps as may be necessary to qualify us for one or more of the

exceptions available and thereby prevent our assets as being treated as assets of any investing plan

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not Applicable

ITEM PROPERTIES

As of December 31 2012 we wholly-owned 110 self storage facilities located in 17 states Alabama

Arizona California Florida Georgia Illinois Kentucky Mississippi Nevada New Jersey New York North

Carolina Pennsylvania South Carolina Tennessee Texas and Virginia and Canada comprising approximately

70190 units and approximately 9.2 million rentable square
feet Of the 110 properties we wholly-owned as of

December 31 2012 19 were acquired during 2012 As of December 31 2012 we also had minority interests in

eight additional self storage facilities located in three states comprising approximately 5550 units and

approximately 600400 rentable square feet Our interests in these properties range from 0.28% to 12.26%

Additionally we have minority interest in net leased industrial property in California with 356000 rentable

square
feet leased to single tenant
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As of December 31 2012 our wholly-owned self storage portfolio was comprised as follows

of Total Physical Climate- Rental

No of Sq Ft Rentable Occupancy Controlled Income

State Properties Units net Sq Ft %1 %2 %3

Alabama 1075 148200 1.6% 73.2% 45.6% 1.1%

Arizona 1975 243900 2.7% 83.0% 21.0% 2.2%

California 6400 849600 9.2% 1.0% 19.2% 15.2%

Florida 10 7750 877300 9.5% 81.6% 44.7% 11.0%

Georgia 22 12990 1708900 18.6% 70.6% 52.3% 14.3%

Illinois 2455 394000s 4.3% 75.5% 1.8% 4.3%

Kentucky 2870 415700 4.5% 85.0% 2.0% 4.3%

Mississippi 1495 224300 2.4% 79.1% 24.3% 0.5%

Nevada 4735 639000 7.0% 80.0% 60.0% 6.0%

New Jersey 4180 399600 4.4% 86.3% 59.7% 9.1%

New York 700 82800 0.9% 86.4% 20.2% 1.1%

North Carolina 1560 207600 2.3% 83.5% 17.8% 1.8%

Ontario Canada 2805 320600 3.5% 55.8% 67.9% 2.9%

Pennsylvania 2210 285700 3.1% 72.2% 10.6% 2.8%

South Carolina 12 6605 859100 9.3% 75.0% 21.6% 8.4%

Tennessee 855 157100 1.7% 80.2% 0.0% 0.9%

Texas4 10 6250 1036600 11.3% 85.5% 21.8% 9.4%

Virginia 3280 343900 3.7% 78.5% 42.4% 4.7%

Total 110 70190 9193900 100% 79.1% 33.5% 100%

Represents the occupied square feet of all facilities we own in state divided by total rentable square feet of

all the facilities we owned in such state as of December 31 2012

Represents the percentage of rentable square feet in climate-controlled units as of December 31 2012 for

each state

Represents rental income excludes administrative fees late fees and ancillary income for all facilities we

owned in state divided by our total rental income for the month of December 2012

Does not include properties in which we own minority interest including the interests owned in the

Montgomery County Self Storage DST properties the San Francisco Self Storage DST property the

Hawthorne property and the Southwest Colonial DST properties

Includes approximately 85000 rentable square feet of industrial warehouse/office space at the Chicago

Ogden Ave property

The Brewster property is currently under construction thus the related occupancy statistics exclude this

property

Included in the occupancy calculation for Ontario Canada is the Mississauga property which was 34%

occupied as of December 31 2012 The construction on this property was fully completed in December

2012
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The map below shows the geographic location of our self storage portfolio as of December 31 2012

The weighted average capitalization rate at acquisition for these 110 self storage facilities we owned as of

December 31 2012 was approximately 7.22% 7.58% for the 85 properties we acquired that were stabilized upon

acquisition and 4.51% for the 23 that were lease-up properties at acquisition and we had two properties that were

under development at acquisition Upon stabilization of the lease-up properties we expect the capitalization rate

of these properties to increase The weighted average capitalization rate is calculated as the estimated first year

annual net operating income at the respective property divided by the property purchase price exclusive of

offering costs closing costs and fees paid to our Advisor Estimated first year net operating income on our real

estate investments is total estimated revenues generally derived from the terms of in-place leases at the time we

acquire the property less property operating expenses generally based on the operating history of the property In

instances where management determines that historical amounts will not be representative of first year revenues

or property operating expenses management uses its best faith estimate of such amounts based on anticipated

property operations Estimated first year net operating income excludes interest expense asset management fees

depreciation and amortization and our company-level general and administrative expenses Historical operating

income for these properties is not necessarily indicative of future operating results

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we are party to legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business We

are not aware of any legal proceedings of which the outcome is reasonably likely to have material adverse

effect on our results of operations or financial condition nor are we aware of any such legal proceedings

contemplated by governmental authorities

None

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

As of March 21 2013 we had approximately 47.2 million shares of common stock outstanding including

approximately 3.3 million shares issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan held by total of

approximately 14100 stockholders of record There is no established trading market for our common stock

Therefore there is risk that stockholder may not be able to sell our stock at time or price acceptable to the

stockholder or at all We are currently selling shares of our common stock to the public at price of $10.79 per

share and at price of approximately $10.25 per share pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan

Additionally we provide discounts in our Offering for certain categories of purchasers including based on

volume discounts Pursuant to the terms of our charter certain restrictions are imposed on the ownership and

transfer of shares

Unless and until our shares are listed on national securities exchange it is not expected that public

market for our shares will develop To assist fiduciaries of plans subject to the annual reporting requirements of

ERISA and IRA trustees or custodians to prepare reports relating to an investment in our shares we intend to

provide reports of our quarterly and annual determinations of the current value of our net assets per outstanding

share to those fiduciaries including IRA trustees and custodians who identify themselves to us and request the

reports We intend to provide the estimated value of our shares in our annual report each year

Effective June 2012 the offering price of our shares of common stock increased from $10.00 per share to

$10.79 per share This increase was primarily based on the April 2012 estimated per share value of our

common stock of $10.79 which was calculated based on the estimated value of our assets less the estimated value

of our liabilities or net asset value divided by the number of shares outstanding on an adjusted fully diluted

basis calculated as of December 31 2011 In light of the above-described net asset value calculation our board

of directors determined that it was appropriate to increase the
per

share offering price for new purchases of our

shares commencing on June 2012 This determination by our board of directors was subjective and was

primarily based on the estimated net asset value per share which was predominantly based on an independent

third party appraisers valuation of our properties as of December 31 2011 ii the commissions and dealer

manager fees payable in connection with the offering of our shares iiiour historical and anticipated results of

operations and financial condition iv our current and anticipated distribution payments our current and

anticipated capital and debt structure and vi our Advisors recommendations and assessment of our prospects

and continued execution of our investment and operating strategies Please see our Form 8-K filed with the SEC

on April 2012 for more detailed information relating to the key assumptions used by the independent third-

party appraiser and the methodology used by our board of directors to determine the per share offering price We
intend to use this net asset valuation as the estimated

per
share value of our shares until the next net asset

valuation approved by our board of directors which we expect to occur subsequent to the closing of our current

Offering and in conformity with applicable FINRA rules The estimated value per share does not represent the

fair value of our assets less our liabilities according to GAAP nor does it represent liquidation value of our

assets and liabilities or the amount at which our shares of common stock would trade on national securities

exchange

We will provide annual reports of our determination of value to IRA trustees and custodians not later

than January 15 of each year and to other plan fiduciaries within 75 days after the end of each calendar year

Each determination may be based upon valuation information available as of October 31 of the preceding year

updated however for any material changes occurring between October 31 and December 31

There can be no assurance however with respect to any estimate of value that we prepare that

the estimated value per share would actually be realized by our stockholders upon liquidation because

these estimates do not necessarily indicate the price at which properties can be sold
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our stockholders would be able to realize estimated net asset values if they were to attempt to sell their

shares because no public market for our shares exists or is likely to develop or

that the value or method used to establish value would comply with ERISA or Code requirements

described above

Distributions

We made an election to be taxed as REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code beginning with the

taxable year
ended December 31 2008 To qualify as REIT we must meet certain organizational and

operational requirements including requirement to currently distribute at least 90% of the REIT ordinary

taxable income to stockholders As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on taxable

income that we distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will then be

subject to federal income taxes on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and will not be permitted to

qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes
for four years following the year during which

qualification is lost unless the IRS grants us relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could

materially adversely affect our net income and net cash available for distribution to stockholders However we

believe that we will be organized and operate in such manner as to qualify for treatment as REIT and intend

to operate in the foreseeable future in such manner that we will remain qualified as REIT for federal income

tax purposes

For income tax purposes distributions to common stockholders are characterized as ordinary dividends

capital gain dividends or as nontaxable distributions To the extent that we make distribution in excess of our

current or accumulated earnings and profits the distribution will be non-taxable return of capital reducing the

tax basis in each U.S stockholders shares and the amount of each distribution in excess of U.S stockholders

tax basis in its shares will be taxable as gain realized from the sale of its shares For 2008 and 2009 all of our

distributions constituted non-taxable returns of capital which were paid from offering proceeds For 2010 we

paid total of approximately $14.6 million in distributions of which approximately $12.7 million constituted

non-taxable return of capital For 2011 we paid total of approximately $21.4 million in distributions of which

approximately $19.5 million constituted non-taxable return of capital For 2012 we paid total of

approximately $28.1 million in distributions all of which constituted non-taxable return of capital In addition

approximately $12.3 million of distributions in 2012 were re-invested pursuant to our distribution reinvestment

plan

The following table shows the distributions we have declared and paid during the years
ended December 31

2012 and 2011

Distributions

Total Distributions Declared per

Quarter Declared and Paid Common Share

1st Quarter 2011 $4656227 $.175

2nd Quarter 2011 $5188650 $.175

3rd Quarter 2011 $5566844 $.175

4th Quarter 2011 $5945668 $.175

itt Quarter 2012 $6135014 $.175

2nd Quarter 2012 $6576722 $.175

3rdQuer2Oi2 $7645017 $.175

4thQuer2Oi2 $7786627 $.175

Declared distributions are paid monthly in arrears All declared amounts were paid as of December 31

2012 except for distributions related to shares owned during December 2012 which were paid on

January 15 2013
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides details of our Employee and Director Long-Term Incentive Plan as of

December 31 2012 under which shares of our common stock are authorized for issuance

Number of Weighted
Securities to be Average Exercise

Issued Upon Price of Number of Securities

Exercise of Outstanding Remaining for Future

Outstanding Options Issuance Under

Options Warrants Warrants and Equity Compensation
Plan Category and Rights Rights Plans

Equity Compensation Plans

Approved by Security

Holders 4603474

Equity Compensation Plans

Not Approved by Security

Holders

Total 4603474

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On March 17 2008 our Initial Offering SEC File No 333-146959 for maximum of 110000000 shares

of common stock consisting of 100000000 shares for sale to the public and 10000000 shares for sale pursuant

to our distribution reinvestment plan was declared effective by the SEC We terminated the Initial Offering on

September 16 2011 prior to the sale of all securities registered in the Initial Offering On September 22 2011

our Offering SEC File No 333-168905 for maximum of 110000000 shares of common stock consisting of

100000000 shares for sale to the public and 10000000 shares for sale pursuant to our distribution reinvestment

plan was declared effective by the SEC As of December 31 2012 we had issued approximately 42.7

million shares of common stock in our Initial Offering and Offering raising gross offering proceeds of

approximately $426 million From this amount we incurred approximately $12.6 million in acquisition fees to

our Advisor approximately $39 million in selling commissions and dealer manager fees of which approximately

$31 million was reallowed to third party broker-dealers and approximately $4.4 million in organization and

offering costs to our Advisor With the net offering proceeds and indebtedness we acquired approximately

$463 million in self storage facilities and made the other payments reflected under Cash Flows from Financing

Activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows included in this report

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

As noted in Notes and of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report and

more fully described in our prospectus as supplemented from time to time our board of directors adopted share

redemption program on February 25 2008 as revised in October 2011 and March 2012 which enables our

stockholders to have their shares redeemed by us subject to the significant conditions and limitations described

in our prospectus Our share redemption program has no set termination date but our ability to redeem shares

under the program is limited as described in our prospectus During the year ended December 31 2012 we

redeemed approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock for approximately $12.6 million $9.60 per share

During the year ended December 31 2011 we redeemed approximately 993300 shares of common stock for

approximately $9.7 million $9.75 per share During the year ended December 31 2010 we redeemed 381800

shares of common stock for approximately $3.7 million $9.57 per share During the
year

ended December 31

2009 we redeemed 11916 shares of common stock for approximately $114300 $9.59 per share We redeemed

no shares of common stock in the year ended December 31 2008 We have funded all redemptions using

proceeds from the sale of shares pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan
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As of December 31 2012 we had redemption requests for approximately 444000 shares of common stock

for approximately $4.3 million that if honored in full would have caused us to exceed the limits of the share

redemption program We honored such redemption requests pursuant to the terms of the share redemption

program redeeming all death and disability redemption requests
and approximately 76% of the other redemption

requests Such redemptions totaled approximately 343600 shares for approximately $3.3 million $9.69 per

share and were redeemed on January 31 2013 and such amount was reclassified from redeemable common

stock to accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2012 As

of December 31 2012 we had approximately 100400 shares that were requested for redemption but could not

be redeemed as it would have caused us to exceed the limits of the share redemption program We treated the

remainder of each redemption request as request for redemption in the first quarter of 2013 We have funded all

redemptions using proceeds from the sale of shares pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan Our board of

directors may choose to amend suspend or terminate our share redemption program upon 30 days written notice

at any time

During the year
ended December 31 2012 we redeemed shares as follows

For the Quarter
Ended

March3l2012

June 30 2012

September 30 2012

December 31 2012

Total Number of Shares Average Price

Redeemed Paid per Share

92002 $9.65

566969 $9.57

295897 $9.62

355659 $9.61

Total Number of Shares Redeemed

as Part of Publicly Announced

Plans or Programs

92002

566969

295897

355659

We redeem shares on quarterly basis shares are redeemed on the last business day of the month following

the end of each quarter
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial and operating information should be read in conjunction with

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the financial

statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K

For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Operating Data

Total revenues 66610504 49396078 26161182 7875143 365651

Loss from continuing

operations 19015142 21834237 13247015 7404519 1595043
Net loss attributable to

Strategic Storage Trust

Inc 18973712 21357429 12790815 7302896 1504293
Loss from continuing

operations per common

share-basic and diluted 0.46 0.68 0.59 1.00 2.50
Dividends declared

per

common share

annualized 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70

Balance Sheet Data

Real estate facilities $604727895 510395576 274568200 $155058360 15166724
Total assets 631235662 550434267 307361213 203701303 19819983
Total debt 353440758 330043207 119811948 78256583 4000000
Total liabilities 371174593 342035731 126805993 82997383 5532519
Stockholders equity 256100405 205590699 176224923 119068866 14287464

Other Data

Net cash provided by used in

operating activities 9550340 2838807 944256 2595891 1106248
Net cash used in investing

activities 95632616 206361756 124477551 44300463 16311595
Net cash provided by financing

activities 86814473 210297834 106192928 68060180 19831475
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data

above and our accompanying consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto See also Cautionary Note

Regarding Forward-Looking Statements preceding Part

Overview

As described in more detail in Item of this report we are public non-traded REIT that invests primarily

in self storage facilities and related self storage real estate investments We were formed on August 14 2007 We

made an election to be taxed as REIT beginning with the taxable year ended December 31 2008 We have no

paid employees Our Advisor is responsible for managing our affairs on day-to-day basis and identifying and

making acquisitions and investments on our behalf under the terms of the advisory agreement with our Advisor

Our Advisor was formed on August 13 2007

On March 17 2008 we began our Initial Offering On May 22 2008 we satisfied the minimum offering

requirements of the Initial Offering and commenced formal operations On September 16 2011 we terminated

the Initial Offering having sold approximately 29 million shares for gross proceeds of approximately $289

million On September 22 2011 we commenced our Offering As of December 31 2012 we had raised gross

offering proceeds of approximately $426 million in our Initial Offering and our Offering

As of December 31 2012 we wholly-owned 110 self storage facilities located in 17 states Alabama

Arizona California Florida Georgia Illinois Kentucky Mississippi Nevada New Jersey New York North

Carolina Pennsylvania South Carolina Tennessee Texas and Virginia and Canada comprising approximately

70190 units and approximately 9.2 million rentable square
feet As of December 31 2012 we also had minority

interests in eight additional self storage facilities Additionally we have an interest in net leased industrial

property in California with 356000 rentable square feet leased to single tenant

Critical Accounting Estimates

We have established accounting policies which conform to generally accepted accounting principles

GAAP Preparing financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to use judgment in

the application of accounting policies including making estimates and assumptions Following is discussion of

the estimates and assumptions used in setting accounting policies that we consider critical in the presentation of

our financial statements Many estimates and assumptions involved in the application of GAAP may have

material impact on our financial condition or operating performance or on the comparability of such information

to amounts reported for other periods because of the subjectivity and judgment required to account for highly

uncertain items or the susceptibility of such items to change These estimates and assumptions affect our reported

amounts of assets and liabilities our disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial

statements and our reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period covered by this report If

managements judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances relating to various transactions had been

different it is possible that different accounting policies would have been applied or different amounts of assets

liabilities revenues and expenses would have been recorded thus resulting in materially different presentation

of the financial statements or materially different amounts being reported in the financial statements

Additionally other companies may use different estimates and assumptions that may impact the comparability of

our financial condition and results of operations to those companies

We believe that our critical accounting policies include the following real estate purchase price allocations

the evaluation of whether any of our long-lived assets have been impaired the determination of the useful lives

of our long-lived assets and the evaluation of the consolidation of our interests in joint ventures The following

discussion of these policies supplements but does not supplant the description of our significant accounting

policies as contained in Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this report

and is intended to present our analysis of the uncertainties involved in arriving upon and applying each policy
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Real Estate Purchase Price Allocation

We allocate the purchase prices of acquired properties based on number of estimates and assumptions We
allocate the purchase prices to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on

estimated fair values These estimated fair values are based upon comparable market sales information for land

and estimates of depreciated replacement cost of equipment building and site improvements Acquisitions of

portfolios of properties are allocated to the individual properties based upon an income approach or cash flow

analysis using appropriate risk adjusted capitalization rates which we estimate based upon the relative size age
and location of the individual property along with actual historical and estimated occupancy and rental rate

levels and other relevant factors If available and determined by management to be appropriate appraised

values are used rather than these estimated values Because we believe that substantially all of the leases in place

at properties we will acquire will be at market rates as the majority of the leases are month-to-month contracts

we do not expect to allocate any portion of the purchase prices to above or below market leases The

determination of market rates is also subject to number of estimates and assumptions Our allocations of

purchase prices could result in materially different presentation of the financial statements or materially

different amounts being reported in the financial statements as such allocations may vary dramatically based on

the estimates and assumptions we use

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The majority of our assets consist of long-lived real estate assets as well as intangible assets related to our

acquisitions We will continually evaluate such assets for impairment based on events and changes in

circumstances that may arise in the future and that may impact the carrying amounts of our long-lived assets

When indicators of potential impairment are present we will assess the recoverability of the particular asset by

determining whether the carrying value of the asset will be recovered through an evaluation of the undiscounted

future operating cash flows expected from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition This evaluation is

based on number of estimates and assumptions Based on this evaluation if the expected undiscounted future

cash flows do not exceed the carrying value we will adjust the value of the long-lived asset and recognize an

impairment loss Our evaluation of the impairment of long-lived assets could result in materially different

presentation of the financial statements or materially different amounts being reported in the financial statements

as the amount of impairment loss if any recognized may vary based on the estimates and assumptions we use

Estimated Useful Lives of Long-Lived Assets

We assess the useful lives of the assets underlying our properties based upon subjective determination of

the period of future benefit for each asset We will record depreciation expense with respect to these assets based

upon the estimated useful lives we determine Our determinations of the useful lives of the assets could result in

materially different presentation of the financial statements or materially different amounts being reported in the

financial statements as such determinations and the corresponding amount of depreciation expense may vary

dramatically based on the estimates and assumptions we use

Consolidation of Investments in Joint Ventures

We evaluate the consolidation of our investments in joint ventures in accordance with relevant accounting

guidance This evaluation requires us to determine whether we have controlling interest in joint venture

through means other than voting rights and if so such joint venture may be required to be consolidated in our

financial statements Our evaluation of our joint ventures under such accounting guidance could result in

materially different presentation of the financial statements or materially different amounts being reported in the

financial statements as the entities included in our financial statements may vary based on the estimates and

assumptions we use
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REIT Qualification

We made an election under Section 856c of the Code to be taxed as REIT commencing with the taxable

year
ended December 31 2008 By qualifying as REIT for federal income tax purposes we generally will not

be subject to federal income tax on income that we distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as REIT

in any taxable year we will be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and

will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following

the
year

in which our qualification is denied Such an event could materially and adversely affect our net income

and could have material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations However we

believe that we are organized and will operate in manner that will enable us to qualify for treatment as REIT

for federal income tax purposes commencing with the year
ended December 31 2008 and we intend to continue

to operate as to remain qualified as REIT for federal income tax purposes

Results of Operations

Overview

We derive revenues principally from rents received from our customers who rent units at our self storage

facilities under month-to-month leases Therefore our operating results depend significantly on our ability to

retain our existing customers and lease our available self storage units to new customers while maintaining and

where possible increasing the prices for our self storage units Additionally our operating results depend on our

customers making their required rental payments to us We believe that our Property Managers approach to the

management and operation of our facilities which emphasizes local market oversight and control results in

quick and effective response to changes in local market conditions including increasing rents and/or increasing

occupancy levels where appropriate

Competition in the market areas in which we operate is significant and affects the occupancy levels rental

rates rental revenues and operating expenses
of our facilities Development of any new self storage facilities

would intensify competition of self storage operators
in markets in which we operate

As of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we wholly-owned 110 91 and 45 self storage facilities

respectively The comparability of our results of operations is significantly affected by our acquisition activity in

2012 2011 and 2010 as listed below

In 2012 we acquired 19 self storage facilities for consideration of approximately $93 million Of the

110 properties we owned as of December 31 2012 we owned them for an average
of approximately

ten months during 2012

In 2011 we acquired 46 self storage
facilities for consideration of approximately $245 million Of the

91 properties we owned as of December 31 2011 we owned them for an average
of approximately

nine months during 2011

In 2010 we acquired 19 self storage facilities for consideration of approximately $126 million Of the

45 properties we owned as of December 31 2010 we owned them for an average of approximately

nine months during 2010

Related to the acquisition activity noted above we acquired the Homeland Portfolio lease-up portfolio

with initial occupancy of 46% on December 27 2011 In connection therewith we incurred additional debt by

entering into the Second Restated KeyBank Loan and the KeyBank Bridge Loan Additional discussion of the

aforementioned is included below

Due to the items noted above we believe there is little basis for comparison between the years
ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
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Homeland Portfolio

On December 27 2011 we acquired the Homeland Portfolio consisting of 12 self storage lease-up facilities

with initial occupancy of 46% for $80 million We believe that in 2013 the Homeland Portfolio will provide

additional operating income and cash flows However we expect the Homeland Portfolio to continue to

negatively impact our results of operations as it did in the year ended December 31 2012 albeit to lesser

extent for at least the next several fiscal quarters for several reasons First the Homeland Portfolio is lease-up

portfolio and while occupancy is increasing 69% as of December 31 2012 these properties are currently

operating at loss after considering interest expense and deferred financing amortization expense Second

during 2012 we offered additional concessions to increase occupancy However as the occupancy begins to

stabilize such concessions will decrease and rental revenues should be positively impacted Third we incurred

additional debt by entering into the Second Restated KeyBank Loan and the KeyBank Bridge Loan to acquire the

Homeland Portfolio See Note Secured Debt This additional debt the majority of which was utilized to

fund the acquisition of the Homeland Portfolio resulted in the recognition of approximately $4.2 million of

interest expense and approximately $1.8 million deferred financing amortization expense non-cash expense

for the year ended December 31 2012 which negatively impacted our operating results Furthermore for the

year ended December 31 2012 included in interest expense was $0.8 million and included in deferred financing

amortization expense was $1.0 million of amounts related to the KeyBank Bridge Loan which was repaid in full

on August 2012 and as such these amounts will not impact future results Below is chart illustrating the

increase in the Homeland Portfolio occupancy since our acquisition

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Self Storage Rental Revenue

Rental revenue for the
year

ended December 31 2012 was approximately $64.5 million as compared to

rental revenue for the
year ended December 31 2011 of approximately $48.1 million an increase of

approximately $16.4 million The increase in rental revenue arises primarily from full
year

of rental revenue

from the 46 properties acquired in 2011 approximately $12.1 million the acquisition of 19 properties during

2012 approximately $2.4 million and an increase in same-store rental revenue approximately $1.9 million

We expect rental revenue to increase in future periods as we derive rental revenue for the entire year for

properties acquired during 2012 and as we acquire additional operating facilities
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Ancillary Operating Revenue

Ancillary operating revenue for the year ended December 31 2012 was approximately $2.1 million as

compared to ancillary operating revenue for the year ended December 31 2011 of approximately $1.3 million

The increase in ancillary operating revenue is due to the same factors as noted above in self storage rental

revenue and as result of our emphasis on increasing tenant insurance sales We expect ancillary operating

revenue to increase in future periods as we derive ancillary operating revenue for the entire year for properties

acquired during 2012 and as we acquire additional self storage facilities

Properly Operating Expenses

Property operating expenses
for the

year
ended December 31 2012 were approximately $25.9 million

approximately 8.9% of total revenues as compared to property operating expenses
for the year ended

December 31 2011 of approximately $19.4 million approximately 39.3% of total revenues Property operating

expenses includes the costs to operate our facilities including payroll utilities insurance real estate taxes and

marketing The majority of the increase in property operating expenses arises from the increase in the number of

self storage facilities we owned partially off-set by decrease in same-store property operating expenses of

approximately $0.4 million As percentage of total revenues our property operating expenses
decreased by

approximately 0.4% over 2011 primarily due to increased same-store revenues and cost reduction initiatives

Our same-store property operating expenses as percentage of revenues decreased by 3.2% for the year ended

December 31 2012 approximately 36.5% of total revenues compared to the same period in 2011

approximately 39.7% of total revenues due to increased same-store revenues and cost reduction initiatives We

expect property operating expenses to increase in future periods as we incur such expenses
for the entire year for

properties acquired during 2012 and as we acquire additional self storage facilities

Properly Operating Expensesaffiliates

Property operating expensesaffiliates for the year ended December 31 2012 were approximately $8.3

million approximately 12.4% of total revenues as compared to property operating expensesaffiliates for the

year
ended December 31 2011 of approximately $5.7 million approximately 11.5% of total revenues Property

operating expenses affiliates includes property management fees and asset management fees The increase in

property operating expensesaffiliates primarily arises from the jncrease in the number of self storage facilities

we owned Property operating expensesaffiliates as percentage of revenues increased by approximately 0.9%

for the year
ended December 31 2012 compared to 2011 as the year ended December 31 2012 included the

Homeland Portfolio lease-up properties and the Mississauga lease-up property Such lease-up properties

operating expenses are significantly higher as percentage of revenues than our stabilized properties We expect

that as these properties achieve stabilization their property operating expensesaffiliates as percentage of

revenues will decrease Our same-store property operating expensesaffiliates as percentage of revenues

decreased by 0.4% for the
year

ended December 31 2012 approximately 10.9% of total revenues compared to

the same period in 2011 approximately 11.3% of total revenues primarily due to increased same-store revenues

We expect property operating expensesaffiliates to increase in future periods as we incur such expenses for the

entire year for properties acquired during 2012 and as we acquire additional self storage facilities

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses were approximately $2.4 million for each of the years
ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 Such expenses consist primarily of legal expenses accounting expenses transfer

agent fees directors and officers insurance expense and board of directors related costs During the
year

ended

December 31 2012 and the three final quarters of 2011 our Advisor permanently waived certain reimbursable

amounts that were due pursuant to the advisory agreement Such reimbursements totaling approximately

$250000 were not waived in the first quarter of 2011 The reduction in general and administrative expenses
in

2012 due to the waiver of such reimbursements for an additional quarter was primarily off-set by an increase in
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transfer agent costs as our investor base increased We expect general and administrative expenses to increase in

future periods as we acquire additional self storage facilities but expect such expenses to decrease as

percentage
of total revenues

Depreciation and Intangible Amortization Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31 2012 were approximately $25.8

million compared to approximately $23.4 million for
year

ended December 31 2011 Depreciation expense

consists primarily of depreciation on the buildings and site improvements at our properties Amortization

expense consists of the amortization of intangible assets resulting from our acquisitions The increase in

depreciation expense is attributable to the increase in the number of self storage facilities we owned while the

decrease in amortization expense primarily relates to certain of our intangible assets that became fully amortized

during the year ended December 31 2012 We expect depreciation and amortization expenses to increase in

future periods as we acquire additional operating facilities

Property Acquisition Expenses

Property acquisition expenses for the year ended December 31 2012 were approximately $3.6 million as

compared to approximately $7.7 million for the year ended December 31 2011 The decrease in property

acquisition expenses arises primarily from acquiring fewer properties in 2012 compared to 2011 We expect

property acquisition expenses to fluctuate commensurate with our acquisition activity

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 31 2012 was approximately $17.8 million as compared to

interest expense of approximately $11.9 million for the year ended December 31 2011 The increase primarily

relates to additional interest incurred on the Second Restated KeyBank Loan approximately $3.8 million the

KeyBank Bridge Loan approximately $0.8 million and other new debt We expect interest expense to increase

in future periods as such expense is incurred for the entire year for debt transactions completed in 2012 and to the

extent we acquire additional properties through the issuance or assumption of secured debt

Deferred Financing Amortization Expense

Deferred financing amortization
expense

for the
year

ended December 31 2012 was approximately $3.5

million as compared to approximately $1.3 million for the year ended December 31 2011 The increase

primarily relates to the additional amortization of deferred financing fees incurred on the Second Restated

KeyBank Loan approximately $1.1 million the KeyBank Bridge Loan approximately $0.9 million and other

new debt incurred

Gain on Sale of Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Venture

Gain on sale of investment in unconsolidated joint venture for the year ended December 31 2012 was

approximately $0.8 million compared to none for the year ended December 31 2011 The gain relates to the sale

of our interests in an unconsolidated joint venture which owns self storage facility in Baltimore Maryland
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Same-Store Facility Results

The following table sets forth operating data for our same-store facilities We consider the following data to

be meaningful as this allows for the comparison of results without the effects of acquisition or development

activity

Same-Store Facilities Non Same-Store Facilities Total

2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change

Revenue $38828725 $36614516 6.0% $27781779 $12781562 117% $66610504 $49396078 34.8%

Property operating

expenses 16189611 16306189 0.7% 13421094 5779488 132% 29610705 22085677 34.1%

Operating income $22639114 $20308327 11.5% $14360685 7002074 105% $36999799 $27310401 35.5%

Number of facilities 46 46 65 46 111 92

Rentable square feet 4265000 4265000 5006800 3667700 9271800 7932700

Average physical

occupancy 80% 76% N/M NJM 77% 77%

Rent per occupied square

foot5 0.87 0.87 NIM NIM 0.81 0.83

NIM Not meaningful

Revenue includes rental revenue ancillary revenue and administrative and late fees

Property operating expenses excludes corporate general arid administrative expenses asset management

fees interest expense depreciation amortization expense and acquisition expenses

For purposes of this comparison we have included our consolidated joint venture SF Property in same-

store facilities

Determined by dividing the sum of the month-end occupied square feet for the applicable group of facilities

for each applicable period by the sum of their month-end rentable square
feet for the period Properties are

included in the respective calculations in their first full month of operations as appropriate

Determined by dividing the aggregate realized rental revenue for each applicable period by the aggregate of

the month-end occupied square
feet for the period Properties are included in the respective calculations in

their first full month of operations as appropriate

Our increase in same-store revenue was primarily the result of increased average physical occupancy for the

year of approximately 400 basis points over 2011 and increased tenant insurance revenue due to increased

penetration rates year over year Same-store operating income increased year over year due to the increased

revenue noted above along with decreases in payroll utilities and repairs and maintenance expenses
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In addition to the annual same-store comparison above we have included the table below to illustrate the

change of both same-store revenue and operating income in each quarter of 2012 over the same quarter in 2011

Three months ended

March 312012 June 302012 September 302012 December 312012

Same-store revenue growth 35% 4.5% 5.5% 5.8%

Same-store operating income

growth 7.5% 5.7% 8.5% 10.4%

Number of properties 46 61 72 77

Represents the percentage change in revenue of our same-store facilities for the respective quarter in 2012

compared to the same quarter of 2011 Same-store revenue includes rental revenue ancillary revenue and

administrative and late fees

Represents the percentage change in operating income of our same-store facilities for the respective quarter

in 2012 compared to the same quarter of 2011 Same-store operating income is calculated as revenue as

defined above less property operating expenses which excludes corporate general and administrative

expenses asset management fees interest expense depreciation amortization and acquisition expenses

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Self Storage Rental Revenue

Rental revenue for the year ended December 31 2011 was approximately $48.1 million as compared to

rental revenue for the year ended December 31 2010 of approximately $25.6 million The increase in rental

revenue arises primarily from the acquisition of 46 properties during 2011 approximately $12.4 million and

full year of rental revenue from the 19 properties acquired in 2010 approximately $9.8 million

Ancillary Operating Revenue

Ancillary operating revenue for the year ended December 31 2011 was approximately $1.3 million as

compared to ancillary operating revenue for the year ended December 31 2010 of approximately $0.6 million

The increase in ancillary operating revenue is due to the same factors as noted above in self storage rental

revenue and as result of our increased emphasis on tenant insurance sales

Property Operating Expenses

Property operating expenses for the year ended December 31 2011 were approximately $19.4 million as

compared to property operating expenses for the year ended December 31 2010 of approximately $10.1 million

The increase in property operating expenses arises primarily from the acquisition of 46 properties during 2011

and full year of property operating expenses from the 19 properties acquired in 2010 Property operating

expenses include the costs to operate our facilities including payroll utilities insurance real estate taxes and

marketing

Property Operating Expensesaffiliates

Property operating expensesaffiliates for the year ended December 31 2011 were approximately $5.7

million as compared to property operating expensesaffiliates for the year ended December 31 2010 of

approximately $2.7 million Property operating expensesaffiliates include property management fees and asset

management fees The increase in property operating expensesaffiliates is due to the same factors as noted

above in property operating expenses
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31 2011 were approximately $2.4

million as compared to general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31 2010 of

approximately $2.8 million Such expenses consist primarily of legal and accounting expenses directors and

officers insurance expense transfer agent costs an allocation of portion of our Advisors payroll related costs

and board of directors related costs The decrease is primarily due to our Advisors permanent waiver of certain

reimbursable amounts due pursuant to the advisory agreement such amounts were waived for the last three fiscal

quarters of 2011 and totaled approximately $740000 for the year ended December 31 2011 Partially offsetting

the reduction related to the aforementioned waived reimbursable amounts were additional costs related to

branding and other increases commensurate with our increased size

Depreciation and Intangible Amortization Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31 2011 were approximately $23.4

million as compared to depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31 2010 of

approximately $13.1 million The increase in depreciation and amortization expenses arises primarily from the

acquisition of 46 properties during 2011 and full year of such expenses on the 2010 acquisitions Depreciation

expense consists primarily of deprecation on the buildings and site improvements at our properties Amortization

expense consists of the amortization of intangible assets resulting from our acquisitions

Property Acquisition Expenses

Property acquisition expenses for the year ended December 31 2011 were approximately $7.7 million as

compared to approximately $5.2 million for the year ended December 31 2010 The increase in property

acquisition expenses arises primarily from the acquisition of 46 properties during 2011 as compared to 19

properties during 2010

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 31 2011 was approximately $11.9 million as compared to

interest expense of approximately $6.0 million for the year ended December 31 2010 The increase between

2010 and 2011 is primarily due to increased debt levels

Deferred Financing Amortization Expense

Deferred financing amortization expense for the year ended December 31 2011 was approximately $1.3

million as compared to approximately $0.3 million for the year ended December 31 2010 The increase between

2010 and 2011 is primarily due to increased debt levels

Equity in Earnings of Real Estate Ventures

Equity in earnings of real estate ventures for the year ended December 31 2011 was approximately $0.9

million compared to approximately $0.9 million for the year ended December 31 2010
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Same-Store Facility Results

The following table sets forth operating data for our same-store facilities We consider the following data to

be meaningful as this allows for the comparison of results without the effects of acquisition or development

activity

Same-Store Facilities Non Same-Store Facilities Total

2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change

Revenue $19987673 $19567237 2.1% $29408405 $6593945 346% $49396078 $26161182 88.8%

Property operating

expenses 8558310 8432797 1.5% 13527367 2948320 359% 22085677 11381117 94.1%

Operating income $11429363 $11134440 2.6% $15881038 $3645625 336% $27310401 $14780065 84.8%

Number of facilities 27 27 65 19 92 46

Rentable square feet 2630400 2630400 5302300 1634600 7932700 4265000

Average physical

occupancy 79% 79% NIM NIM 77% 78%

Rent per occupied square

foot 0.74 0.74 N/M NIM 0.83 0.82

N/M Not meaningful

Revenue includes rental revenue ancillary revenue and administrative and late fees

Property operating expenses
excludes corporate general and administrative expenses asset management

fees interest expense depreciation amortization expense and acquisition expenses

For purposes of this comparison we have included our consolidated joint venture SF Property in same-

store facilities

Determined by dividing the sum of the month-end occupied square feet for the applicable group of facilities

for each applicable period by the sum of their month-end rentable square feet for the period Properties are

included in the respective calculations in their first full month of operations as appropriate

Determined by dividing the aggregate realized rental revenue for each applicable period by the aggregate of

the month-end occupied square feet for the period Properties are included in the respective calculations in

their first full month of operations as appropriate

Our increase in same-store revenue was primarily the result of slightly increased average physical

occupancy of approximately 30 basis points over the prior year and increased tenant insurance revenue due to

increased penetration rates achieved in the fourth quarter of 2011 Same-store operating income increased year

over year due to the increased revenue noted above off-set primarily by moderate increases in property taxes and

repairs and maintenance while other costs generally remained constant
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In addition to the annual same-store analysis above we have included the table below to illustrate the

change of both same-store revenue and operating income in each quarter of 2011 relative to the same quarter in

2010

Three months ended

March 312011 June 302011 September 302011 December 312011

Same-store revenue

change1 2.1% 1.7% 0.9% 2.3%

Same-store operating income

change 4.6% 2.9% 0.1% 0.4%

Number of properties 27 30 35 36

Represents the percentage change in revenue of our same-store facilities for the respective quarter in 2011

compared to the same quarter of 2010 Same-store revenue includes rental revenue ancillary revenue and

administrative and late fees

Represents the percentage change in operating income of our same-store facilities for the respective quarter

in 2011 compared to the same quarter of 2010 Same-store operating income is calculated as revenue as

defined above less property operating expenses which exclude corporate general and administrative

expenses asset management fees interest expense depreciation amortization and acquisition expenses

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Funds from Operations and Modified Funds from Operations

Due to certain unique operating characteristics of real estate companies the National Association of Real

Estate Investment Trusts or NAREIT an industry trade group has promulgated measure known as funds from

operations or FF0 which we believe to be an appropriate supplemental measure to reflect the operating

performance of REIT The use of FF0 is recommended by the REIT industry as supplemental performance

measure FF0 is not equivalent to our net income loss as determined under GAAP

We define FF0 non-GAAP measure consistent with the standards established by the White Paper on FF0

approved by the Board of Governors of NAREIT as revised in February 2004 or the White Paper The White Paper

defines FF0 as net income loss computed in accordance with GAAP excluding gains or losses from sales of

property and asset impairment writedowns plus depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for

unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures are

calculated to reflect FF0 on the same basis Our FF0 calculation complies with NAREITs policy described above

The historical accounting convention used for real estate assets requires straight-line depreciation of

buildings and improvements which implies that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time

Diminution in value may occur if such assets are not adequately maintained or repaired and renovated as required

by relevant circumstances or other measures necessary to maintain the assets are not undertaken However we

believe that since real estate values historically rise and fall with market conditions including inflation interest

rates the business cycle unemployment and consumer spending presentations of operating results for REIT

using historical accounting for depreciation may be less informative In addition in the determination of FF0 we

believe it is appropriate to disregard impairment charges as this is fair value adjustment that is largely based on

market fluctuations and assessments regarding general market conditions which can change over time An asset

will only be evaluated for impairment if certain impairment indications exist and if the carrying value or book

value exceeds the total estimated undiscounted future cash flows including net rental revenues net proceeds on

the sale of the property and any other ancillary cash flows at property or group level under GAAP from such

asset Testing for impairment is continuous process
and is analyzed on quarterly basis Investors should note

however that determinations of whether impairment charges have been incurred are based partly on anticipated

operating performance because estimated undiscounted future cash flows from property including estimated
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future net rental revenues net proceeds on the sale of the property and certain other ancillary cash flows are

taken into account in determining whether an impairment charge has been incurred While impairment charges

are excluded from the calculation of FF0 as described above investors are cautioned that due to the fact that

impairments are based on estimated future undiscounted cash flows and that we intend to have relatively

limited term of our operations it could be difficult to recover any impairment charges through the eventual sale

of the property To date we have not recognized any impairments

Historical accounting for real estate involves the use of GAAP Any other method of accounting for real estate

such as the fair value method cannot be construed to be
any more accurate or relevant than the comparable

methodologies of real estate valuation found in GAAP Nevertheless we believe that the use of FF0 which

excludes the impact of real estate related depreciation and amortization and impairments assists in providing more

complete understanding of our performance to investors and to our management and when compared year over

year reflects the impact on our operations from trends in occupancy rates rental rates operating costs general and

administrative expenses and interest costs which may not be immediately apparent from net income loss

However FF0 or Modified FF0 MFFO discussed below should not be construed to be more relevant

or accurate than the current GAAP methodology in calculating net income loss or in its applicability in

evaluating our operating performance The method utilized to evaluate the value and performance of real estate

under GAAP should be considered more relevant measure of operational performance and is therefore given

more prominence than the non-GAAP FF0 and MFFO measures and the adjustments to GAAP in calculating

FF0 and MFFO

Changes in the accounting and reporting rules under GAAP that were put into effect and other changes to

GAAP accounting for real estate subsequent to the establishment of NAREITs definition of FF0 have prompted

an increase in cash-settled expenses specifically acquisition fees and expenses as items that are expensed as

operating expenses under GAAP We believe these fees and
expenses

do not affect our overall long-term

operating performance Publicly registered non-traded REITs typically have significant amount of acquisition

activity and are substantially more dynamic during their initial years of investment and operation The purchase

of properties and the corresponding expenses associated with that process is key feature of our business plan

in order to generate operational income and cash flow in order to make distributions to investors While other

start-up entities may also experience significant acquisition activity during their initial years we believe that

publicly registered non-traded REITs are unique in that they typically have limited life with targeted exit

strategies within relatively limited time frame after the acquisition activity ceases As disclosed in the

prospectus for our Offering we will use the proceeds raised in our Offering to acquire properties and we expect

to begin the process of achieving liquidity event i.e listing of our shares of common stock on national

securities exchange merger or sale the sale of all or substantially all of our assets or another similar

transaction within three to five years after the completion of our Offering which is generally comparable to

other publicly registered non-traded REITs Thus we do not intend to continuously purchase assets and intend to

have limited life The decision whether to engage in any liquidity event is in the sole discretion of our board of

directors Due to the above factors and other unique features of publicly registered non-traded REITs the

Investment Program Association or the IPA an industry trade group has standardized measure known as

modified funds from operations or MFFO which the IPA has recommended as supplemental measure for

publicly registered non-traded REITs and which we believe to be another appropriate supplemental measure to

reflect the operating performance of publicly registered non-traded REIT having the characteristics described

above MFFO is not equivalent to our net income loss as determined under GAAP and MFFO may not be

useful measure of the impact of long-term operating performance on value if we do not ultimately engage in

liquidity event We believe that because MFFO excludes acquisition fees and expenses that affect our operations

only in periods in which properties are acquired and that we consider more reflective of investing activities as

well as other non-operating items included in FF0 MFFO can provide on going-forward basis an indication

of the sustainability that is the capacity to continue to be maintained of our operating performance after the

period in which we are acquiring our properties and once our portfolio is in place By providing MFFO we

believe we are presenting useful information that assists investors and analysts to better assess the sustainability
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of our operating performance after our Offering has been completed and our properties have been acquired We

also believe that MFFO is recognized measure of sustainable operating performance by the publicly registered

non-traded REIT industry Further we believe MFFO is useful in comparing the sustainability of our operating

performance after our Offering and acquisitions are completed with the sustainability of the operating

performance of other real estate companies that are not as involved in acquisition activities Investors are

cautioned that MFFO should only be used to assess the sustainability of our operating performance after our

Offering has been completed and properties have been acquired as it excludes acquisition fees and expenses that

have negative effect on our operating performance during the periods in which properties are acquired

We define MFFO non-GAAP measure consistent with the IPA Guideline 2010-01 Supplemental

Performance Measure for Publicly Registered Non-Listed REITs Modified Funds from Operations the

Practice Guideline issued by the IPA in November 2010 The Practice Guideline defines MFFO as FF0 further

adjusted for the following items included in the determination of GAAP net income loss acquisition fees and

expenses amounts relating to straight line rents and amortization of above or below intangible lease assets and

liabilities accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums on debt investments non-recurring impairments

of real estate related investments mark-to-market adjustments included in net income non-recurring gains or

losses included in net income from the extinguishment or sale of debt hedges foreign exchange derivatives or

securities holdings where trading of such holdings is not fundamental attribute of the business plan unrealized

gains or losses resulting from consolidation from or deconsolidation to equity accounting and after adjustments

for consolidated and unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures with such adjustments calculated to reflect

MFFO on the same basis The accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums on debt investments

unrealized gains and losses on hedges foreign exchange derivatives or securities holdings unrealized gains and

losses resulting from consolidations as well as other listed cash flow adjustments are adjustments made to net

income loss in calculating cash flows from operations and in some cases reflect gains or losses which are

unrealized and may not ultimately be realized

Our MFFO calculation complies with the IPAs Practice Guideline described above In calculating MFFO

we exclude acquisition related expenses the amortization of fair value adjustments related to debt gains or losses

from debt defeasance realized and unrealized gains and losses on foreign exchange holdings and the adjustments

of such items related to noncontrolling interests The other adjustments included in the IPA Practice Guideline

are not applicable to us for the periods presented Acquisition fees and expenses are paid in cash by us and we

have not set aside or put into escrow any specific amount of proceeds from our offering to be used to fund

acquisition fees and expenses We do not intend to fund acquisition fees and expenses
in the future from

operating revenues and cash flows nor from the sale of properties and subsequent re-deployment of capital and

concurrent incurring of acquisition fees and expenses Acquisition fees and expenses
include payments to our

Advisor and third parties Acquisition related
expenses

under GAAP are considered operating expenses
and as

expenses included in the determination of net income loss and income loss from continuing operations both

of which are performance measures under GAAP All paid and accrued acquisition fees and expenses
will have

negative effects on returns to investors the potential for future distributions and cash flows generated by us

unless earnings from operations or net sales proceeds from the disposition of other properties are generated to

cover the purchase price of the property these fees and expenses and other costs related to such property In the

future if we are not able to raise additional proceeds from our offering this could result in us paying acquisition

fees or reimbursing acquisition expenses
due to our Advisor or portion thereof with net proceeds from

borrowed funds operational earnings or cash flows net proceeds from the sale of properties or ancillary cash

flows As result the amount of proceeds available for investment and operations would be reduced or we may

incur additional interest expense as result of borrowed funds

Further under GAAP certain contemplated non-cash fair value and other non-cash adjustments are

considered operating non-cash adjustments to net income loss in determining cash flows from operations In

addition we view fair value adjustments of derivatives and the amortization of fair value adjustments related to

debt as items which are unrealized and may not ultimately be realized or as items which are not reflective of on

going operations and are therefore typically adjusted for when assessing operating performance

61



We use MFFO and the adjustments used to calculate it in order to evaluate our performance against other

publicly registered non-traded REITs which intend to have limited lives with short and defined acquisition

periods and targeted exit strategies shortly thereafter As noted above MFFO may not be useful measure of the

impact of long-term operating performance if we do not continue to operate in this manner We believe that our

use of MFFO and the adjustments used to calculate it allow us to present our performance in manner that

reflects certain characteristics that are unique to publicly registered non-traded REITs such as their limited life

limited and defined acquisition period and targeted exit strategy and hence that the use of such measures may be

useful to investors For example acquisition fees and expenses are intended to be funded from the proceeds of

our offering and other financing sources and not from operations By excluding expensed acquisition fees and

expenses the use of MFFO provides information consistent with managements analysis of the operating

performance of the properties Additionally fair value adjustments which are based on the impact of current

market fluctuations and underlying assessments of general market conditions but can also result from

operational factors such as rental and occupancy rates may not be directly related or attributable to our current

operating performance By excluding such charges that may reflect anticipated and unrealized gains or losses we

believe MFFO provides useful supplemental information

Presentation of this information is intended to provide useful information to investors as they compare the

operating performance of different REITs although it should be noted that not all REITs calculate FF0 and

MFFO the same way so comparisons with other REITs may not be meaningful Furthermore FF0 and MFFO

are not necessarily indicative of cash flow available to fund cash needs and should not be considered as an

alternative to net income loss or income loss from continuing operations as an indication of our performance

as an alternative to cash flows from operations which is an indication of our liquidity or indicative of funds

available to fund our cash needs including our ability to make distributions to our stockholders FF0 and MFFO
should be reviewed in conjunction with other measurements as an indication of our performance MFFO may be

useful in assisting management and investors in assessing the sustainability of operating performance in future

operating periods and in particular after the offering and acquisition stages are complete and net asset value is

disclosed FF0 and MFFO are not useful measures in evaluating net asset value because impairments are taken

into account in determining net asset value but not in determining FF0 and MFFO
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Neither the SEC NAREIT nor any other regulatory body has passed judgment on the acceptability of the

adjustments that we use to calculate FF0 or MFFO In the future the SEC NAREIT or another regulatory body

may decide to standardize the allowable adjustments across the publicly registered non-traded REIT industry

and we would have to adjust our calculation and characterization of FF0 or MFFO The following is

reconciliation of net income loss which is the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure to FF0 and

MFFO for each of the periods presented below

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2010

Net loss attributable to Strategic Storage

Trust Inc $1 8973712 $21 357429 $127908 15
Add

Depreciation 13882475 9303615 4943856

Amortization of intangible assets 11547843 13935903 8143379
Deduct

Gain on sale of investment in

unconsolidated joint venture 815000

Adjustment for noncontrolling

Interests 335036 750351 737227

FF0 5306570 1131738 440807
Other Adjustments

Acquisition expenses 3647635 7743034 5243604
Amortization of fair value

adjustments of secured debt 190724 364438 288684
Realized and unrealized gains

losses on foreign exchange

holdings 60281 16833 106427
Debt defeasance costs 49750

Adjustment for noncontrolling

Interests 78091 112654 48160

Modified FF0 9006557 9193139 4936894

As discussed in Results of Operations our net loss and MFFO for the year ended December 31 2012 has

been significantly impacted by our acquisition of the Homeland Portfolio and additional debt we incurred to

purchase such properties The information below should be read in conjunction with the discussion regarding the

Homeland Portfolio acquisition in Results of Operations

Changes in MFFO between the year ended December 31 2012 and 2011 include the following

Total revenues less all property operating expenses were approximately $32.5 million for the year

ended December 31 2012 compared to approximately $24.3 million for the year ended December 31

2011 thereby increasing MFFO by approximately $8.2 million Such increase was primarily due to the

acquisition of 65 properties during 2011 and 2012 along with an increase in same store operating

income of approximately $2.3 million or approximately 11.5%

decrease in MFFO of approximately $6.0 million due to increased interest expense primarily related

to additional interest incurred on the Second Restated KeyBank Loan approximately $3.8 million the

KeyBank Bridge Loan approximately $0.8 millionand other new debt incurred The KeyBank Bridge

Loan was repaid in full on August 2012

decrease in MFFO of approximately $2.1 million due to increased amortization of deferred financing

costs which increased for principally the same reasons as interest expense Of the increase approximately

$0.9 million related to the KeyBank Bridge Loan which was repaid in full on August 2012
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Changes in MFFO between the year ended December 31 2011 and 2010 include the following

Total revenues less all property operating expenses were approximately $24.3 million for the year

ended December 31 2011 compared to approximately $13.4 million for the year ended December 31

2010 thereby increasing MFFO by approximately $10.9 million Such increase was primarily due to

the acquisition of 65 properties during 2010 and 2011

decrease in MFFO of approximately $5.8 million due to increased interest expense primarily related

to interest on new debt incurred in 2011

decrease in MFFO of approximately $1.0 million due to increased amortization of deferred financing

costs which increased for principally the same reasons as interest expense Of the increase

approximately $0.7 million related to the Second Restated KeyBank Loan

Relates to the noncontrolling interest in our consolidated joint venture and the noncontrolling interests in

our Operating Partnership The noncontrolling interest holders share of our consolidated ventures real

estate depreciation and amortization of intangible assets was $225000 $621000 and $737000

respectively for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

In evaluating investments in real estate we differentiate the costs to acquire the investment from the

operations derived from the investment Such information would be comparable only for publicly registered

non-traded REITs that have generally completed their acquisition activity and have other similaroperating

characteristics By excluding expensed acquisition related expenses we believe MFFO provides useful

supplemental information that is comparable for each type of real estate investment and is consistent with

managements analysis of the investing and operating performance of our properties Acquisition fees and

expenses include payments to our Advisor and third parties Acquisition related expenses under GAAP are

considered operating expenses and as expenses included in the determination of net income loss and

income loss from continuing operations both of which are performance measures under GAAP All paid

and accrued acquisition fees and expenses
will have negative effects on returns to investors the potential for

future distributions and cash flows generated by us unless earnings from operations or net sales proceeds

from the disposition of other properties are generated to cover the purchase price of the property these fees

and expenses and other costs related to such property

This expense represents the difference between the stated interest rate and the estimated market interest rate

on assumed notes or seller notes issued as of the date of acquisition Such amounts have been excluded

from MFFO because we believe MFFO provides useful supplementary information by focusing on

operating fundamentals rather than events not related to our normal operations We are responsible for

managing interest rate risk and do not rely on another party to manage such risk

These amounts primarily relate to transactions with our non-U.S functional currency entities The gains and

losses are the result of fluctuations between the U.S dollar and the Canadian dollar Such amounts have

been excluded from MFFO because we believe MFFO provides useful supplementary information by

focusing on operating fundamentals rather than events not related to our normal operations We are

responsible for managing hedge and foreign exchange risk and do not rely on another party to manage such

risk

We believe that adjusting for the gain or loss on extinguishment of debt provides useful information because

such gain or loss on extinguishment of debt may not be reflective of on-going operations

Non-cash Items Included in Net Loss

Provided below is additional information related to selected non-cash items included innet loss above

which may be helpful in assessing our operating results

Amortization of deferred financing costs of approximately $3.5 million $1.3 million and $0.3 million

was recognized as interest expense for the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively
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Cash Flows

comparison of cash flows for operating investing and financing activities for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 is as follows

Year Ended

December 312012 December 312011 Change

Net cash flow provided by used in

Operating activities 9550340 2838807 6711533

Investing activities 95632616 206361756 110729140

Financing activities 86814473 210297834 123483361

Cash flows provided by operating activities for the years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 were

approximately $9.6 million and $2.8 million respectively an increase in cash provided year to year
of

approximately $6.8 million The increase in cash provided compared to the prior period primarily relates to an

improvement in the net loss adjusted for depreciation and amortization

Cash flows used in investing activities for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 were approximately

$95.6 million and $206.4 million respectively decrease in the use of cash of approximately $110.7 million

The decrease compared to the prior period primarily relates to the decreased amount spent on acquisitions

Cash flows provided by financing activities for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 were

approximately $86.8 million and $210.3 million respectively decrease in the cash provided of approximately

$123.5 million The decrease in cash provided by financing activities over the prior period primarily relates to

decrease in proceeds from new debt and an increase in repayments of debt partially off-set by an increase of cash

raised from the Offering

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Short-Term Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generally expect that we will meet our short-term operating liquidity requirements from the combination

of proceeds of our Offering proceeds from secured or unsecured financing from banks or other lenders net cash

provided by property operations and advances from our Advisor which will be repaid without interest as funds

are available after meeting our current liquidity requirements subject to the limitations on reimbursement set

forth in our advisory agreement with our Advisor

As set forth earlier the current expiration date of our Offering is September 22 2013 and based on our

current sales pace we believe the proceeds from our Offering should be sufficient to allow us to meet our short-

term capital needs and move to the next phase of our life cycle

Distribution Policy and Distributions

Our board of directors will determine the amount and timing of distributions to our stockholders and will

base such determination on number of factors including funds available for payment of distributions financial

condition capital expenditure requirements and annual distribution requirements needed to maintain our status as

REIT under the Code Distributions will be paid to our stockholders as of the record date selected by our board

of directors We declare and pay distributions monthly based on daily declaration and record dates so that

investors may be entitled to distributions immediately upon purchasing our shares We expect to continue to

regularly pay distributions unless our results of operations our general financial condition general economic

conditions or other factors inhibit us from doing so Distributions will be authorized at the discretion of our

board of directors which will be directed in substantial part by its obligation to cause us to comply with the

REIT requirements of the Code The funds we receive from operations that are available for distribution may be

affected by number of factors including the following

the amount of time required for us to invest the funds received in the offering
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our operating and interest expenses

the amount of distributions or dividends received by us from our indirect real estate investments

our ability to keep our properties occupied

our ability to maintain or increase rental rates

capital expenditures and reserves for such expenditures

the issuance of additional shares and

financings and refinancings

Our distributions paid over the last two years and the sources of such distributions are detailed below

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31

2012 2011

Distributions paid in cash $15831397 $12311945
Distributions reinvested 12311983 9045444

Total distributions $28143380 $21357389

Source of distributions

Cash flows provided by operations 9550340 33.9% 2838807 13.3%

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 18593040 66.1% 18518582 86.7%

Total sources $28143380 100.0% $21357389 100.0%

Cash flows provided by operations for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 include approximately

$3.6 million and $7.7 million respectively of real estate acquisition related
expenses expensed in accordance

with GAAP We consider the real estate acquisition related
expenses to have been funded by proceeds from our

ongoing public offering of shares of our common stock because the expenses were incurred to acquire our real

estate investments

During our Offering when we may raise capital more quickly than we acquire income-producing assets and

for some period after our Offering we may not be able to pay distributions from our cash flows from operations

in which case distributions may be paid in part from debt financing or from proceeds from the issuance of

common stock

From our inception through December 31 2012 we paid cumulative distributions of approximately $71

million as compared to cumulative FF0 of approximately $1.5 million For the year ended December 31 2012

we incurred distributions of approximately $28.8 million as compared to FF0 of approximately $5.3 million

For the year ended December 31 2011 we incurred distributions of approximately $21.9 million as compared to

FF0 of approximately $1.1 million The payment of distributions from sources other than FF0 may reduce the

amount of proceeds available for investment and operations or cause us to incur additional interest expense as

result of borrowed funds

Over the long-term we expect that greater percentage of our distributions will be paid from cash flows from

operations However our operating performance cannot be accurately predicted and may deteriorate in the future due

to numerous factors including our ability to raise and invest capital at favorable yields the fmancial performance of

our investments in the current real estate and financial environment and the types and mix of investments in our

portfolio As result future distributions declared and paid may exceed cash flow from operations

Indebtedness

As of December 31 2012 we had approximately $354.0 million of outstanding consolidated indebtedness

excluding net unamortized debt discounts of approximately $0.6 million The weighted average interest rate on
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our consolidated fixed rate indebtedness as of December 31 2012 was approximately 5.4% As of December 31

2012 approximately $65.5 million of our total consolidated indebtedness was variable rate debt

Long-Term Liquidity and Capital Resources

On long-term basis our principal demands for funds will be for property acquisitions either directly or

through equity investments for the payment of operating expenses capital improvements on our properties

equity distributions and for debt service on our outstanding indebtedness As set forth above our board of

directors has approved the closing of our Offering and we currently expect our Offering to close on or around

September 22 2013 Our board of directors is currently contemplating number of strategies for the next steps in

our life cycle Absent the implementation of those strategies we generally expect our cash needs for items other

than property acquisitions will be met from operations and the issuance of additional debt or equity instruments

Long-term potential future sources of capital include proceeds from secured or unsecured financings from

banks or other lenders issuance of equity instruments and undistributed funds from operations We believe our

ability to refinance or secure new debt will in part be affected by our ability to continue to lease-up certain

development projects and other lease-up acquisitions If such facilities continue to progress we believe our ability

to borrow against those assets will be favorably impacted To the extent we are not able to secure requisite

additional financing in the form of credit facility or other debt we will be dependent upon proceeds from the

issuance of equity instruments and cash flows from operating activities in order to meet our long-term liquidity

requirements and to fund our distributions

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31 2012

Payments due by period
Less than More than

Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years

Mortgage interest $111241852 $18309225 31846379 21676046 39410202

Mortgage principal 354016931 19682080 97356043 80858250 156120558

Operating leases 3236256 132300 272318 277830 2553808

Total contractual

obligations $468495039 $38123605 $129474740 $102812126 $198084568

Interest expense was calculated based upon the contractual rates The interest expense on variable rate debt

was calculated based on the rate in effect as of December 31 2012 Debt denominated in foreign currency

has been converted at the conversion rate in effect as of the end of the period

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Except as disclosed in the Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this

report we do not currently have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships Such

entities are often referred to as structured finance or special purposes entities which typically are established for

the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes

Further except as disclosed in the notes to our financial statements we have not guaranteed any obligations of

unconsolidated entities nor do we have any commitments or intent to provide funding to any such entities

Subsequent Events

Please see Note 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this report
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Seasonality

We believe that we will experience minor seasonal fluctuations in the occupancy levels of our facilities

which we believe will be slightly higher over the summer months due to increased moving activity

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk includes risks that arise from changes in interest rates foreign currency exchange rates

commodity prices equity prices and other market changes that affect market sensitive instruments In pursuing

our business plan we expect that the primary market risk to which we will be exposed is interest rate risk

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 our debt consisted of approximately $288.5 million and $217.4 million

respectively in fixed rate debt and approximately $65.5 million and $113.7 million respectively in variable rate

debt These instruments were entered into for other than trading purposes Changes in interest rates have different

impacts on the fixed and variable portions of our debt portfolio change in interest rates on the fixed portion of

our debt portfolio impacts its fair value but has no impact on interest incurred or cash flows change in interest

rates on the variable portion of our debt portfolio could impact the interest incurred and cash flows and its fair

value If the underlying rate of the related index on our variable rate debt were to increase or decrease by 100

basis points the increase or decrease in interest expense excluding variable rate date that was effectively fixed

through an interest rate swap would increase or decrease future earnings and cash flows by approximately $0.2

million annually

Interest rate risk amounts were determined by considering the impact of hypothetical interest rates on our

financial instruments These analyses do not consider the effect of any change in overall economic activity that

could occur Further in the event of change of that magnitude we may take actions to further mitigate our

exposure to the change However due to the uncertainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their

possible effects these analyses assume no changes in our financial structure

The following table summarizes annual debt maturities average interest rates and estimated fair values on

our outstanding debt as of December 31 2012

Year Ending December 31
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total Fair Value

Fixed rate debt 6202559 $14935356 $30579553 $46668493 $33981671 $156120558 $288488190 $298636303

Average interest

rate 5.41% 5.41% 5.42% 5.39% 5.23% 5.13%

Variable rate debt $13479521 $51841134 208086$ 65528741 65528741

Average interest

rate 4.78% 4.75% 5.25% 5.25%

Foreign currency obligations have been converted at the conversion rate in effect as of the end of the period

In the future we may be exposed to the effects of interest rate changes primarily as result of borrowings

used to maintain liquidity and fund acquisition expansion and financing of our real estate investment portfolio

and operations Our interest rate risk management objectives will be to limit the impact of interest rate changes

on earnings and cash flows and to lower overall borrowing costs To achieve our objectives we may borrow at

fixed rates or variable rates We may also enter into additional derivative financial instruments such as interest

rate swaps and caps in order to mitigate our interest rate risk on related financial instrument or foreign currency

hedges to mitigate our risk to foreign currency exposure We will not enter into derivative or interest rate
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transactions for speculative purposes The following table summarizes annually the notional amounts and related

pay rates on our derivative instrument as of December 31 2012

Year Ending December 31

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Variable to Fixed Average receive rate is one month

LIBOR $45000000

Average pay rate
0.9075%

The $45000000 notional amount is effective through the maturity of the debt December 24 2014

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements and supplementary
data filed as part of this annual report are set forth below

beginning on page F-i of this annual report

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report management including our chief executive officer and

chief financial officer evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and

procedures Based upon this evaluation our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that the

disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report to ensure that

information required to be disclosed in the reports we file and submit under the Exchange Act is recorded

processed summarized and reported as and when required Disclosure controls and procedures include without

limitation controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the

reports we file and submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management

including our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer as appropriate
to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for us Our management including our

chief executive officer and chief financial officer evaluated as of December 31 2012 the effectiveness of our

internal control over financial reporting using the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on that evaluation our

management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2012

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the quarter

ended December 31 2012 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

During the year
ended December 31 2012 there was no information required to be disclosed in report on

Form 8-K which was not disclosed in report on Form 8-K
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PART III

We expect to file definitive Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the 2013
Proxy Statement with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end ofourfiscal
year Accordingly certain information required by Part III has been omitted under General Instruction G3 to
Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statement Only those sections of the 2013 Proxy
Statement that

specflcally address the items required to be set forth herein are incorporated by reference

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statement to be filed

with the SEC

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is
incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statement to be filed

with the SEC

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statement to be filed
with the SEC

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statement to be filed
with the SEC

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information
required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the 2013 Proxy Statement to be filed

with the SEC
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

List of Documents Filed

The list of the financial statements contained herein is set forth on page F-i hereof

Schedule IllReal Estate and Accumulated Depreciation is set forth beginning on page 5-1

hereof All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of

the SEC are not required under the related instructions or are not applicable
and therefore have

been omitted

The Exhibits filed in response to Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed on the Exhibit Index

below

See above

See above
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized in the City of

Ladera Ranch State of California on March 29 2013

STRATEGIC STORAGE TRUST INC

By Is Michael Schwartz

Michael Schwartz

Chief Executive Officer President and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is MICHAEL SCHWARTZ Chief Executive Officer President March 29 2013

Michael Schwartz and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Is MICHAEL MCCLURE Executive Vice President Chief March 29 2013

Michael McClure Financial Officer and Treasurer

Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer

Is HAROLD Sicip PERRY
Independent Director March 29 2013

Harold Skip Perry

Is TIMOTHY MoRRIs Independent Director March 29 2013

Timothy Morris
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and

Stockholders of
Strategic Storage Trust Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Strategic Storage Trust Inc and Subsidiaries
as of December 31 2012 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive loss
stockholders equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31 2012 In connection with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements we also have audited the financial statement schedule listed in the

accompanying index Strategic Storage Trust Inc.s management is responsible for these consolidated financial

statements and the financial statement schedule Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The company is not required to have nor
were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for

designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also
includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our
opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of Strategic Storage Trust Inc and Subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the

year ended December 31 2012 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the related
financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as

whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

Is CohnReznick LLC

Los Angeles CA

March 29 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and

Stockholders of Strategic Storage Trust Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Strategic Storage Trust Inc and Subsidiaries

as of December 31 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive loss

stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31 2011

Strategic Storage Trust Inc.s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The company is not required to have nor

were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of Strategic Storage Trust Inc and Subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and the

consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended

December 31 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

Is REZNICK GROUP P.C

Baltimore Maryland

March 29 2012

The date on this line reflects modification by Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC on April 2013
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STRATEGIC STORAGE TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 2012 and 2011

December 31

2012 2011

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $13998391 $13217410
Real estate facilities

Land 178459163 149269391

Buildings 389149948 330842349
Site improvements 37118784 30283836

604727895 510395576
Accumulated depreciation 29840320 15971288

574887575 494424288
Construction in process 5233426 1754582

Real estate facilities net $16829789 and $17070146 related to

VIEs 580121001 496178870
Deferred financing costs net of accumulated amortization 5989290 7449525

Intangible assets net of accumulated amortization 11635112 15922955
Restricted cash 6449225 5234479
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures 8772005 9180538
Other assets 4270638 3250490

Total assets $631235662 $550434267

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Secured debt $10149024 and $10210249 related to VIEs $353440758 $330043207
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12726888 7855033
Due to affiliates 2282344 2065615
Distributions payable 2724603 2071876

Total liabilities 371174593 342035731

Commitments and contingencies Note

Redeemable common stock 3960664 2807837

Stockholders equity

Strategic Storage Trust Inc stockholders equity

Common stock $0.00 par value 700000000 shares authorized 46184742
and 35020561 shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively 46184 35021

Additional paid-in capital 383072118 285211557
Distributions 71401126 42602530
Accumulated deficit 61929145 42955433
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 682692 829652

Total Strategic Storage Trust Inc stockholders equity 249105339 198858963

Noncontrolling interest in operating partnership 1149679 718907
Other noncontrolling interests 5845387 6012829

Total noncontrolling interests 6995066 6731736

Total stockholders equity 256100405 205590699

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $631235662 $550434267

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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STRATEGIC STORAGE TRUST iNC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

2012 2011 2010

Revenues

Self storage rental revenue 64464466 48109145 25576080

Ancillary operating revenue 2146038 1286933 585102

Total revenues 66610504 49396078 26161182

Operating expenses

Property operating expenses 25878556 19402185 10114722

Property operating expenses affiliates 8254016 5702921 2667357

General and administrative 2361229 2405218 2837481

Depreciation 14254525 9422606 5002442

Intangible amortization expense 11547843 13935903 8143379

Property acquisition expensesaffiliates 2415200 5706838 3206832

Other property acquisition expenses 1232435 2036196 2036772

Total operating expenses 65943804 58611867 34008985

Operating income loss 666700 9215789 7847803

Other income expense
Interest expense 17813762 11859146 5957460

Deferred financing amortization expense 3466463 1331514 314637

Equity in earnings of real estate ventures 887551 852728 867178

Gain on sale of investment in unconsolidated joint

venture 815000

Other 104168 280516 5707

Net loss 19015142 21834237 13247015

Less Net loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest

in our operating partnership 83435 118601 9935

Net income loss attributable to other noncontrolling

interests 42005 358207 446265

Net loss attributable to Strategic Storage Trust Inc $18973712 $21357429 $12790815

Net loss
per

sharebasic 0.46 0.68 0.59

Net loss per sharediluted 0.46 0.68 0.59

Weighted average
shares outstandingbasic 41103477 31243109 21706053

Weighted average
shares outstandingdiluted 41103477 31243109 21706053

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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STRATEGIC STORAGE TRUST INC AND SUBSIIMARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Years Ended December 31 20122011 and 2010

2012 2011 2010

Net loss $19015142 $21834237 $13247015

Other comprehensive income loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments 381663 642434 124412

Change in fair value of interest rate swap 234703 311630

Other comprehensive income loss 146960 954064 124412

Comprehensive loss 18868182 22788301 13122603

Comprehensive loss allocated to noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive loss attributable to the noncontrolling

interests in our Operating Partnership 82806 123963 9820

Comprehensive income loss attributable to other

noncontrolling interests 42005 358207 446265

Comprehensive loss attributable to Strategic Storage Trust

Inc 18827381 $22306 131 12666518

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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STRATEGIC STORAGE TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Years Ended December 31 20122011 and 2010

Balance as of December 31

2009

Gross proceeds from issuance of

common stock

Offering costs

Changes to redeemable common

stock

Redemptions of common stock

Issuance of restricted stock

Distributions $0.70 per share

Distributions for noncontrolling

interests

Issuance of shares for distribution

reinvestment plan

Reduction of noncontrolling interests

through additional investment

Stock based compensation

expense

Net loss attributable to Strategic

Storage Trust Inc

Net loss attributable to the

noncontrolling interests

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Balance as of December 31

2010
________

Gross proceeds from issuance of

common stock 8401149

Offering costs

Changes to redeemable common

stock

Redemptions of common stock

Issuance of restricted stock

Distributions $0.70 per share

Distributions for noncontrolling

interests

Issuance of shares for distribution

reinvestment plan

Issuance of limited partnership units

in our Operating Partnership

Stock based compensation

expense

Net loss attributable to Strategic

Storage Trust Inc

Net loss attributable to the

noncontrolling interests

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Change in fair value of interest rate

swap

Balance as of December 31

2011

$7686098 $119068866

97241848

11282720

2526838
3655496

15194030

324582 324582

651 6181683
6182334

184251 184251

22393
22393

12790815 12790815

456200 456200

124412 124412

6721065 176224923

634694

9680138

21867752

367225 367225

9045444

930759 930759

28643

21357429 21357429

476808 476808

642434 642434

311630 311630

________
$6731736 $205590699

Noncontrolling

Interests Total

Accumulated

Common Additional Other

Number of Stock Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive

Shares Par Value Capital Distributions Deficit Income Loss
___________

16638556 $16639 $125714066 5540748 8807189

9748692 9749 97232099

11282720

2526838

381834 382 3655114

1875

15194030

650772

26658061 26659 211685569 20734778 21598004 124412
_________ ___________

8401 83847852
83856253

10350548 76055 10426603

634694

993301 993 9679145

2500

21867752

952152 952 9044492

28643

35020561 $35021 $285211557 $42602530 $42955433 $829652
_________
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Accumulated
Common Additional Other

Number of Stock Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Noncontrolling
Shares Par Value

Capital Distributions Deficit Income Loss Interests Total

Gross proceeds from issuance of

common stock 11235955 11236 113932158 113943394
Offering costs 12016241 12016241
Changes to redeemable common

stock 3593608 3593608
Redemptions of common stock 1310527 1311 12575925 12577236
Issuance of restricted stock 3125

Distributions $0.70 per share 28798596 28798596
Distributions for noncontrolling

interests

249055 249055
Issuance of shares for distribution

reinvestmentplan 1235628 1235 12310748 12311983
Repurchase of limited partnership

units in our Operating

Partnership 221335 175403 396738
Issuance of limited partnership units

in our Operating Partnership
729218 729218

Stock based compensation

expense 24764
24764

Net loss attributable to Strategic

Storage Trust Inc
18973712 18973712

Net loss attributable to the

noncontrolling interests in our

Operating Partnership 41430 41430
Foreign currency translation

adjustment
381663 381663

Change in fair value of interest rate

swap 234703 234703
Balance as of December 31

2012
46184742 $46184 $383072118 $71401126 $61929145 $682692 $6995066 $256100405

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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STRATEGIC STORAGE TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31 20122011 and 2010

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Netloss $19015142 21834237 13247015

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization expense
29268831 24690023 13460458

Noncash interest expense 190724 364438 288684

Expense related to issuance of restricted stock 24767 28645 22396

Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures 783452 710616 726958

Distributions from unconsolidated joint ventures 816720 802086 448623

Gain on sale of unconsolidated joint venture 815000

Foreign currency exchange gain loss 60281 16833 106427

Increase decrease in cash from changes in assets and liabilities

Restricted cash 1214746 1763420 73211

Other assets 1184733 1649563 478356

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 2033098 1464568 1703801

Due to affiliates 289554 1430050 347739

Net cash provided by operating activities 9550340 2838807 944256

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of real estate 85546702 198143849 118405477

Additions to real estate facilities 5330259 4467642 2464930

Development and construction of real estate facilities 7924666 4307108

Deposits on acquisition of real estate facilities 1069201 1069201

Additional investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 234735 512358 2353692

Proceeds from land disposition 1978746

Proceeds from sale of investment in unconsolidated joint venture 1425000

Additional investment in noncontrolling interest 184251

Net cash flows used in investing activities 95632616 206361756 124477551

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of secured debt 82217152 179290017 37585000

Principal payments on secured debt 3157375 1752724 640927

Repayment of secured debt 62833334 9939555 3255000

Deferred financing costs 2001411 6462085 1649241

Gross proceeds from issuance of common stock 113943394 83856253 97241848

Offering costs 12016241 10426603 11282720

Repurchase of limited partnership units in our Operating Partnership 396738

Redemptions of common stock 12577236 9680138 3655496

Distributions paid to common stockholders 15831397 12311945 8429845

Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests 251541 363078 324582

Escrow receivable 182290 181750 120154

Due to affiliates 98510 180558 483737

Restricted cash 1550000

Net cash flows provided by financing activities 86814473 210297834 106192928

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 48784 4434

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 780981 6779319 17340367

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 13217410 6438091 23778458

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 13998391 13217410 6438091

Supplemental disclosures and non-cash transactions

Cash paid for interest 17903925 10965627 5494139

Interest capitalized 498772 352095

Distributions payable 2724603 2071876 1557367

Issuance of shares pursuant to distribution reinvestment plan 12311983 9045444 6182334

Seller notes payable issued in connection with purchase of real estate 4800000

Assumption of notes payable issued in connection with purchase of real estate 6706790 42580540 3199696

Issuance of limited partnership units in our Operating Partnership in connection with

the purchase of real estate facilities 729218 930759

Foreign currency translation adjustment Real estate facilities net 614721 695064 220547

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Note Organization

Strategic Storage Trust Inc Maryland corporation the Company was formed on August 14 2007

under the Maryland General Corporation Law for the purpose of engaging in the business of investing in self

storage facilities The Companys year-end is December 31 As used in this report we us and our refer to

Strategic Storage Trust Inc

Strategic Capital Holdings LLC Virginia limited liability company our Sponsor is the
sponsor

of our

Offering Our Sponsor was formed on July 21 2004 to engage in private structured offerings of limited

partnerships and other entities with respect to the acquisition management and disposition of commercial real

estate assets Our Sponsor owns majority of Strategic Storage Holdings LLC which is the sole member of our

advisor and our property manager

Our advisor is Strategic Storage Advisor LLC Delaware limited liability company our Advisor which

was formed on August 13 2007 Our Advisor is responsible for managing our affairs on day-to-day basis and

identifying and making acquisitions and investments on our behalf under the terms of an advisory agreement we
have with our Advisor our Advisory Agreement Some of the officers of our Advisor are also officers of our

Sponsor and of us

On August 24 2007 our Advisor purchased 100 shares of our common stock for $1000 and became our

initial stockholder Our Articles of Amendment and Restatement authorize 700000000 shares of common stock

with par value of $0.00 and 200000000 shares of preferred stock with par value of $0.00

Our operating partnership Strategic Storage Operating Partnership L.P Delaware limited partnership

our Operating Partnership was formed on August 14 2007 On August 24 2007 our Advisor purchased

limited partnership interest in our Operating Partnership for $200000 and on August 24 2007 we contributed

the initial $1000 capital contribution we received to our Operating Partnership in exchange for the general

partner interest Our Operating Partnership owns directly or indirectly through one or more special purpose

entities all of the self storage properties that we have acquired As of December 31 2012 we owned 99.46% of

the limited partnership interests of our Operating Partnership The remaining limited partnership interests are

owned by our Advisor 0.04% and unaffiliated third parties 0.50% As the sole general partner of our

Operating Partnership we have the exclusive power to manage and conduct business of our Operating

Partnership We will conduct certain activities such as selling packing supplies and locks and renting trucks or

other moving equipment through our taxable REIT subsidiaries the TRSs which are our wholly-owned

subsidiaries

Our property manager is Strategic Storage Property Management LLC Delaware limited liability

company our Property Manager which was formed in August 2007 to manage our properties Our Property

Manager derives substantially all of its income from the property management services it performs for us

On March 17 2008 we began our initial public offering of common stock our Initial Offering On

May 22 2008 we satisfied the minimum offering requirements of the Initial Offering and cQmmenced formal

operations On September 16 2011 we terminated the Initial Offering having sold approximately 29 million

shares for gross proceeds of approximately $289 million On September 22 2011 we commenced our follow-on

public offering of stock for maximum of 110000000 shares of common stock consisting of 100000000
shares for sale to the public our Primary Offering and 10000000 shares for sale pursuant to our distribution

reinvestment plan collectively our Offering We intend to invest substantial amount of the net proceeds

from our Offering in self storage facilities and related self storage real estate investments Based on the current
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expiration date of our Offering on September 22 2013 and our current sales pace which our board of directors

believes should allow us to raise sufficient capital to move to the next phase of our life cycle our board of

directors approved closing our Offering within the original two year offering period We currently expect to close

our Offering on or around September 22 2013 although the board of directors has reserved its right to close the

Offering prior to that date if the board of directors deems it appropriate Our board may also extend our Offering

for an additional year or in certain circumstances longer We currently plan to continue to offer shares under our

distribution reinvestment plan beyond the above date however we may terminate the distribution reinvestment

plan offering at any time As of December 31 2012 we had issued approximately 42.7 million shares of

common stock for approximately $426 million in our Initial Offering and our Offering and also issued

6.2 million shares in private offering

Effective June 2012 the offering price of our shares of common stock increased from $10.00 per share to

$10.79 per
share This increase was primarily

based on the April 2012 estimated per share value of our

common stock of $10.79 which was calculated based on the estimated value of our assets less the estimated value

of our liabilities or net asset value divided by the number of shares outstanding on an adjusted fully diluted

basis calculated as of December 31 2011 In light of the above-described net asset value calculation our board

of directors determined that it was appropriate to increase the per share offering price for new purchases of our

shares commencing on June 2012 This determination by our board of directors was subjective and was

primarily based on the estimated net asset value per share which was predominantly
based on an independent

third party appraisers valuation of our properties as of December 31 2011 ii the commissions and dealer

manager fees payable in connection with the offering of our shares iii our historical and anticipated results of

operations and financial condition iv our current and anticipated distribution payments our current and

anticipated capital and debt structure and vi our Advisors recommendations and assessment of our prospects

and continued execution of our investment and operating strategies

Our dealer manager is Select Capital Corporation California corporation our Dealer Manager Our

Dealer Manager is responsible for marketing our shares being offered pursuant to the Offering Our president

owns 15% beneficial non-voting equity interest in our Dealer Manager

As we accept subscriptions for shares of our common stock we transfer substantially all of the net proceeds

of the Offering to our Operating Partnership as capital contributions in exchange for additional units of interest in

our Operating Partnership However we are deemed to have made capital contributions in the amount of the

gross offering proceeds received from investors and our Operating Partnership is deemed to have simultaneously

paid the sales commissions and other costs associated with the Offering In addition our Operating Partnership is

structured to make distributions with respect to limited partnership units except for Class units that will be

equivalent to the distributions made to holders of our common stock In March 2011 we adopted Amendment

No to our Operating Partnerships First Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement which

established Class Units and our Operating Partnership issued approximately 120000 Class Units in

connection with our acquisition of the Las Vegas VII and Las Vegas VIII properties The Class Units have all

of the rights powers duties and preferences
of our Operating Partnerships other limited partnership units

except that they are subject to an annual distribution limit initially zero percent and the holders of the Class

Units have agreed to modified exchange rights that prevent them from exercising their exchange rights until the

occurrence of specified event see Note Finally limited partner in our Operating Partnership may later

exchange his or her limited partnership units in our Operating Partnership for shares of our common stock at any

time after one year following the date of issuance of their limited partnership units subject to certain restrictions

as outlined in the limited partnership agreement Our Advisor is prohibited
from exchanging or otherwise

transferring its limited partnership
units so long as it is acting as our Advisor pursuant to our Advisory

Agreement
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As of December 31 2012 we wholly-owned 110 self storage facilities located in 17 states Alabama
Arizona California Florida Georgia Illinois Kentucky Mississippi Nevada New Jersey New York North

Carolina Pennsylvania South Carolina Tennessee Texas and Virginia and Canada comprising approximately

70190 units and approximately 9.2 million rentable square feet As of December 31 2012 we also had minority
interests in eight additional self

storage facilities Of those interests one has been deemed to be controlling
interest and is therefore consolidated in our consolidated financial statements as discussed in Note

Additionally we have an interest in net leased industrial property in California with 356000 rentable square
feet leased to single tenant

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP as contained within the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC and the rules and regulations of the SEC

Effective September 15 2009 the ASC was established as the single source of authoritative

nongovernmental GAAP Prior to the issuance of the ASC all GAAP pronouncements were issued in separate

topical pronouncements in the form of statements staff positions or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts and

were referred to as such While the ASC does not change GAAP it introduces new structure and supersedes all

previously issued non-SEC accounting and reporting standards In addition to the ASC the Company is still

required to follow SEC rules and regulations relating to the preparation of financial statements The Companys
accounting policies are consistent with the guidance set forth by both ASC and the SEC

Reclassifications

Certain amounts previously reported in our 2010 and 2011 financial statements have been reclassified to

conform to the fiscal 2012 presentation

Principles of Consolidation

Our financial statements the financial statements of our Operating Partnership including its wholly-owned
subsidiaries the financial statements of Self Storage REIT Inc now Self Storage REIT LLC REIT and Self

Storage REIT II Inc now Self Storage REIT II LLC REIT II and the accounts of variable interest entities

VIEs for which we are the primary beneficiary are consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial

statements The portion of these entities not wholly-owned by us is presented as noncontrolling interests both as

of and during the periods presented All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

in consolidation

Consolidation Considerations for Our Investments in Joint Ventures

Current accounting guidance provides framework for identifying VIEs and determining when company
should include the assets liabilities noncontrolling interests and results of activities of the VIE in its

consolidated financial statements In general VIE is an entity or other legal structure used to conduct activities

or hold assets that either has an insufficient amount of equity to carry out its principal activities without

additional subordinated financial support has group of equity owners that are unable to make significant

decisions about its activities or has
group of equity owners that do not have the obligation to absorb losses
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or the right to receive returns generated by its operations Generally VIE should be consolidated if party with

an ownership contractual or other financial interest in the VIE variable interest holder has the power to direct

the VIE most significant activities and the obligation to absorb losses or right to receive benefits of the VIE that

could be significant to the VIE variable interest holder that consolidates the VIE is called the primary

beneficiary Upon consolidation the primary beneficiary generally must initially record all of the VIEs assets

liabilities and noncontrolling interest at fair value and subsequently account for the VIE as if it were

consolidated based on majority voting interest As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we had entered into

contracts/interests that are deemed to be variable interests in VIEs those variable interests include both lease

agreements and equity investments We have evaluated those variable interests against the criteria for

consolidation and determined that we are not the primary beneficiary of certain investments discussed further in

the Equity Investments section of this note

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we had an equity interest in self storage property located in San

Francisco California SF property which was deemed to be VIE of which we are the primary beneficiary

As such the SF property has been consolidated in our consolidated financial statements since we acquired our

interest in the property through the REIT merger In January 2010 we acquired an approximately
2% additional

interest in the SF property bringing our total interest to approximately
12% The SF property is owned by

Delaware Statutory Trust DST and by virtue of the trust agreement the investors in the trust have no direct or

indirect ability through voting rights to make decisions about the DSTs significant activities The REIT

operating partnership the REIT Operating Partnership has also entered into lease agreement for the SF

property in which the REIT Operating Partnership is the tenant which exposes
it to losses of the VIE that

could be significant to the VIE and also allows it to direct activities of the VIE that determine its economic

performance by means of its operation of the leased facility The lease has an initial term of ten years
which

commenced on December 19 2006 The initial term of the lease may be extended at the option of the REIT

Operating Partnership for up to four successive five year terms As of December 31 2012 the consolidated joint

venture had net real estate assets of approximately $16.8 million Such assets are only available to satisfy the

obligations of the SF property We have also consolidated approximately $10.1 million of secured debt and

approximately $5.8 million of noncontrolling interest related to this entity The lenders of the secured debt have

no recourse to other Company assets Our Sponsor has entered into an agreement to indemnify us for any losses

as result of potential shortfalls in the lease payments required to be made by the REIT Operating Partnership

Despite such indemnification we continue to be deemed the primary beneficiary as our Sponsor is not deemed to

have variable interest in the SF property

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts

reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes The current economic environment

has increased the degree of uncertainty inherent in these estimates and assumptions Management adjusts such

estimates when facts and circumstances dictate The most significant estimates made include the allocation of

property purchase price to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value the

determination if certain entities should be consolidated the evaluation of potential impairment of long-lived

assets and of assets held by equity method investees and the useful lives of real estate assets and intangibles

Actual results could materially differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash with maturity of

three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents
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We may maintain cash equivalents in financial institutions in excess of insured limits but believe this risk is

mitigated by only investing in or through major financial institutions

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists primarily of impound reserve accounts for property taxes insurance and capital

improvements in connection with the requirements of certain of our loan agreements

Real Estate Purchase Price Allocation

We account for acquisitions in accordance with accounting guidance which requires that we allocate the

purchase price of the
property to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on

estimated fair values This guidance requires us to make significant estimates and assumptions including fair

value estimates as of the acquisition date and to adjust those estimates as necessary during the measurement

period defined as the period not to exceed one year in which we may adjust the provisional amounts recognized

for an acquisition Acquisitions of portfolios of facilities are allocated to the individual facilities based upon an

income approach or cash flow analysis using appropriate risk adjusted capitalization rates which take into

account the relative size age and location of the individual facility along with current and projected occupancy
and rental rate levels or appraised values if available Allocations to the individual assets and liabilities are based

upon comparable market sales information for land and estimates of depreciated replacement cost of equipment

building and site improvements In allocating the purchase price we determine whether the acquisition includes

intangible assets or liabilities Substantially all of the leases in place at acquired properties are at market rates as

the majority of the leases are month-to-month contracts Accordingly to date we have not allocated any portion

of the purchase price to above or below market leases We also consider whether in-place market leases

represent an intangible asset We recorded approximately $7.3 million and approximately $15.7 million in

intangible assets to recognize the value of in-place leases related to our acquisitions in 2012 and 2011
respectively We do not expect nor to date have we recorded intangible assets for the value of tenant

relationships because we will not have concentrations of significant tenants and the average tenant turnover is

fairly frequent Our acquisition-related transaction costs are required to be expensed as incurred During the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we expensed approximately $3.6 million $7.7 million and $5.2

million respectively of acquisition related transaction costs

Should the initial accounting for an acquisition be incomplete by the end of reporting period that falls

within the measurement period we report provisional amounts in our financial statements During the

measurement period we adjust the provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that if known would

have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date and we record those adjustments to our

financial statements We apply those measurement period adjustments that we determine to be significant

retrospectively to comparative information in our financial statements potentially including adjustments to

interest depreciation and amortization expense

Evaluation of Possible Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Management will continually monitor events and changes in circumstances that could indicate that the

carrying amounts of our long-lived assets including those held through joint ventures may not be recoverable

When indicators of potential impairment are present that indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not

be recoverable we will assess the recoverability of the assets by determining whether the carrying value of the

long-lived assets will be recovered through the undiscounted future operating cash flows expected from the use

of the asset and its eventual disposition In the event that such expected undiscounted future cash flows do not
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exceed the carrying value we will adjust the value of the long-lived assets to the fair value and recognize an

impairment loss As of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 no impairment losses have been recognized

Equity Investments

Our investments in unconsolidated real estate joint ventures and VIEs in which we are not the primary

beneficiary where we have significant influence but not control are recorded under the equity method of

accounting in the accompanying consolidated financial statements Under the equity method our investments in

real estate ventures are stated at cost and adjusted for our share of net earnings or losses and reduced by

distributions Equity in earnings of real estate ventures is generally recognized based on the allocation of cash

distributions upon liquidation of the investment in accordance with the joint venture agreements

Investments representing passive preferred equity andlor minority interests are accounted for under the cost

method Under the cost method our investments in real estate ventures are carried at cost and adjusted for other-

than-temporary declines in fair value distributions representing return of capital and additional investments

Through mergers with REIT and REIT II in 2009 we acquired five preferred equity and/or minority

interests in unconsolidated joint ventures one of which became wholly-owned in 2011 as further described in

Note and another which was sold in May 2012 as further described below all of which were deemed to be

VIEs We have evaluated each variable interest against the amended criteria for consolidation and determined

that we are not the primary beneficiary generally due to our inability to direct significant activities that

determine the economic performance of the VIE Two of those investments are passive or limited partner

interests in self storage facilities such properties are owned by DSTs and by virtue of the related trust

agreements the investors have no direct or indirect ability through voting rights to make decisions about the

DSTs significant activities and are therefore accounted for under the cost method our aggregate investment

therein is approximately $0.1 million Individually our ownership interest in those investments ranges
from

approximately 0.28% to 1.49% the carrying value of the investments ranged from approximately $27000 to

$100000 and our risk of loss is limited to our individual investment therein

In May 2012 our equity interests in an unconsolidated joint venture which owns self storage facility in

Baltimore Maryland were redeemed for approximately $1.4 million This resulted in gain of approximately

$0.8 million which is included in gain on sale of investment in unconsolidated joint venture in our Consolidated

Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31 2012

The remaining interest is in net leased industrial property Hawthorne property in California with

356000 rentable square feet leased to single tenant This investment is accounted for under the equity method

of accounting and our risk of loss is limited to our investment including our maximum exposure under the terms

of debt guarantee
We own 12% interest in Westport LAX LLC the joint venture that acquired the Hawthorne

property and the carrying value in such investment is approximately $1.3 million Hawthorne LLC an affiliate of

our Sponsor owns 78% of Westport LAX LLC and we have preferred equity interest in Hawthorne LLC

which entitles us to distributions equal to 10% per annum on our investment of approximately $6.9 million and

non-interest bearing receivable of approximately $0.4 million The preferred equity interest has redemption

date in November 2013 subject to extension at our sole discretion The preferred equity interest may be called at

any time in whole or part by Hawthorne LLC or redeemed at any time by us The remaining 10% interest in

Westport LAX LLC is owned by third party who is also the co-manager along with our Sponsor of the

Hawthorne property Such third party is the acting property manager and directs the operating activities of the

property that determine its economic performance We along with other non-affiliated parties are guarantors on

the approximately $19.3 million loan used to secure the Hawthorne property the loan has maturity date of
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August 2020 As of December 31 2012 our maximum exposure to loss as result of our involvement with

this VIE consisting of our investment balance and our guarantee of the secured debt totaled approximately $27.9
million

Revenue Recognition

Management believes that all of our leases are operating leases Rental income is recognized in accordance

with the terms of the leases which generally are month-to-month Revenues from any long-term operating leases

are recognized on straight-line basis over the term of the lease The excess of rents received over amounts

contractually due pursuant to the underlying leases is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheets and contractually due but unpaid rent is included in other assets

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Tenant accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts Managements estimate

of the allowance is based upon review of the current status of tenant accounts receivable It is reasonably

possible that managements estimate of the allowance will change in the future

Real Estate Facilities

Real estate facilities are recorded at cost We capitalize costs incurred to develop construct renovate and

improve properties including interest and property taxes incurred during the construction period The

construction period begins when expenditures for the real estate assets have been made and activities that are

necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are in progress The construction period ends when the asset is

substantially complete and ready for its intended use

Depreciation of Real Property Assets

Our management is required to make subjective assessments as to the useful lives of our depreciable assets
We consider the period of future benefit of the asset to determine the appropriate useful lives

Depreciation of our real property assets is charged to expense on straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives as follows

Description Standard Depreciable Life

Land Not Depreciated

Buildings 30 to 35 years
Site Improvements to 15 years

Depreciation of Personal Property Assets

Personal
property assets consisting primarily of furniture fixtures and equipment are depreciated on

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives generally ranging from to years and are included in other

assets on our consolidated balance sheets

Intangible Assets

We have allocated portion of our real estate purchase price to in-place leases We are amortizing in-place
leases on straight-line basis over the estimated future benefit period As of December 31 2012 and 2011
accumulated amortization of in-place lease intangibles totaled approximately $36.4 million and $24.9 million

respectively
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The total estimated amortization expense of intangible assets for the
years ending December 31 2013 2014

2015 2016 and 2017 is approximately $7.7 million $2.9 million $1.1 million $0 and $0 respectively

Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs

Costs incurred in connection with obtaining financing are deferred and amortized on straight-line basis

over the term of the related loan which is not materially different than the effective interest method As of

December 31 2012 and 2011 accumulated amortization of deferred financing costs totaled approximately $4.4

million and $1.5 million respectively

Organization and Offering Costs

Our Advisor may fund organization and offering costs on our behalf We are required to reimburse our

Advisor for such organization and offering costs provided however our Advisor must reimburse us within 60

days after the end of the month in which the Offering terminates to the extent we paid or reimbursed organization

and offering costs excluding sales commissions and dealer manager fees in excess of 3.5% of the gross offering

proceeds from the Primary Offering Such costs will be recognized as liability when we have present

responsibility to reimburse our Advisor which is defined in our Advisory Agreement as the date we satisfied the

minimum offering requirements of the primary offering portion of our Initial Offering which occurred on

May 22 2008 If at any point in time we determine that the total organization and offering costs are expected to

exceed 3.5% of the gross proceeds anticipated to be received from the Primary Offering we will recognize such

excess as capital contribution from our Advisor As of December 31 2012 we do not believe total organization

and offering costs will exceed 3.5% of the gross proceeds anticipated to be received from the Primary Offering

Offering costs are recorded as an offset to additional paid-in capital and organization costs are recorded as an

expense

Redeemable Common Stock

We have adopted share redemption program that may enable stockholders to sell their shares to us in

limited circumstances

We record amounts that are redeemable under the share redemption program as redeemable common stock

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets since the shares are mandatorily redeemable at the option of the

holder and therefore their redemption is outside our control The maximum amount redeemable under our share

redemption program is limited to the number of shares we could repurchase with the amount of the net proceeds

from the sale of shares under the distribution reinvestment plan However accounting guidance states that

determinable amounts that can become redeemable but that are contingent on an event that is likely to occur

e.g the passage of time should be presented as redeemable when such amount is known Therefore the net

proceeds from the distribution reinvestment plan are considered to be temporary equity and are presented as

redeemable common stock in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

In addition current accounting guidance requires among other things that financial instruments that

represent mandatory obligation of us to repurchase shares be classified as liabilities and reported at settlement

value Our redeemable common shares are contingently redeemable at the option of the holder When we

determine we have mandatory obligation to repurchase shares under the share redemption program we will

reclassify such obligations from temporary equity to liability based upon their respective settlement values

During the year ended December 31 2012 we redeemed approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock

for approximately $12.6 million $9.60 per share As of December 31 2012 we had redemption requests for

approximately 444000 shares of common stock for approximately $4.3 million that if honored in full would

F- 17



STRATEGIC STORAGE TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2012

have caused us to exceed the limits of the share redemption program We honored such redemption requests

pursuant to the terms of the share redemption program redeeming all death and disability redemption requests

and approximately 76% of the other redemption requests Such redemptions totaled approximately 343600

shares for approximately $3.3 million $9.69 per share and were redeemed on January 31 2013 and such

amount was reclassified from redeemable common stock to accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the

consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2012 As of December 31 2012 we had approximately 100400

shares that were requested for redemption but could not be redeemed as it would have caused us to exceed the

limits of the share redemption program We treated the remainder of each redemption request as request for

redemption in the first quarter of 2013 We have funded all redemptions using proceeds from the sale of shares

pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan Our board of directors may choose to amend suspend or terminate

our share redemption program upon 30 days written notice at any time

Foreign Currency Translation

For non-U.S functional currency operations assets and liabilities are translated to U.S dollars at current

exchange rates Revenues and expenses are translated at the average rates for the period All related adjustments

are recorded in other comprehensive income loss as separate component of stockholders equity Transactions

denominated in currency other than the functional currency
of the related operation are recorded at rates of

exchange in effect at the date of the transaction Gains or losses on foreign currency transactions are recorded in

other income expense For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we recorded gain of

approximately $60000 loss of approximately $17000 and gain of approximately $106000 respectively

Accounting for Equity Awards

The cost of restricted stock is required to be measured based on the grant-date fair value and the cost to be

recognized over the relevant service period

Fair Value Measurements

The accounting standard for fair value measurements and disclosures defines fair value establishes

framework for measuring fair value and provides for expanded disclosure about fair value measurements Fair

value is defined by the accounting standard for fair value measurements and disclosures as the exchange price

that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer liability an exit price in the principal or most

advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the

measurement date It also establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs

used to measure fair value into three levels The following summarizes the three levels of inputs and hierarchy of

fair value we use when measuring fair value

Level inputs utilize quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

we have the ability to access

Level inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets as well as

interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals and

Level inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities that are typically based on an entitys

own assumptions as there is little if any related market activity

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels

of the fair value hierarchy the fair value measurement will fall within the lowest level that is significant to the

fair value measurement in its entirety
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The accounting guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures provides framework for measuring

fair value and establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs

and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value In determining fair value we utilize

valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs to

the extent possible as well as consider counterparty credit risk in our assessment of fair value Considerable

judgment is necessary to interpret Level and inputs in determining fair value of our financial and non

financial assets and liabilities Accordingly there can be no assurance that the fair values we present herein are

indicative of amounts that may ultimately be realized upon sale or other disposition of these assets

Financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on non-recurring basis in our

consolidated financial statements consist of real estate and related assets and investments in unconsolidated joint

ventures and related liabilities assumed and equity consideration related to acquisitions we made during 2012 and

2011 The fair values of these assets liabilities and equity consideration were determined as of the acquisition

dates using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis which considers

among other things leasing assumptions growth rates discount rates and terminal capitalization rates

ii income capitalization approach which considers prevailing market capitalization rates and iiicomparable

sales activity In general we consider multiple valuation techniques when measuring fair values However in

certain circumstances single valuation technique may be appropriate All of the fair values of the assets

liabilities and conmion stock as of the acquisition dates were derived using Level inputs

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents tenant accounts receivable other assets accounts

payable and accrued liabilities distributions payable and amounts due to affiliates approximate fair value

because of the relatively short-term nature of these instruments

The table below summarizes our fixed rate notes payable at December 31 2012 The estimated fair value of

financial instruments is subjective in nature and is dependent on number of important assumptions including

discount rates and relevant comparable market information associated with each financial instrument The fair

value of the fixed rate notes payable was estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at

which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining

maturities The use of different market assumptions and estimation methodologies may have material effect on

the reported estimated fair value amounts Accordingly the estimates presented below are not necessarily

indicative of the amounts we would realize in current market exchange

December 312012
Fair Value Carrying Value

Fixed Rate Secured Debt $298636303 $287912016

As of December 31 2012 we had an interest rate swap on one of our loans See Note The valuation of

this instrument was determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow

analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the

derivatives including the period to maturity and uses observable market-based inputs including interest rate

curves and implied volatilities The fair values of interest rate swaps are determined using the market standard

methodology of netting the discounted future fixed cash payments and the discounted expected variable cash

receipts The variable cash receipts are based on an expectation of future interest rates forward curves derived

from observable market interest rate curves

To comply with GAAP we incorporate credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both our own

nonperformance risk and the respective counterpartys nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements In
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adjusting the fair value of our derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk we have considered the

impact of netting and any applicable credit enhancements such as collateral postings thresholds mutual puts

and guarantees

Although we have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value our derivatives fall within Level

of the fair value hierarchy the credit valuation adjustments associated with our derivatives utilize Level

inputs such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by us and our

counterparties However as of December 31 2012 we have assessed the significance of the impact of the credit

valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of our derivative positions and have determined that the credit

valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of our derivatives As result we have

determined that our derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in Level of the fair value hierarchy As
of December 31 2012 we had $546333 of Level derivatives interest rate swap classified in accounts payable

and accrued liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivative and

the resulting designation Derivatives used to hedge exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset liability or

firm commitment attributable to particular risk are considered fair value hedges Derivatives used to hedge the

exposure to variability in expected future cash flows or other types of forecasted transactions are considered cash

flow hedges

For derivatives designated as fair value hedges changes in the fair value of the derivative and the hedged
item related to the hedged risk are recognized in the statements of operations For derivatives designated as cash

flow hedges the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is initially reported in other

comprehensive income outside of earnings and subsequently reclassified to earnings when the hedged

transaction affects earnings

Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Entities

We account for the noncontrolling interest in our Operating Partnership in accordance with amended

accounting guidance Due to our control through our general partnership interest in our Operating Partnership

and the limited rights of the limited partner our Operating Partnership including its wholly-owned subsidiaries

is consolidated with the Company and the limited partner interest is reflected as noncontrolling interest in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets In addition we account for the noncontrolling interest in the SF

property in accordance with the amended accounting guidance The noncontrolling interests shall continue to be

attributed their share of income and losses even if that attribution results in deficit noncontrolling interest

balance

Income Taxes

We made an election to be taxed as Real Estate Investment Trust REIT under Sections 856 through

860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code commencing with our taxable
year ended

December 31 2008 To qualify as REIT we must meet certain organizational and operational requirements

including requirement to currently distribute at least 90% of the REITs ordinary taxable income to

stockholders As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on taxable income that we
distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will then be subject to

federal income taxes on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and will not be permitted to qualify for
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treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes
for four years following the year during which qualification

is lost unless the IRS grants us relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could materially adversely

affect our net income and net cash available for distribution to stockholders However we believe that we will be

organized and operate in such manner as to qualify for treatment as REIT and intend to operate in the

foreseeable future in such manner that we will remain qualified as REIT for federal income tax purposes We

have concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition or disclosure in our

consolidated financial statements

Even if we qualify for taxation as REIT we may be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income

and property and federal income and excise taxes on our undistributed income

We have filed an election to treat the TRSs as taxable REIT subsidiaries In general the TRSs may perform

additional services for our tenants and generally may engage in any real estate or non-real estate related business

The TRSs are subject to corporate federal and state income tax The TRSs follow accounting guidance which

requires the use of the asset and liability method Deferred income taxes will represent the tax effect of future

differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities

Per Share Data

Basic earnings per share attributable for all periods presented are computed by dividing net income loss by

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per share are computed

by dividing net income loss by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding including all restricted

stock grants as though fully vested For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 6250 6875 and

6875 shares respectively of unvested restricted stock were not included in the diluted weighted average shares

as such shares were antidilutive

Recently Issued Accounting Guidance

ASU No 2011-05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income ASU 2011-05 was issued in June 2011 to

allow an entity the option to present
the total of comprehensive income the components of net income and the

components of other comprehensive income in either single continuous statement of comprehensive income or

two separate but consecutive statements Under either option an entity is required to present each component of

net income along with total net income each component of other comprehensive income along with total for

other comprehensive income and total amount for comprehensive income ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option

to present
the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders

equity ASU 2011-05 does not change the items that are required to be reported in other comprehensive income

or when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income and is required to be applied

retrospectively For public entities this ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 We

adopted this ASU in the interim period ending March 31 2012 by selecting the option of two separate but

consecutive statements

Note USA Self Storage DST and Madison County Self Storage DST Acquisitions

In February 2011 we through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary closed on the purchase of the

remaining 80.247% in beneficial interests Interests in USA Self Storage DST SS DST Delaware

statutory trust sponsored by our Sponsor from approximately 40 third-party sellers pursuant to separate purchase

agreements with each seller None of the purchases were contingent upon any of the others The agreed upon

purchase price the Interests acquired which was based on the aggregate appraised value of the properties was

approximately $30.1 million $37.55 million total purchase price multiplied by 80.247% The consideration

consisted of approximately $10.2 million in cash along with approximately 70000 limited partnership units in

our Operating Partnership and the ratable portion of approximately $23.3 million of three separate bank loans

held by the three property owning subtrusts the Subtrusts of SS DST the Bank of America Loans
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We paid our Advisor approximately $377000 in acquisition fees in connection with these acquisitions

SS DST through the Subtrusts owns 10 self storage facilities located in Georgia North Carolina and

Texas with an aggregate of approximately 5425 units and 800400 rentable square feet The three Subtrusts lease

their respective properties to master tenants the Tenants on triple-net basis pursuant to master leases the

Leases that have terms of 10 years and expire on November 2015 The Tenants are owned by affiliates of

the Sponsor Under the Leases the Tenants pay stated monthly rent equivalent to the monthly debt service

payment under the Bank of America Loans which is paid directly to the lender on behalf of the Subtrusts

monthly stated rent equivalent to an investor return of 7.0% per annum and may pay certain annual bonus rent

per the terms of the Leases both of which stated rent and bonus rent are remitted to the Subtrusts As an Interest

holder we are entitled to our pro rata share of the total rent less the debt service under the Bank of America

Loans The Tenants are entitled to retain any cash flow in excess of these rent payments We and our Sponsor

along with its affiliates have agreed to assign 100% of the economic benefits and obligations from these

properties to us in exchange for indemnification by us for any potential liability incurred subsequent to the

assignment by the Sponsor in connection with the Leases

The properties owned by the Subtrusts are subject to the three Bank of America Loans which had an

aggregate principal balance of approximately $23.3 million as of February 2011 The Bank of America Loans

bear fixed interest rate of 5.18% had original terms of 10 years and mature on November 2015 The Bank of

America Loans required monthly interest-only payments during the first three
years of their terms and now

require monthly principal-and-interest payments based on 30-year amortization period Each of the Bank of

America Loans is secured only by the properties owned by the respective Subtrust that obtained such loan

During the third and fourth quarters of 2012 we purchased beneficial interests the Madison Interests in

Madison County Self Storage DST Madison DST Delaware statutory trust sponsored by our Sponsor
from 13 third-party sellers pursuant to separate purchase agreements with each seller None of the purchases

were contingent upon any of the others Such purchases were completed on December 28 2012 when we
acquired the remaining 52% such that we then owned 100% of the Madison Interests The agreed upon purchase

price of the Madison Interests acquired based on the aggregate appraised value of the two properties owned by
Madison DST was approximately $10.7 million consideration provided consisted of approximately $3.1 million

in cash along with the issuance of approximately 84000 limited partnership units in our Operating Partnership

and the assumption of an approximately $6.5 million bank loan held by Madison DST the Bank of America

Loan Madison DST leased its properties to master tenant the Tenant on triple-net basis
pursuant to

master lease the Lease The Tenant is owned by affiliates of the Sponsor Such Lease was terminated

effective December 28 2012

We paid our Advisor approximately $133000 in acquisition fees in connection with these acquisitions

The Madison DST owns two self storage facilities located in Mississippi with an aggregate of approximately

895 units and 149300 rentable square feet The properties owned by the Madison DST are subject to the Bank of

America Loan which had an aggregate principal balance of approximately $6.5 million as of the acquisition

dates of the Madison Interests The loan bears fixed interest rate of 6.33% and had an original term of ten years
and matures on October 2017 The loan is secured only by the two properties owned by the Madison DST that

obtained such loan
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Note Acquisitions of Real Estate Facilities

The following summarizes the activity in real estate facilities during the years ended December 31 2012

and 2011

Real estate facilities

Balance at December 31 2010 $274568200

Facility acquisitions 229116716

Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 695064
Improvements and additions 7405724

Balance at December 31 2011 510395576

Facility acquisitions 85722709
Land disposition 1675860
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 614721

Improvements and additions 9670749

Balance at December 31 2012 $604727895

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at December 31 2010 6677014
Depreciation expense 9294274

Balance at December 31 2011 15971288
Depreciation expense 13869032

Balance at December 31 2012 29840320
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2012 and 2011 Acquisitions

Property

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation for our acquisitions for the years
ended

December 31 2012 and 2011

Debt Assumed Operating

Acquisition Real Estate or Issued Revenue Income

Date Assets Intangibles Total 23

ConcordNC 2/1/2011 2809179 290000 3099179 2262355 359402 174126

HickoryNC 2/1/2011 3068239 300000 3368239 2458764 392250

MorgantonNC 2/1/2011 2479875 420000 2899875 2116866 375052

El Paso ILTX 2/1/2011 4028337 560000 4588337 2493626 559578

El Paso 111TX 2/1/2011 5584356 510000 6094356 3312103 679569

El Paso IVTX 2/1/2011 3394766 300000 3694766 2007996 422220

El Paso VTX 2/1/2011 3535809 420000 3955809 2149865 488422

DallasTX 2/1/2011 4108217 450000 4558217 2477257 626727

Lawrenceville IGA 2/1/2011 1529603 150000 1679603 1493828 289609

Lawrenceville 11GA 2/1/2011 2832445 260000 3092445 2750402 324684

MississaugaOntario Canada 3/11/2011 5662250 5662250

El PasoTX 3/17/2011 1560000 40000 1600000 116539

Las Vegas VuNV 3/25/2011 4573052 460000 5033052 471845

Las Vegas VIIINV 3/25/2011 4901631 390000 5291631 440722

SF Bay AreaMorgan HillCA 3/30/2011 5654098 680000 6334098 3089522 599567

SF Bay AreaVallejoCA 3/30/2011 7266974 670000 7936974 4678535 705234

Peachtree CityGA 6/10/2011 4890000 520000 5410000 2645000 339918

BufordGA 6/10/2011 2357000 200000 2557000 1350000 260648

JonesboroGA 6/10/2011 2295000 200000 2495000 1100000 282064

EllenwoodGA 6/10/2011 2114225 196775 2311000 1260000 213964

Marietta 11GA 6/10/2011 2452200 227800 2680000 1200000 214388

CollegevillePA
6/10/2011 2835500 263500 3099000 1515000 280461

SkippackPA 6/10/2011 2113000 280000 2393000 1170000 263982

Ballston SpaNY 6/10/2011 4706760 437240 5144000 2515000 453754

TrentonNJ 6/10/2011 6993000 800000 7793000 3810000 531504

FredericksburgVA 6/10/2011 3911625 363375 4275000 2090000 335181

SandstonVA 6/10/2011 6143000 730000 6873000 3360000 461938

1630000 21291489 7381049 893084

350000 2800880 2192560 289188

570000 4900000 3000000 307478

420000 4470000 1715812 267278

670000 6560000 4000000 343669

5174205

480000 5700000 145874

140000 6148992 3484000 4401

210000 6252241 3542500 5476

100000 6711120 3802500 4594

242308

215520

349077

447752

240614

300408

288850

118239

147055

10575
268298

237019

382773

434485

203860

140894

146999

114992

88804

151887

144337

304218

349152

183271

297451

535859

107777

184012

128814

199731

84436

441

2094

916

Ladera RanchCA 7/6/2011 19661489

SF Bay AreaSan LorenzoCA 7/15/2011 2450880

HamptonVA 7/20/2011 4330000

Las Vegas VNV 7/21/2011 4050000

SF Bay AreaGilroyCA 8/12/2011 5890000

BramptonOntario Canada 9/12/2011 5174205

Toms RiverNJ 10/21/2011 5220000

KennesawGA 10 12/27/2011 6008992

SharpsburgGA 10 12/27/2011 6042241

DuluthN Berkeley LakeGA 10 12/27/2011 6611120

Duluth HPeachtree IndustrialGA

10 12/27/2011 6693201 190000 3900000 5735 1359

Duluth IlIBreckenridgeGA 10 12/27/2011 6840561 100000 3932500 4304 814

Marietta 111GA 10 12/27/2011 6503761 150000 3770000 4971 765

AustellGA 10 12/27/2011 4528801 60000 2600000 2583 72

Sandy SpringsGA 10 12/27/2011 8441761 80000 8060000 5858 1390

SmyrnaGA 10 12/27/2011 6648480 120000 3835000 4402 30

Lawrenceville IllGA 10 12/27/2011 7017721 50000 3721250 3253 641

JacksonvilleMonumentFL 10 12/27/2011 8069841 190000 4680000 6828 891

JacksonvilleTimuquanaFL 10 12/27/2011 5133521 70000 2665000 3134 203

$229116716 $15698690 $244815406 $119588290 $12791332 $72065532011 Total

6883201

6940561

6653761

4588801

8521761

6768480

7067721

8259841

5203521
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Debt Assumed Operating

Acquisition
Real Estate or Issued Revenue Income

Property Date Assets Intangibles Total 23
ChantillyVA 5/24/2012 6400000 900000 7300000 3500000 550910 359387

SavannahlGA11 8/16/2012 2560000 140000 2700000 123372 57061

SavannahllGA 8/16/2012 2490000 110000 2600000 113223 46759

ColumbiaSC 11 8/16/2012 2630000 70000 2700000 99115 20289

LexingtonlSC11 8/16/2012 1810000 190000 2000000 81112 23272

Stuart IFL 11 8/16/2012 2890000 110000 3000000 106495 43489

Lexington ILSC II 8/16/2012 4130000 170000 4300000 151327 71512

Stuart 11FL 11 8/16/2012 3300000 100000 3400000 148858 76937

BlufftonSC 11 8/16/2012 5230000 270000 5500000 210482 114010

Wilmington IslandGA11 10/1/2012 5810000 690000 6500000 4330000 191219 135144

Myrtle BeachSC 11 10/1/2012 3510000 190000 3700000 1500000 74102 31355

Mt Pleasant ISC 11 11/5/2012 2680000 320000 3000000 1500000 51787 23551

Charleston ISC 11 11/5/2012 2810000 190000 3000000 1500000 53393 20811

Charleston lISC 11 11/5/2012 3150000 350000 3500000 1650000 63445 35634

Mt Pleasant lISC 11 11/5/2012 5200000 600000 5800000 3350000 91692 55170

Charleston IllSCII 11/5/2012 6305000 620000 6925000 3362500 99124 64738

Mt Pleasant IllSC 11/5/2012 15410000 1090000 16500000 8000000 221524 146105

RidgelandMS 12/28/2012 4910788 610000 5520788 3510095

CantonMS 12/28/2012 4496921 540000 5036921 3196694

2012 Total $85722709 $7260000 $92982709 $35399289 $2431180 $1325224

The allocations noted above are based on preliminary determination of the fair value of the total

consideration provided Such valuations may change as we complete our purchase price accounting

See NoteS for specific terms of the Companys debt

Amounts include the purchase accounting fair value adjustment of debt as applicable

The operating results of the facilities acquired above have been included in the Companys statement of

operations since their respective acquisition date The revenue and operating income in the table above

represents such metrics from the respective acquisition date through the end of the respective fiscal year

Property operating income excludes corporate general and administrative expenses asset management fees

interest expense depreciation amortization and acquisition expenses

Allocation excludes development costs based on Canadian/U.S exchange rate as of the date of acquisition

Property was under construction therefore no revenue or operating income is included above

Consideration provided included approximately 120000 Class Units

Acquisition included 3.57 acres of undeveloped land which we purchased for approximately $3.9 million

10 These above noted properties are collectively referred to as the Homeland Portfolio

11 These above noted properties are collectively referred to as the Stockade Portfolio

All of the above properties were acquired from unaffiliated third parties We incurred acquisition fees due to

our Advisor for the above acquisitions For the
years ending December 31 2012 and 2011 such fees were

approximately $2.2 million and $5.5 million respectively

During the quarter ended December 31 2012 we finalized the purchase price accounting for the last 13

acquisitions completed in 2011 and for all of the 2012 acquisitions excluding those acquired on December 28

2012 and made revisions to preliminary estimates including real estate facilities and intangible assets as further

evaluations were completed and additional information was received from third parties subsequent to the acquisition

dates We anticipate finalizing the purchase price allocations for the remaining 2012 acquisitions by December 31

2013 as further evaluations are completed and additional information is received from third parties

The impact related to the finalization of purchase price accounting was not material to our consolidated

financial statements For acquisitions where the purchase price accounting was finalized in 2012 and 2011 the

weighted-average amortization period of the intangibles as of the date of acquisition was 29 months and 29

months respectively
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Note Secured Debt

The Companys secured debt is summarized as follows

Carrying value as of

December 31 December 31 Stated Interest Maturity

Debt/Encumbered Property 2012 2011 Rate Date

Crescent Springs 800000 5.00% 2/11/2014

Florence Walton 3700000 5.00% 2/11/2014

Montgomery 2768704 2838810 6.42% 7/1/2016

Seabrook 4516470 4584013 5.73% 1/1/2016

Greenville 2263211 2297069 5.65% 3/1/2016

Kemah 8858838 8975529 6.20% 6/1/2016

Memphis 2502922 2538295 5.67% 12/1/2016

Tallahassee 7537926 7622854 6.16% 8/1/2016

Houston 2018754 2053995 5.67% 2/1/2017

San Francisco consolidated VIE 10387192 10500000 5.84% 12/1/2016

Lake Forest 18000000 18000000 6.47% 10/1/2017

Las Vegas 1530923 1540000 5.72% 6/1/2017

Pearland 3480298 3500000 5.93% 7/1/2017

Daphne 1544325 1698407 5.47% 8/1/2020

Mesa 3036098 3100077 5.38% 4/1/2015

Riverdale 4800000 4800000 4.00% 5/14/2014

Prudential Portfolio Loan 31547772 32024379 5.42% 9/5/20 19

DufferinTorontoOntario Canada 6812855 6862800 5.22% 12/15/20 13

Citi Loan 28466942 28829407 5.77% 2/6/2021

Bank of America Loani 4400398 4474310 5.18% 11/1/2015

Bank of America Loan2 6667782 6779778 5.18% 11/1/2015

Bank of America Loan3 11984654 12185955 5.18% 11/1/2015

PrudentialLong Beach 6637926 6736892 5.27% 9/5/2019

SF Bay AreaMorgan HillCA 2928860 2997061 5.75% 4/1/2013

SF Bay AreaVallejoCA 4390176 4478882 6.04% 6/1/20 14

Citi Las Vegas Loan 10 7545688 7649929 5.26% 6/6/2021

ING Loan 11 21587669 21892726 5.47% 7/1/2021

Ladera Ranch 6821300 6942734 5.84% 6/1/2016

SF Bay AreaSan LorenzoCA 2099622 2170037 6.07% 1/1/2014

Las Vegas 1667485 1704037 5.02% 7/1/2015

Second Restated KeyBank Loan 12 51666666 76635000 4.7 1% 12/24/20 14

KeyBank Bridge Loan 13 28000000 6.79% 8/31/2012

Mississauga 14Ontario Canada 6841134 2194874 5.00% 10/31/2014

Chantilly 15 3474712 4.75% 6/6/2022

Brampton 16Ontario Canada 208086 5.25% 6/30/2016

Citi Stockade Loani 17 18200000 4.60% 10/1/2022

KeyBank CMBS Loan 18 31000000 4.65% 11/1/2022

Citi Stockade Loan2 19 19362500 4.61% 11/6/2022

Bank of America Loan4 20 6459043 6.33% 10/1/2017

Net fair value adjustment 576173 1064643

Total secured debt $353440758 $330043207

These loans were refinanced in January 2012 through the Second Restated KeyBank Loan
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This portfolio loan is comprised of 11 discrete mortgage loans on 11 respective properties Manassas

Marietta Erlanger Pittsburgh Weston Fort Lee Oakland Park Tempe Phoenix II Davie and Las Vegas

II Each of the individual loans is cross-collateralized by the other 10

Ten of the loans in this portfolio loan bear an interest rate of 5.43% and the remaining loan bears an interest

rate of 5.31% The weighted average interest rate of this portfolio is 5.42%

On January 12 2011 we encumbered the Dufferin property with Canadian dollar denominated loan of $7

million which bears interest at the banks floating rate plus 3.5% subject to reduction in certain

circumstances The rate in effect at December 31 2012 was 5.22%

This portfolio loan encumbers 11 properties Biloxi Gulf Breeze Alpharetta Florence II Jersey City

West Mifflin Chicago_95th St ChicagoWestern Ave ChicagoOgden Ave ChicagoRoosevelt Rd
and Las Vegas IV The net book value of the encumbered properties as of December 31 2012 was

approximately $56 million Such amounts are only available to satisfy the obligations of this loan

This loan encumbers the Lawrenceville and II properties

This loan encumbers the Concord Hickory and Morganton properties

This loan encumbers the El Paso II III IV properties as well as the Dallas property

This loan is cross-collateralized by the 11 properties discussed in

10 This loan encumbers the Las Vegas VII and Las Vegas VIII properties The net book value of the

encumbered properties as of December 31 2012 was approximately $9.3 million Such amounts are only

available to satisfy the obligations of this loan

11 This portfolio loan is comprised of 11 discrete mortgage loans on 11 respective properties Peachtree City

Buford Jonesboro Ellenwood Marietta II Collegeville Skippack Baliston Spa Trenton Fredericksburg

and Sandston Each of the individual loans has term of 30 years
and matures on July 2041 ING has the

option to require payment of the loan in full every five years beginning on July 2021

12 As of December 31 2012 this loan was collateralized by the Homeland Portfolio For additional discussion

see Second Restated KeyBank Loan below

13 This loan was repaid in full on August 2012 Refer to discussion below regarding the KeyBank Bridge

Loan

14 In December 2011 we entered into Canadian dollar denominated construction loan with an aggregate

potential commitment amount of approximately $9.2 million Such loan bears interest at the banks floating

rate plus 2% totaling 5.0% as of December 31 2012
15 The net book value of the Chantilly property as of December 31 2012 was approximately $6.5 million

Such amounts are only available to satisfy the obligations of this loan

16 In September 2012 we entered into Canadian dollar denominated construction loan with an aggregate

potential commitment amount of approximately $9.2 million Such loan bears interest at the banks floating

rate plus 2.25% totaling 5.25% as of December 31 2012
17 This portfolio loan encumbers 10 properties Savannah Savannah II Columbia Lexington Stuart

Lexington II Stuart II Bluffton Wilmington Island and Myrtle Beach The net book value of the

encumbered properties as of December 31 2012 was approximately $34.4 million Such amounts are only

available to satisfy the obligations of this loan

18 This portfolio loan encumbers nine properties Los AngelesLa Cienega Las Vegas III Las Vegas VI

Hampton SF Bay AreaGilroy Toms River Crescent Springs Florence and Walton The net book value

of the encumbered properties as of December 31 2012 was approximately $42.5 million

19 This portfolio loan encumbers six properties Mt Pleasant Charleston Charleston II Mt Pleasant II

Charleston III and Mt Pleasant III The net book value of the encumbered properties as of December 31

2012 was approximately $35.5 million Such amounts are only available to satisfy the obligations of this

loan

20 This loan encumbers the Ridgeland and Canton properties
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As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the Companys secured debt shown above was secured by the

properties shown above which properties had net book values of approximately $570 million and $489 million

respectively

Second Restated KeyBank Loan

On December 27 2011 in connection with the acquisition of the Homeland Portfolio an $80 million

portfolio of 10 properties in Atlanta GA and two properties in Jacksonville FL our Operating Partnership and

various property owning SPEs entered into second amended and restated secured credit facility with KeyBank

National Association KeyBank with total commitments of $82 million such facility replaced our then

existing $30 million Restated KeyBank Credit Facility which had approximately $20 million outstanding before

the purchase of the Homeland Portfolio and we drew down an additional approximately $56.6 million

thereunder On January 12 2012 we drew down an additional approximately $5.4 million in connection with the

repayment of the previously outstanding debt on our Crescent Springs Florence and Walton properties bringing

the total amount outstanding to $82 million Such credit facility as amended the Second Restated KeyBank

Loan was converted from revolving credit facility to term loan on August 15 2012 and the principal

balance was reduced on October 10 2012 from $82 million to $55 million through the use of the majority of the

proceeds from the KeyBank CMBS Loan see below

Beginning on November 30 2012 we are required to make monthly payments in the amount of $1666667

until the outstanding principal balance of the Second Restated KeyBank Loan is reduced to $45 million The

remaining $45 million matures on December 24 2014 subject to two one-year extension options subject to the

fulfillment of certain conditions and requires monthly interest-only payments

We were required to purchase an interest rate swap with notional amount of $45 million which requires us

to pay an effective fixed interest rate of approximately 5.41% on the hedged portion of the debt For the

remaining amount outstanding under the terms of the Second Restated KeyBank Loan our Operating

Partnership has the option of selecting one of three variable interest rates which have applicable spreads Our

Operating Partnership has elected to have 30-day LIBOR rate apply which including the applicable spread

equaled an interest rate of approximately 4.71% as of December 31 2012 Our Operating Partnership may

change this election from time to time for the non-hedged portion of the debt as provided in the agreement

The Second Restated KeyBank Loan is secured by cross-collateralized first mortgage liens or first lien deeds

of trust on all properties in the Homeland Portfolio and is cross-defaulted to any recourse debt of $25 million or

greater in the aggregate or non-recourse debt of $75 million or greater in the aggregate it was originally cross-

defaulted to the KeyBank Bridge Loan defined below which was repaid in full on August 2012 Our

Operating Partnership may prepay the Second Restated KeyBank Loan in whole or in part at any time without

penalty Pursuant to that certain guaranty dated December 27 2011 in favor of KeyBank we serve as guarantor

of all obligations due under the Second Restated KeyBank Loan

In connection with the Second Restated KeyBank Loan our Operating Partnership paid customary lender

fees legal fees and other expenses

Per the terms of the Second Restated KeyBank Loan we were required to fund $1.55 million interest

reserve account at closing which KeyBank may draw upon on monthly basis in an amount equal to the

shortfall between the net operating income of the mortgaged properties and the interest on the Second Restated

KeyBank Loan We are required to replenish interest reserve account if it falls below certain threshold but will

be refunded the entire balance upon achieving as defined therein debt service coverage ratio DSCR of

1.30 to for two consecutive quarters provided no event of default then exists
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The Second Restated KeyBank Loan contains number of customary representations warranties

indemnities and covenants including but not limited to the following as defined therein and tested as of the

close of each fiscal quarter

maximum total leverage ratio 60% on July 2012 and decreasing to 57.5% on October 2012

55% on October 2013 and 50% on October 2014

minimum interest service coverage ratio 1.60 to on July 2012 and increasing to 1.75 to on

January 2014

minimum fixed charge ratio 1.35 to on July 2012 and increasing to 1.50 to on January

2014

minimum DSCR beginning on March 31 2014 at 1.10 to and increasing to 1.30 to on March 31

2015 and 1.40 to on March 31 2016

minimum liquidity unencumbered cash and cash equivalents plus marketable securities of $2

million

minimum tangible net worth of at least $175 million plus 75% of the net proceeds of our ongoing

public offering less funded share redemptions but in no event may our net worth be less than $175

million

required loan to value ratio related to the Homeland Portfolio equal to no more than 65% and

required debt yield related to the Homeland Portfolio of 3% commencing on January 2013 and

increasing to 4% on July 2013 6% on January 2014 8% on July 2014 and 10.5% on January

2015

We have ten business days from the date on which any violation of the above covenants occurs in which to

cure the violation to the extent the violation can be cured with cash payment The terms of the Second Restated

KeyBank Loan also limit the extent to which we and our Operating Partnership may incur additional debt without

the consent of KeyBank

KeyBank Bridge Loan

On December 27 2011 in connection with the acquisition of the Homeland Portfolio our Operating

Partnership and certain property owning SPEs also obtained bridge loan with total commitments of $28 million

the KeyBank Bridge Loan from KeyBank $10 million of which was previously committed with nothing

outstanding under our previously existing KeyBank Working Capital Line which was terminated and drew

down the entire committed amount

The KeyBank Bridge Loan required monthly principal and interest payments and was repaid in full on

August 2012 Under the terms of the KeyBank Bridge Loan our Operating Partnership had the option of

selecting one of three variable interest rates which had applicable spreads Our Operating Partnership elected to

have 30-day LIBOR rate apply which including the applicable spread equaled an interest rate of

approximately 6.7% for the period outstanding during 2012

Citi Stockade Loani

On October 2012 we through 10 property owning special purpose entities SPEs wholly-owned by

our Operating Partnership entered into loan agreement with Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp with total

principal amount of $18.2 million the Citi Stockade Loani The Citi Stockade Loani has term of ten

years maturing on October 2022 and requires monthly payments of interest only for the first two years with
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fixed monthly payments of principal and interest thereafter The Citi Stockade Loani bears interest at fixed

rate of 4.6% We serve as guarantor of the obligations under the Citi Stockade Loani The Citi Stockade

Loani contains number of other customary terms and covenants

KeyBank CMBS Loan

On October 10 2012 we and nine SPEs wholly-owned by our Operating Partnership the KeyBank

CMBS Properties entered into CMBS loan obtained from KeyBank National Association the KeyBank

CMBS Loan in the principal amount of $31 million Such loan is cross-collateralized and cross-defaulted

amongst the KeyBank CMBS Properties The majority of the proceeds from the KeyBank CMBS Loan were

used to reduce the outstanding principal amount under the Second Restated KeyBank Loan from $82 million to

$55 million KeyBank released the nine KeyBank CMBS Properties along with three additional properties from

the security interests granted under the Second Restated KeyBank Loan

The KeyBank CMBS Loan has term of 10 years and matures on November 2022 Additionally the

KeyBank CMBS Loan bears fixed interest rate of 4.65% per annum is interest only for the first year and

thereafter requires amortization on 30-year amortization schedule The KeyBank CMBS Loan contains

number of other customary terms and covenants We serve as guarantor of the obligations under the KeyBank

CMBS Loan

Citi Stockade Loan2

On November 2012 we through six SPEs wholly-owned by our Operating Partnership entered into

loan agreement with Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp with total principal amount of approximately $19.4

million the Citi Stockade Loan2 The Citi Stockade Loan2 has term of ten years maturing on

November 2022 and requires monthly payments of interest only for the first two years with fixed monthly

payments of principal and interest thereafter The Citi Stockade Loan2 bears interest at fixed rate of 4.61%

We serve as guarantor of the obligations under the Citi Stockade Loan2 The Citi Stockade Loan2 contains

number of other customary terms and covenants

The following table presents the future principal payment requirements on outstanding secured debt as of

December 31 2012

2013 19682080

2014 66776490

2015 30579553

2016 46876579

2017 33981671

2018 andthereafter 156120558

Total payments 354016931

Unamortized fair value adjustment 576173

Total $353440758

We record the amortization of debt discounts related to fair value adjustments to interest expense The

weighted average interest rate of the Companys fixed rate debt as of December 31 2012 was approximately

5.4%
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Note Derivative InstrumentsCash Flow Hedge of Interest Rate Risk

Our objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage our

exposure to interest rate movements To accomplish this objective we use interest rate swaps as part of our

interest rate risk management strategy Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of

variable amounts from counterparty in exchange for us making fixed-rate payments over the life of the

agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount

The effective portion of the change in the fair value of the derivative designated and that qualifies as cash

flow hedge is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income AOCI and is subsequently reclassified

into earnings in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings During 2012 and 2011 such

derivatives were used to hedge the variable cash flows associated with existing variable-rate debt The ineffective

portion of the change in fair value of the derivatives is recognized directly in earnings of which there were none

during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Amounts reported in AOCI related to derivatives will be reclassified to interest expense as interest payments

are made on our variable-rate debt Over the next 12 months we estimate that an additional $313000 will be

reclassified as an increase to interest expense

As of December 31 2012 we had one derivative outstanding which was an interest rate derivative that was

designated as cash flow hedge of interest rate risk

Interest Rate Derivative Number of Instrmnents Notional

Interest Rate Swaps $45000000

The table below presents the fair value of the Companys derivative financial instruments as well as their

classification on the balance sheet as of December 31 2012 and 2011

As of December 31 2012 As of December 312011
Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet Location Fair Value Location Fair Value

Interest rate derivatives

Assets Other assets Other assets

Liabilities Accounts payable and Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities $546333 accrued liabilities $311630

We have agreements with our derivative counterparty that contain provision where if we either default or

are capable of being declared in default including default where repayment of the indebtedness has not been

accelerated on any of our indebtedness then we could also be declared in default on our derivative obligations

Certain of our agreements
with our derivative counterparties contain provisions where if specified event or

condition Credit Event Upon Merger occurs that materially changes our creditworthiness in an adverse manner

we may be required to fully collateralize our obligations under the derivative instrument As of December 31

2012 we had not posted any collateral

As of December 31 2012 the fair value of derivatives in net liability position which includes accrued

interest but excludes any adjustment for nonperformance risk related to these agreements was approximately

$575000 If we had breached any of these provisions at December 31 2012 we could have been required to

settle our obligations under the agreements at their termination value of approximately $575000
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Note Related Party Transactions

Fees to Affiliates

Our Advisory Agreement with our Advisor and dealer manager agreement Dealer Manager Agreement

with our Dealer Manager entitle our Advisor and our Dealer Manager to specified fees upon the provision of

certain services with regard to the Offering and investment of funds in real estate properties among other

services as well as reimbursement for organizational and offering costs incurred by our Advisor on our behalf

and reimbursement of certain costs and expenses
incurred by our Advisor in providing services to us

Organization and Offering Costs

Organization and offering costs of the Offering may be paid by our Advisor on our behalf and will be

reimbursed to our Advisor from the proceeds of the Offering Organization and offering costs consist of all

expenses other than sales commissions and the dealer manager fee to be paid by us in connection with the

Offering including our legal accounting printing mailing and filing fees charges of our escrow holder and

other accountable offering expenses including but not limited to amounts to reimburse our Advisor for all

marketing related costs and expenses such as salaries and direct expenses of employees of our Advisor and its

affiliates in connection with registering and marketing our shares ii technology costs associated with the

Offering iii our costs of conducting our training and education meetings iv our costs of attending retail

seminars conducted by participating broker-dealers and payment or reimbursement of bona fide due

diligence expenses Our Advisor must reimburse us within 60 days after the end of the month which the Offering

terminates to the extent we paid or reimbursed organization and offering costs excluding sales commissions and

dealer manager fees in excess of 3.5% of the gross offering proceeds from the Primary Offering

Advisory Agreement

We do not expect to have any employees Our Advisor is primarily responsible for managing our business

affairs and carrying out the directives of our board of directors Our Advisor receives various fees and expenses

under the terms of our Advisory Agreement As discussed above we are required under our Advisory Agreement

to reimburse our Advisor for organization and offering costs provided however our Advisor must reimburse us

within 60 days after the end of the month in which the Offering terminates to the extent we paid or reimbursed

organization and offering costs excluding sales commissions and dealer manager fees in excess of 3.5% of the

gross offering proceeds from the Primary Offering

Our Advisory Agreement also requires our Advisor to reimburse us to the extent that offering expenses

including sales commissions dealer manager fees and organization and offering expenses are in excess of 15%

of gross proceeds from the Offering Our Advisor receives acquisition fees equal to 2.5% of the contract purchase

price of each property we acquire plus reimbursement of any acquisition expenses the Advisor incurs Our

Advisor also receives monthly asset management fee equal to one-twelfth of 1.0% of the average of the

aggregate asset value as defined of our assets excluding those properties acquired through our mergers with

REIT and REIT II and the SS DST and Madison DST acquisitions provided however that if the
average

of

the aggregate asset value as defined of our assets exceeds $500 million the monthly asset management fee shall

be reduced to one-twelfth of 0.75% of the average of the aggregate asset value as defined of those assets

exceeding $500 million unless our modified funds from operations as defined in the Advisory Agreement

including payment of the fee is greater than 100% of our distributions in any month see footnote in the

following table for discussion of the Advisors permanent waiver of certain asset management fees for the year

ended December 31 2012 The monthly asset management fees for our properties acquired through our mergers

with REIT and REIT II and the SS DST and Madison DST acquisitions are equal to 2.0% of the
gross
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revenues from the properties and are paid to affiliates of our Sponsor Under our Advisory Agreement our

Advisor receives fees in an amount equal to 3.0% of the contract sale price for each property we sell as long as

our Advisor provides substantial assistance in connection with the sale The total real estate commissions paid

including disposition fee paid to our Advisor may not exceed the lesser of competitive real estate commission

or an amount equal to 6.0% of the contract sale price of the property and are subordinated to receipt of our

stockholders of 6% cumulative non-compounded annual return on such stockholders invested capital Our

Advisor may also be entitled to various subordinated fees if we list our shares of common stock on national

exchange terminate our Advisory Agreement or liquidate our portfolio

The advisors of REIT and REIT II are entitled to various fees related to their properties if we dispose of

property liquidate our portfolio or terminate their advisory agreement

Our Advisory Agreement provides for reimbursement of our Advisors direct and indirect costs of providing

administrative and management services to us see footnote in the following table for discussion of the

Advisors permanent waiver of certain reimbursements for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Beginning October 2009 four fiscal quarters after the acquisition of our first real estate asset our Advisor

must pay or reimburse us the amount by which our aggregate annual operating expenses as defined exceed the

greater
of 2% of our average invested assets or 25% of our net income as defined unless majority of our

independent directors determine that such excess expenses were justified based on unusual and non-recurring

factors For any fiscal quarter for which total operating expenses for the 12 months then ended exceed the

limitation we will disclose this fact in our next quarterly report or within 60 days of the end of that quarter and

send written disclosure of this fact to our stockholders In each case the disclosure will include an explanation

of the factors that the independent directors considered in arriving at the conclusion that the excess expenses

were justified For the 12 months ended December 31 2012 our aggregate annual operating expenses as

defined did not exceed the thresholds described above

On September 27 2012 we entered into Second Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement the

Amended Advisory Agreement with our Advisor The material terms of the Advisory Agreement were not

changed However certain provisions were added the most significant of which was provision restricting us

during the term of the Amended Advisory Agreement and for period of two years after the termination of the

Amended Advisory Agreement from soliciting or hiring any employee of or person performing services on

behalf of our Advisor

Dealer Manager Agreement

Our Dealer Manager receives sales commission of up to 7.0% of gross proceeds from sales in the Primary

Offering and dealer manager fee equal to up to 3.0% of gross proceeds from sales in the Primary Offering

under the terms of our Dealer Manager Agreement Our Dealer Manager has entered into participating dealer

agreements with certain other broker-dealers which authorizes them to sell our shares Upon sale of our shares by

such broker-dealers our Dealer Manager will re-allow all of the sales commissions paid in connection with sales

made by these broker-dealers Our Dealer Manager may also re-allow to these broker-dealers portion of the

3.0% dealer manager fee as marketing fees reimbursement of certain costs and expenses
of attending training

and education meetings sponsored by our Dealer Manager payment of attendance fees required for employees of

our Dealer Manager or other affiliates to attend retail seminars and public seminars sponsored by these broker

dealers or to defray other distribution related expenses Our Dealer Manager also receives reimbursement of

bona fide due diligence expenses however to the extent these due diligence expenses
cannot be justified any

excess over actual due diligence expenses will be considered underwriting compensation subject to 10%

FINRA limitation and when aggregated with all other non-accountable expenses may not exceed 3% of gross

offering proceeds from sales in the Primary Offering
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Our dealer manager agreement with our prior dealer manager for our Initial Offering was substantially

equivalent to the terms described above

Affiliated Dealer Manager

Our president owns 15% beneficial non-voting equity interest in our Dealer Manager

Property Management Agreement

Our Property Manager receives fee for its services in managing our properties except for those properties

acquired in the USA Self Storage DST acquisition generally equal to 6% of the gross revenues from the

properties plus reimbursement of the direct costs of managing the properties under our property management

agreement The properties acquired in the USA Self Storage DST acquisition are managed by an affiliate of our

Sponsor As condition of the REIT II merger transaction the monthly property management fees for properties

acquired from REIT II have been waived until the FF0 of the properties acquired from REIT II as defined in the

merger agreement relating to the REIT II merger transaction reaches $0.70 per
share In the event that our

Property Manager assists with the development or redevelopment of property we may pay separate market-

based fee for such services

On September 27 2012 our board of directors approved revisions to our property management agreements

that we expect to enter into in the future as we acquire additional properties and as our current property

management agreements are renewed These revisions include increasing the term to three years with automatic

three-year extensions revising the property owners obligation to reimburse the Property Manager for certain

expenses the addition of construction management fee as defined the addition of tenant insurance

administrative fee adding nonsolicitation provision and adding provision regarding the Property Managers

use of trademarks and other intellectual property owned by Strategic Storage Holdings LLC

Pursuant to the terms of the agreements described above the following summarizes the related party costs

incurred for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 312012 December 312011 December 31 2010

Expensed

Reimbursement of operating

expenses including

organizational costs 33476 330993 850691

Asset management fees2 4521867 3019429 1400962

Property management fees3 3732149 2683492 1266395

Acquisition expenses 2415200 5706838 3206832

Capitalized

Acquisition expenses4 69016
Additional Paid-in Capital

Selling commissions 7402084 5798197 6681016
Dealer Manager fee 3172322 2484942 2863292
Reimbursement of offering

costs 487235 555839 435712

Total $21764333 $20579730 $16773916
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During the yeass
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 our Advisor permanently waived certain reimbursable

indirect costs primarily payroll and related overhead costs related to administrative and management

services totaling approximately $960000 and $740000 respectively Such amounts were waived

permanently and accordingly will not be paid to our Advisor

During the
year

ended December 31 2012 our Advisor permanently waived asset management fees related

to the Stockade Portfolio and our Dufferin property totaling approximately $186000 and $37000

respectively Such amounts were waived permanently and accordingly will not be paid to our Advisor

During the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 property management fees include

approximately $100000 $60000 and $11000 respectively of fees paid to the sub-property manager of our

Canadian properties

Acquisition fees paid to our Advisor in connection with the additional investments in unconsolidated joint

ventures

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we had amounts due to affiliates totaling $2282344 and $2065615

respectively

Tenant Reinsurance Program

Beginning in 2011 affiliates of our Sponsor including our president are participating in tenant

reinsurance program whereby tenants of our self storage facilities can purchase insurance to cover damage or

destruction to their property while stored at our facilities Such affiliates have invested in Cayman Islands

company the Reinsurance Company that will insure portion of the insurance required by the program

insurer to cover the risks of loss at participating
facilities in the program The program insurer provides fees

approximately 50% of the tenant premium paid to us as owner of the facilities The Reinsurance Company may

be required to fund additional capital or entitled to receive distributions of profits depending on actual losses

incurred under the program For the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we recorded revenue of

approximately $1.3 million and $0.4 million respectively in connection with this tenant reinsurance program

Note Commitments and Contingencies

Distribution Reinvestment Plan

We have adopted distribution reinvestment plan that allows our stockholders to have distributions

otherwise distributable to them invested in additional shares of our common stock The plan became effective on

the effective date of our initial public offering The purchase price per
share was the higher of $9.50 per

share or

95% of the fair market value of share of our common stock Effective March 28 2012 the purchase price per

share under the distribution reinvestment plan was changed to 95% of the offering price of our shares No sales

commission or dealer manager fee will be paid on shares sold through the distribution reinvestment plan We

may amend or terminate the distribution reinvestment plan for any reason at any time upon 10 days prior written

notice to stockholders As of December 31 2012 we have sold approximately million shares through our

distribution reinvestment plan

Share Redemption Program

We have adopted share redemption program that may enable stockholders to sell their shares to us in

limited circumstances As long as our common stock is not listed on national securities exchange or over-the

counter market our stockholders who have held their stock for at least one year may be able to have all or any
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portion of their shares of stock redeemed by us We may redeem the shares of stock presented for redemption for

cash to the extent that we have sufficient funds available to fund such redemption

Our board of directors may amend suspend or terminate the share redemption program with 30 days notice

to our stockholders We may provide this notice by including such information in Current Report on Form 8-K

or in our annual or quarterly reports all publicly filed with the SEC or by separate mailing to our stockholders

Our share redemption program was amended in October 2011 and March 2012 The complete terms of our share

redemption program as so revised are described in detail in our prospectus as supplemented You may also see

our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 24 2012

The amount that we may pay to redeem stock for redemptions is the redemption price set forth in the

following table which is based upon the number of years the stock is held

Number Years Held Redemption Price

Less than No Redemption Allowed

or more but less than 90.0% of Redemption Amount

or more but less than 92.5% of Redemption Amount

or more but less than 95.0% of Redemption Amount

or more 100.0% of Redemption Amount

At any time we are engaged in an offering of shares the Redemption Amount for shares purchased under

our share redemption program will always be equal to or lower than the applicable per share offering price As

long as we are engaged in an offering the Redemption Amount shall be the lesser of the amount the stockholder

paid for their shares or the price per share in the current offering If we are no longer engaged in an offering the

per share Redemption Amount will be determined by our board of directors Our board will announce any

redemption price adjustment and the time period of its effectiveness as part of its regular communications with

our stockholders At any time the redemption price during an offering is determined by any method other than

the offering price if we have sold property and have made one or more special distributions to our stockholders

of all or portion of the net proceeds from such sales the per share redemption price will be reduced by the net

sale proceeds per share distributed to investors prior to the redemption date as result of the sale of such property

in the special distribution Our board will in its sole discretion determine which distributions if any constitute

special distribution While our board does not have specific criteria for determining special distribution we

expect that special distribution will only occur upon the sale of property and the subsequent distribution of the

net sale proceeds

There are several limitations on our ability to redeem shares under the share redemption program including

but not limited to

Unless the shares are being redeemed in connection with stockholders death qualifying disability

as defined under the share redemption program or bankruptcy we may not redeem shares until the

stockholder has held his or her shares for one year

During any calendar year we will not redeem in excess of 5% of the weighted-average number of

shares outstanding during the prior calendar year

The cash available for redemption is limited to the proceeds from the sale of shares pursuant to our

distribution reinvestment plan

We have no obligation to redeem shares if the redemption would violate the restrictions on

distributions under Maryland law which prohibits distributions that would cause corporation to fail

to meet statutory tests of solvency
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Redeemable Common StockState of Washington

In the third quarter of 2012 we discovered that due to clerical error we exceeded our registration amount

in the State of Washington during three month period in 2012 Upon this discovery we immediately took

action to increase our registration amount however stockholders who purchased shares in excess of the amount

then-registered in the State of Washington may be entitled to rescission of their respective investments totaling

approximately $3.9 million in our shares as the shares they originally purchased were unregistered If any of

those stockholders seek rescission we will be required to redeem their shares Such shares were subsequently

registered and we do not expect significant amount of requests for rescission

Operating Partnership Redemption Rights

The limited partners of our Operating Partnership have the right to cause our Operating Partnership to

redeem their limited partnership units for cash equal to the value of an equivalent number of our shares or at our

option we may purchase their limited partnership units by issuing one share of our common stock for each

limited partnership unit redeemed The holders of the Class Units have agreed to modified exchange rights that

prevent them from exercising their exchange rights until the earlier of listing of our shares or our

merger into another entity whereby our stockholders receive securities listed on national securities exchange or

until FF0 of the properties contributed by the holders of the Class Units reaches $0.70 per share based on

our fully-loaded cost of equity These rights may not be exercised under certain circumstances that could cause

us to lose our REIT election Furthermore limited partners may exercise their redemption rights only after their

limited partnership units have been outstanding for one year Our Advisor is prohibited from exchanging or

otherwise transferring its limited partnership units so long as our Sponsor is acting as our sponsor

Ground Lease CommitmentSF Bay AreaSan Lorenzo

In connection with the acquisition of our SF Bay Area San Lorenzo property we assumed land lease

with remaining term of approximately 22 years as of December 31 2012 and recorded rent expense of

approximately $147000 for the year ended December 31 2012 The lease has minimum lease payments of

approximately $132000 $133000 $139000 $139000 and $139000 for the years ending 2013 2014 2015

2016 and 2017

Other Contingencies

We have been involved in routine litigation and threatened litigation arising in the ordinary course of

business While the outcome of any litigation is inherently unpredictable we believe the likelihood of these

pending legal matters having material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations is

remote

Note Declaration of Distributions

On December 13 2012 our board of directors declared distribution rate for the first quarter of 2013 of

$0.00 1917808 per day per share on the outstanding shares of common stock payable to stockholders of record of

such shares as shown on our books at the close of business on each day during the period commencing on

January 2013 and continuing on each day thereafter through and including March 31 2013

Note 10 Pro Forma Financial Information Unaudited

The table set forth below summarizes on an unaudited pro forma basis the combined results of operations of

the Company for the years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 as if the Companys acquisitions discussed in

Notes and were completed as of January 2012 and 2011 This pro forma information does not purport to
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represent what the actual results of operations of the Company would have been for the periods indicated nor do

they purport to predict the results of operations for future periods

The following table summarizes on pro
forma basis our consolidated results of operations for the years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 based on the assumptions described above

Pro forma revenue

Pro forma operating expenses

Pro forma net loss attributable to the Company
Pro forma net loss

per common share basic and

diluted

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding basic and diluted

Note 11 Selected Quarterly Data Unaudited

Year Ended

December 312012 December 312011

73753403 70052375

72773108 85052121

$20622487 $37136667

0.48 0.89

42723209 41560769

The following is summary of quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively

Total revenues

Total operating expenses

Net loss

Net loss attributable to the

Company

Net loss per share-basic and

diluted

Three months ended

March 31 2012 June 30 2012 September 30 2012 December 31 2012

$15351917 $15705274 $17098173 $18455140

$15455345 $16136742 $17000260 $17351457

5451145 5091133 4620823 3852041

5432094 5087074 4610650 3843894

0.15 0.12 0.11 0.08

Total revenues

Total operating expenses

Net loss

Net loss attributable to the

Company

Net loss per share-basic and

diluted

March 312011

9804613

$12661013

5341819

Three months ended

September 302011

$13930807

$15657652

5292070

$5146419

December 312011

$14288798

$16397585

5801272

5746180

As of March 21 2013 in connection with our Offering we have issued approximately 44.1 million shares of

our common stock for
gross proceeds of approximately $441 million

June 302011

$11371860

$13895617

5399076

5216063 5248767

Note 12 Subsequent Events

Offering Status

0.19 0.17 0.16 0.17
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Declaration of Dividends

On March 20 2013 our board of directors declared distribution rate for the second quarter of 2013 of

$0.001917808 per day per share on the outstanding shares of common stock payable to stockholders of record of

such shares as shown on our books at the close of business on each day during the period commencing on

April 2013 and continuing on each day thereafter through and including June 30 2013

Financing

Citi Morgan Hill Loan

On March 2013 we entered into loan agreement with Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp the Citi

Morgan Hill Loan totaling $3 million The Citi Morgan Hill Loan has term of ten years maturing on

March 2023 and requires monthly payments of interest only for the first five years with fixed monthly

payments of principal and interest thereafter The Citi Morgan Hill Loan bears interest at fixed rate of 4.08%

The proceeds from the loan were used to pay off in full the previously outstanding mortgage on the SF Bay

AreaMorgan Hill property

Potential Acquisition

On March 25 2013 we entered into purchase and sale agreement for facility located in Charleston

South Carolina The purchase price for the facility is approximately $6.6 million We expect to close this

acquisition by the end of the second quarter
of 2013 There can be no assurance that we will complete such

acquisition In some circumstances if we fail to complete such acquisition we may forfeit some earnest money

as result
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REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

December 31 2012

Initial Cost to Company
Cost Capitalized

Building and Subsequent to

Description ST Encumbrance Land Improvements Total Acquisition

Biloxi MS $1172887 518701 2847676 3366377 83702

Gulf Breeze FL 3796244 1943144 5043905 6987049 94988

Manassas VA 1500750 1050519 3741305 4791824 90104

Walton KY 2300000 650000 2634959 3284959 152640

Crescent Springs KY 1960000 280000 1637802 1917802 106203

Florence KY 3100000 840000 2691629 3531629 65885

Alpharetta GA 2628244 1060107 3752629 4812736 125526

Marietta GA 2178509 1060000 2705806 3765806 58951

Erlanger KY 1549161 565790 2463269 3029059 192569

Florence II KY 3225439 871200 4877025 5748225 336694

Jersey City NJ 5864434 3625048 6999952 10625000 477044

Montgomery AL 2768704 1197900 2389873 3587773 65293

ci Phoenix AZ 680620 1259380 1940000 455315

Seabrook TX 4422199 1520000 3860000 5380000 61345

Greenville SC 2209003 530000 2570000 3100000 148176

Kemah TX 8778064 2510000 8970000 11480000

Tallahassee FL 7455825 1230000 6310000 7540000

Memphis TN 2432410 790000 2560000 3350000

Houston TX 1960422 420000 1650000 2070000

Las Vegas NV 1476537 1460000 4220000 5680000

Las Vegas II NV 1485736 1050000 970000 2020000

Pearland TX 3404082 1060000 4540000 5600000

Daphne AL 1489371 1530000 2510000 4040000

Lake Forest CA 17977679 15840000 8860000 24700000

San Francisco CA 10149024 9280000 8200000 17480000

Pittsburgh PA 1307105 680189 1379025 2059214

West Mifflin PA 1859026 868872 2114578 2983450

Fort Lee NJ 8423565 2000000 13630000 15630000

Weston FL 3195146 1500000 4330000 5830000

Gulf Breeze II FL 270000 895000 1165000

Mesa AZ 2.997.096 600000 2633728 3233728

Oaldand Park FL 7479545 4530650 8729350 13260000

Phoenix II AZ 822988 1020000 515000 1535000

Tempe AZ 968226 900000 740000 1640000

Riverdale NJ 4677280 1050000 4794357 5844357

Gross Carrying Amount at December 31 2012

Building and Accumulated Date of Date

Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction Acquired

518701 2931378 3450079 559451 1980/1984/1992 9/25/2008

1943144 5138893 7082037 840171 1978/1982/2004 9/25/2008

1050519 3831409 4881928 547556 1996/2000 12/19/2008

650000 2787599 3437599 430884 1991 2/12/2009

280000 1744005 2024005 249178 1999/2003 2/12/2009

840000 2757514 3597514 431563 1996 2/12/2009

1060107 3878155 4938262 476481 2003 6/1/2009

1060000 2764757 3824757 321213 2006 6/1/2000

565790 2655838 3221628 381771 1987 7/17/2009

871200 5213719 6084919 664797 1982/1995 7/17/2009

3625048 7476996 11102044 799593 1985 8/21/2009

1197900 2455166 3653066 316147 1995/2004 9/3/2009

680620 1714695 2395315 285988 1974 9/4/2009

1520000 3921345 5441345 498976 2001 2003 9/24/2009

530000 2718176 3248176 279884 1948/1995 9/24/2009

1985/2005/

2510000 9050904 11560904 1180741 1999/2002 9/24/2009

1230000 6609960 7839960 724407 1979-1987 9/24/2009

790000 2779130 3569130 430226 1987/1994 9/24/2009

420000 1820673 2.240.673 293.306 1984/2005 9/24/2009

1460000 4253381 5713381 458669 2006 9/24/2009

1050000 1005472 2055472 126580 1998 9/24/2009

1060000 4577731 5637731 606444 2004/2005 9/24/2009

1530000 2601676 4131676 274714 2000 9/24/2009

15840000 8966471 24806471 1500013 2003 9/24/2009

9284076 8351942 17636018 806226 1909/2000 9/24/2009

680189 1415803 2095992 182252 1990 12/11/2009

868872 2336123 3204995 226593 1983 12/11/2009

2000000 13787797 15787797 1210197 2000 2/24/2010

1500000 4464699 5964699 407161 2005 2/24/2010

270000 932844 1202844 123725 2004/2005 3/10/2010

600000 2669030 3269030 269306 2002 4/9/2010

4530650 8958575 13489225 759155 1987 4/16/2010

1020000 932564 1952564 145697 1974 5/16/2010

900000 1115066 2015066 147530 1973 5/16/2010

1050000 4922630 5972630 393015 2007 5/14/2010

80904

299960

219130

170673

33381

35472

37731

91676

106471

156018

36778

221545

157797

134699

37844

35302

229225

417564

375066

128273



Initial Cost to Company Gross Carrying Amount at December 31 2012
Cost Capitalized

Building and Subsequent to Building and Accumulated Date of Date

Description ST Encumbrance Land Improvements Total Acquisition Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction Acquired
Davie FL 2646240 2840000 2040000 4880000 769209 2.840.000 2.809.209 5.649.209 2X614 198t 7/14/2010

95th St IL 3078828 1600000 4230000 5830000 71765 1600000 4301765 5901765 353243 2002 10/22/2010

Western IL 586443 900000 400000 1300000 139234 900000 539234 1439234 58317 2004 10/22/2010

Ogden IL 2150293 1703370 1766630 3470000 296297 1703370 2062927 3766297 209198 2002 10/26/2010

Las Vegas III NV 1800000 1130000 2985000 4115000 81397 1130000 3066397 4196397 211691 2005 10/29/2010

Roosevelt IL 684184 1207135 502865 1710000 97577 1207135 600442 1807577 65461 2004 11/16/2010

Dufferin 6812855 4576772 9120472 13697244 307541 4664415 9340370 14004785 602644 1965/2008 11/23/2010

La Cienega CA 7950000 3260000 8990000 12250000 82863 3260000 9072863 12332863 554931 2004 12/16/2010

Long Beach CA 6637926 4810000 7040000 11850000 90954 4810000 7130954 11940954 479056 1999 12/16/2010

Las Vegas IV NV 3420920 1470000 4835000 6305000 271146 1470000 5106146 6576146 324900 1996 12/21/2010

Rancho NV 2365000 990000 2830000 3820000 85657 990000 2915657 3905657 206182 2006 12/29/2010

Concord NC 2199620 1250000 1559179 2809179 95709 1250000 1654888 2904888 148113 1996/2001 2/15/2011

Hickory NC 2390589 660000 2408239 3068239 52304 660000 2460543 3120543 175948 1997 2/15/2011

Morganton NC 2058189 620000 1859875 2479875 66631 620000 1926506 2546506 164432 2001 2/15/2011

ElPasoll TX 2413886 1110000 2918337 4028337 89817 1110000 3008154 4118154 232512 2001/2003 2/15/2011

El Paso III TX 3206184 1330000 4254356 5584356 108708 1330000 4363064 5693064 315759 1985/2000 2/15/2011

El Paso IV TX 1943740 790000 2604766 3394766 59644 790000 2664410 3454410 198353 1999/2004 2/15/2011

ElPasoV TX 2081109 930000 2605809 3535809 59902 930000 2665711 3595711 195451 2004 2/15/2011

Dallas TX 2398036 520000 3588217 4108217 64800 520000 3653017 4173017 243735 1986/1999-2000 2/15/2011

Lawrencevillel GA 1484791 820000 709603 1529603 90984 820000 800587 1620587 54573 1996 2/15/2011

Lawrencevjlle II GA 2733773 990000 1842445 2832445 71009 990000 1913454 2903454 149978 1999 2/15/2011

MississaugaO 6841134 2573750 3088500 5662250 78929302 2507750 11047430 13555180 214896 1963/2011 3/11/2011

El Paso TX 330000 1230000 1560000 10234 330000 1240234 1570234 97728 2010 3/17/2011

Las Vegas VII NV 3738545 2030000 2543052 4573052 125959 2030000 2669011 4699011 202242 1996 3/25/2011

Las Vegas VIII NV 3807143 1520000 3381631 4901631 133600 1520000 3515231 5035231 245291 1997 3/25/2011

SF Bay Area Morgan
Hill CA 2936550 1000000 4654098 5654098 72620 1000000 4726718 5726718 286308 1997 3/30/2011

SF Bay Area Vallejo CA 4455483 2000000 5266974 7266974 67179 2000000 5334153 7334153 326982 2001 3/30/2011

Peachtree City GA 2593658 800000 4090000 4890000 369702 800000 4459702 5259702 226354 1988/1992 6/10/2011

Buford GA 1323795 1000000 1357000 2357000 82581 1000000 1439581 2439581 80020 2002 6/10/2011

Jonesboro GA 1078648 800000 1495000 2295000 56889 800000 1551889 2351889 90358 2002 6/10/2011

Ellenwood GA 1235542 550000 1564225 2114225 192690 550000 1756915 2306915 102164 1998 6/10/2011

Marietta II GA 1176707 1050000 1402200 2452200 43836 1050000 1446036 2496036 88119 1998/2008 6/10/2011

Collegeville PA 1485592 440000 2395500 2835500 130922 440000 2526422 2966422 133146 1996 6/10/2011

Skippack PA 1147289 600000 1513000 2113000 79911 600000 1592911 2192911 92637 2004 6/10/2011

Ballston Spa NY 2466182 900000 3806760 4706760 30057 900000 3836817 4736817 265399 2002 6/10/2011

Trenton NJ 3736045 2250000 4743000 6993000 13342 2250000 4756342 7006342 260252 2003 6/10/2011

Fredericksburg VA 2049431 1600000 2311625 3911625 61354 1600000 2372979 3972979 179395 2000 6/10/2011

Sandston VA 3294780 1550000 4593000 6143000 35270 1550000 4628270 6178270 288825 2005/2006 6/10/2011

LaderaRanch CA 7106066 4800000 10969414 15769414 31918 4800000 11001332 15801332 540318 2003 7/6/2011

Ladera RanchLand CA 3953282 3953282 3953282 3953282 2003 7/6/2011



Initial Cost to Company
Gross Carrying Amount at December 31 2012

Building and

Description ST Encumbrance Land Improvements Total

SF Bay Area San Lorenzo CA 2099622 2450880 2450880

Hampton VA 3500000 400000 3930000 4330000

Las Vegas NV 1667485 890000 3160000 4050000

SF Bay Area Gilroy CA 4450000 1200000 4690000 5890000

Brewster Brampton 208086 5174205 5174205

Toms River NJ 3575000 1490000 3730000 5220000

Kennesaw GA 3266743 875000 5133992 6008992

Sharpsburg GA 3321595 1250000 4792241 6042241

Duluth GA 3565382 900000 5711120 6611120

Duluth II GA 3656802 800000 5893201 6693201

Duluth III GA 3687276 750000 6090561 6840561

Marietta III GA 3534909 450000 6053761 6503761

Austell GA 2437868 800000 3728801 4528801

Sandy Springs GA 7557392 563888 7877873 8441761

Smyrna
GA 3595856 1475.000 5.173.480 6648480

Lawrenceville III GA 3489199 1325000 5692721 7017721

Jacksonville FL 4388163 900000 7169841 8069841

Jacksonville II FL 2498815 2100000 3033522 5133522

Chantilly
VA 3474712 2431905 3968095 6400000

Savannah GA 1400000 987000 1573000 2560000

Savannah II GA 1250000 1026000 1464000 2490000

Columbia SC 935000 1002000 1628000 2630000

Lexington SC 900000 789000 1021000 1810000

Stuart FL 1425000 875000 2015000 2890000

Lexington II SC 1875000 1090000 3040000 4130000

Stuart II FL 2085000 2100000 1200000 3300000

Bluffton SC 2500000 1240000 3990000 5230000

Wilmington Island SC 4330000 1616000 4194000 5810000

Myrtle Beach SC 1500000 1956000 1554000 3510000

Mt Pleasant SC 1500000 1360000 1320000 2680000

Charleston SC 1500000 725000 2085000 2810000

Charleston II SC 1650000 775000 2375000 3150000

Mt Pleasant II SC 3350000 2630000 2570000 5200000

Charleston III SC 3362500 1563000 4742000 6305000

Mt Pleasant III SC 8000000 7190000 8220000 15410000

Cost Capitalized

Subsequent to

Acquisition

Building and Accumulated Date of Date

Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction Acquired

54750 2505630 2505630 130933 2000 7/15/2011

97290 400000 4027290 4427290 187269 2007 7/20/2011

98455 890000 3.258.455 4148455 154522 1997 7/21/2011

110617 1200000 4800617 6000617 264639 1999 8/12/2011

1763665 2410540 3410540 n/a 9/13/2011

42227 1490000 3772227 5262227 143528 2006 10/21/2011

23822 875000 5157814 6032814 170634 2006 12/27/2011

29428 1250000 4821669 6071669 168976 2006 12/27/2011

23231 900000 5734351 6634351 196109 2007 12/27/2011

20996 800000 5914197 6714197 182731 2007 12/27/2011

39534 750000 6130095 6880095 194815 2007 12/27/2011

31259 450000 6085020 6535020 190643 2007 12/27/2011

31874 800000 3760675 4560675 125263 2007 12/27/2011

33293 563888 7911166 8475054 240691 2009 12/27/2011

36748 1475000 5210228 6685228 168028 2007 12/27/2011

29704 1325000 5722425 7047425 192397 2009 12/27/2011

24255 900000 7194096 8094096 223503 2008 12/27/2011

32274 2100000 3065796 5165796 128895 2009 12/27/2011

229442 2431905 4197537 6629442 93995 1985 5/24/2012

93471 987000 1666471 2653471 22850 2002 8/16/2012

36238 1026000 1500238 2526238 20048 2001 8/16/2012

27308 1002000 1655308 2657308 21078 2003 8/16/2012

17284 789000 1038284 1827284 15619 2010 8/16/2012

45345 875000 2060345 2935345 24952 2004 8/16/2012

75612 1090000 3115612 4205612 43218 1998/2003 8/16/2012

26804 2100000 1226804 3326804 18654 2008 8/16/2012

5048 1240000 3995048 5235048 51195 2008 8/16/2012

11299 1616000 4205299 51321299 33188 1999 10/1/2012

5249 1956000 1559249 3515249 17514 2002 10/1/2012

1500 1360000 1321500 2681500 6784 1989 11/5/2012

1080 725000 2086080 2811080 10865 2011 11/5/2012

2500 775000 2377500 3152500 11600 1992 11/5/2012

1500 2630000 2571500 5201500 15857 1995 11/5/2012

2100 1563000 4744100 6307100 24665 1986/1996 11/5/2012

9072 7190000 8229072 15419072 43993 1997/2007 11/5/2012



Initial Cost to Company Carrying Amount at December31 2012
Cost

Building and
Subsequent to Building and Accumulated Date of

Description ST Encumbrance Land Improvements Total Acquisition Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction

Ridgeland MS 3510096 574992 4335796 4910788 574992 4335796 1989/2004
Canton MS 3196694 686070 3810851 4496921 686070 3810851 4496921 1996/2004

$346774092 180197109 $406939756 $587136865 $17591030 178459163 $426268732 $604727895 29840320

This property is located in Ontario Canada
The change in cost at this self

storage facility is the net of the impact of foreign exchange rate changes and actual additionsany
This amount is the net of the impact of foreign exchange rate changes and reduction in basis due sale of

Date

Acquired

12/28/2012

12/28/20 12



Activity in real estate facilities during 2012 was as follows

2012

Real estate facilities

Balance at beginning of year
$510395576

Acquisitions
85722709

Land disposition
1675860

Impact of foreign exchange rate changes
614721

Improvements
9670749

Balance at end of year
$604727895

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at beginning of
year

15971288

Depreciation expense
13869032

Balance at end of year
29840320

Real estate facilities net
$574887575
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

No Description

3.1 Second Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Strategic Storage Trust Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 21 2011 Commission File No

000-53644

3.2 Articles of Amendment to the Second Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Strategic Storage

Trust Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 13

2012 Commission File No 000-53644

3.3 Bylaws of Strategic Storage Trust Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Pre-Effective

Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 5-11 filed on March 2008

Commission File No 333-146959

4.1 Form of Subscription Agreement and Subscription Agreement Signature Page included as Appendix

to prospectus incorporated by reference to Post-Effective Amendment No to the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-li filed on November 15 2012 Commission File No 333-168905

10.1 First Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Strategic Storage Operating

Partnership L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Post-Effective Amendment No to the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-li filed on April 29 2008 Commission File No 333-

146959

10.2 Employee and Director Long-Term Incentive Plan of Strategic Storage Trust Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Pre-Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement

on Form S-il filed on March 2008 Commission File No 333-146959

10.3 Strategic Storage Trust Inc Distribution Reinvestment Plan included as Appendix to prospectus

incorporated by reference toPost-Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-li filed on November 15 2012 Commission File No 333-168905

10.4 Collateral Loan Agreement for Prudential Loan by and among The Prudential Life Insurance

Company of America and Eleven Special-Purpose
Entities dated August 25 2010 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on August 31 2010 Commission File

No 000-53644

10.5 Form of Promissory Note for Prudential Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on August 31 2010 Commission File No 000-53644

10.6 Form of Mortgage or Deed of Trust and Security Agreement for Prudential Loan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on August 31 2010 Commission File

No 000-53644

10.7 Form of Assignment of Leases and Rents for Prudential Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.4 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on August 31 2010 Commission File No 000-53644

10.8 Form of Supplemental Guaranty for Prudential Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on August 31 2010 Commission File No 000-53644

10.9 Form of Recourse Liabilities Guaranty for Prudential Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6

to the Companys Form 8-K filed on August 31 2010 Commission File No 000-53644

10.10 Promissory Note for Citi Loan in favor of The Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp dated January

28 2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on February

2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.11 Loan Agreement for Citi Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-

filed on February 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.12 Limited Recourse Guaranty for Citi Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys

Form 8-K filed on February 2011 Commission File No 000-53644



Exhibit

No Description

10.13 Loan Agreement for Bank of America Loan between EP Rhino DST and Bank of America N.A
dated November 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed

on February 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.14 Promissory Note for Bank of America Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on February 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.15 Amendment No to First Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Strategic

Storage Operating Partnership L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Form 8-K filed on March 31 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.16 Purchase and Sale Agreement Related to BB Portfolio dated March 25 2011 incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on March 31 2011 Commission File No
000-53644

10.17 Loan Agreement for ING Loan by and among ING Life Insurance and Annuity Company 11 Special-

Purpose Entities and Strategic Storage Trust Inc dated June 10 2011 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 14 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.18 Form of Mortgage Deed of Trust or Deed to Secure Debt for ING Loan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 14 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.19 Form of Security Agreement for ING Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on June 14 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.20 Form of Promissory Note for ING Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys
Form 8-K filed on June 14 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.21 Form of Assignment of Leases and Rents for ING Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to

the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 14 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.22 Form of Guaranty of Affiliate Loans for ING Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on June 14 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.23 Form of Limited Guaranty for ING Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys
Form 8-K filed on June 14 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.24 Note for the KeyBank Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K
filed on July 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.25 Deed of Trust Assignment of Leases and Rents Security Agreement and Fixture Filing for the La

Cienega-LA Property for the KeyBank Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on July 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.26 Collateral Assignment of Leases and Rents for the La Cienega-LA Property for the KeyBank Loan
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on July 2011
Commission File No 000-53644

10.27 Collateral Assignment of Management Contract for the La Cienega-LA Property for the KeyBank
Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on July 2011
Commission File No 000-53644

10.28 Collateral Assignment and Security Agreement in Respect of Contracts Licenses and Permits for the

La Cienega-LA Property for the KeyBank Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on July 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.29 Pledge and Security Agreement for the KeyBank Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to

the Companys Form 8-K filed on July 2011 Commission File No 000-53644

10.30 Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Homeland Portfolio incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Companys Form 8-K filed on September 13 2011 Commission File No 000-53644



Exhibit

No Description

10.31 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement for the Second Restated KeyBank Loan

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on January 2012

Commission File No 000-53644

10.32 Second Amended and Restated Guaranty for the Second Restated KeyBank Loan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on January 2012 Commission File No
000-53644

10.33 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement for the KeyBank Bridge Loan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on January 2012 Commission File No 000-53644

10.34 Amended and Restated Guaranty for the KeyBank Bridge Loan incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.4 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on January 2012 Commission File No 000-53644

10.35 Purchase and Sale Agreement Related to the Stockade Portfolio dated June 19 2012 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on June 25 2012 Commission File No
000-53644

10.36 First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on August 16 2012 Commission File No 000-53644

10.37 Second Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed on October 2012 Commission File No 000-53644

10.38 Loan Agreement with KeyBank National Association for the KeyBank CMBS Loan dated as of

October 10 2012 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on

October 15 2012 Conmission File No 000-53644

10.39 Promissory Note for the KeyBank CMBS Loan dated as of October 10 2012 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K filed on October 15 2012 Commission File

No 000-53644
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Michael Schwartz certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Strategic Storage Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in

all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report
based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting

and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

March 29 2013 By Is Michael Schwartz

Date Michael Schwartz

President CEO and Director

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Michael McClure certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Strategic Storage Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in

all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting

and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

March 29 2013 By Is Michael McClure

Date Michael McClure

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 the undersigned officer of Strategic

Storage Trust Inc or the Company in connection with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended

December 31 2012 the Report hereby certifies to his knowledge that

the Report fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13a or Section 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended and

ii the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company

March 29 2013 By
Is Michael Schwartz

Date
Michael Schwartz

President CEO and Director

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 the undersigned officer of Strategic
Storage Trust Inc or the Company in connection with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended
December 31 2012 the Report hereby certifies to his knowledge that

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or Section 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended and

ii the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company

March 29 2013 By Is Michael McClure

Date
Michael McClure

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer and

Treasurer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer
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